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INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS MADHUCON AGRA-JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED)
A public company with limited liability incorporated on 23/03/2005 under the Companies Act, 1956

Registered Office: 1 si Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad TG 500029.
Corporate OfTicc: B-806,807, Advant Naris Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Noida 201305 (UP).

Telephone No.: +91 40 4017 9779; Website: www.mbel.co.in; CIN: U45203TG2005PLC045689
Contact Person: Mr. Raman Tyagi, Director

Information Memorandum dated October 16, 2017 for issue of upto 1920 Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures having face value of Rs 10,00,000/- for cash at par issued on a private placement basis
aggregating to Rs. 192,00,00,000/- consisting of: (i) 1842 debentures of face value Rs 10,00,000/- aggregating to Rs
184,20,00,000/- ("Series A Debentures") and (ii) 78 debentures of' face value 10,00,000/- aggregating to Rs
7,80,00,000/- ("Series B Debentures") (the Series A Debentures and Series B Debentures collectively referred to as the
"Debentures" / "NCDs")

BACKGROUND

This Information Memorandum is related to the Debentures to be issued by Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (Formerly Known as
Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited) (the "Issuer" or "Company") on a private placement basis and contains relevant information and
disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of the Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this
Information Memorandum has been authorised by the resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Issuer on September 02, 2017.

ISSUER'S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY

The Issuer, having made all reasonable Inquiries, accepts responsibility for, and confirms that this Information Memorandum (including the
documents incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all information with regard to the Issuer and the Issue, which is material in the
context of the Issue, that the information contained in this Information Memorandum is true and correct in all material respects and is not
misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there' are no other facts, the
omission of which makes this Information Memorandum as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or
intentions misleading in any material respect.

CREDIT RATING

The Debentures proposed to be issued by the Issuer have been rated by India Ratings and Research Private Limited and Crisil Limited (the
"Rating Agencies"). The Rating Agencies has assigned a rating of "AAA (SO)" in respect of the Debentures. The credit rating letter dated
October 12, 2017 issued by CRISIL Limited and the credit rating letter dated September 28, 2017 issued by India Ratings and Research Private
Limited is enclosed in Annexure 1. Instruments withhhis rating are considered to have highest degree of safety regarding timely servicing of
financial obligations. The ratings ma}' be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the Rating Agencies and should be evaluated
independently of any other ratings.

LISTING

The Debentures offered through this Information Memorandum are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of BSE Limited (the "BSE").
The Issuer will list the Debentures within a period of 15 (Fifteen) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

RISK

Investment in debt and debt related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the debt instruments, unless
they can afford to take the risks attached to such investments. Investors are advised to read the Disclaimers contained under Section 2 and the
Risk Factors under Section 3 of this Information Memorandum carefully before taking an investment decision in relation to this issuance of
Debentures.

ISSUE SCHEDULE

Issue Opens on October 16,2017

Issue Closes on October 16, 2017

Pay-in Date October 16,2017

Deemed Date of Allotment October 16,2017

The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any
reasons or prior notice. ^

KEY PARTIES
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SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given
below in this Information Memorandum.

Accrued Amount Means, for any Debenture on any day, the sum of: (a) the
outstanding Nominal Value of the Debenture; and (b) the accrued
but unpaid Coupon in respect of such Debenture.

Additional Financial

Indebtedness

Means the additional indebtedness, which the Company is entitled
to avail of, on a pari passii basis with the Series A Debentures, in
accordance with the terms set out in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Affiliate Means, in relation to any person:
a. (in relation to an entity) a Subsidiary of that person or a

Holding Company of that person or any other Subsidiary
of that Holding Company (including head offices and
branches of any of the foregoing); and

b. (in relation to an individual) a relative (as defined in the
Act) of that person or any entity controlled by that person

Aggregate MMR Balance Means, on any date during a MMR Period, the difference between
(i) the Prescribed MMR Amount that should have been credited to
the MMRA during the period beginning from the first day of the
current MMR Period to the date on which the Aggregate MMR
Balance is calculated; and (ii) all major maintenance expenses
incurred by the Company during the period beginning from the
first day of the relevant MMR Period to the date on which the
Aggregate MMR Balance is calculated.

Agreed MMR Means the Prescribed MMR Amount. Provided however that

during the U' MMR Period the Agreed MMR means the amount
required to be transferred to the MMRA in each Testing Period in
order to ensure that the aggregate of the amount standing to the
credit of the MMRA and the amount guaranteed by the MMRA (if
any) is equal to the Aggregate MMR Balance. Provided however
that the Agreed MMR for each of the first three Testing Dates
shall be the difference between: (i) the Aggregate MMR Balance
as of 30 September 2018; and (ii) Aggregate of the amounts
credited to the 'MAJEL Major Maintenance Reserve Account' as
defined under the Erstwhile Escrow Account Agreement as on or
about the date of the Debenture Trust Deed and the amount

guaranteed by the MMR Guarantee (being a single guarantee of an
amount equal to or greater than INR 150,000,000) (if any).

Allot/Allotment/Allotted Means, unless the context otherwise requires or implies, the
allotment of the Debentures pursuant to the Issue to the successful
applicants.

Application Form Means the forms used by the recipient of this Information
Memorandum, to apply for subscription to the Debentures, which
are annexed to this Information Memorandum and marked as

Annexure III.

Appointed Date Means ISO (One Hundred and Eighty) days from the date of
signing of the Concession Agreement.

Articles of

Association/ Articles

Means the articles of association of the Issuer, as amended from
time to time.

Board/Board of Directors Means the Board of Directors of the Issuer and includes any
Authorised Committee of Directors, formed or to be formed in this
regard.

V
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Business Day Means a day (other than a Saturday/Sunday on which banks are
open for general business in fDelhi].

BSE BSE Limited

Cash Retention Account Means the sub-account of the Escrow Account titled "Mahua

Bharatpur Expressways Limited Cash Retention Account" to be
established under the Supplementary Escrow Agreement.

CDSL Central Depository Service Limited.

Charged Assets Means the assets charged, pledged or otherwise made the subject
of security pursuant to the Debenture Documents (including, for
the avoidance of doubt, the Hypothecated Assets).

Companies Act/ the Act Means the Companies Act, 2013, and to the extent not repealed
and replaced by the Companies Act, 2013, shall mean the
Companies Act, 1956.

Concession Agreement Means the concession agreement dated 13 October 2005 entered
into between the Company and NHAI.

Concession Period Means the period beginning from the Appointed Date and ending
on the Termination Date.

Concessionaire Means the Company.

Coupon Means in relation to a Debenture for a Coupon Period, the amount
of interest payable on the Nominal Value at the Coupon Rate.

Coupon Period Each Coupon Period-for each Series of Debentures shall be for a
period of 3 (Three) months. The first Coupon Period for a Series
of Debentures shall commence from the Pay-in Date of such Series
of Debentures and expire on January 03,2018 and each subsequent
Coupon Period shall start on the day immediately succeeding the
end of the preceding Coupon Period for such Series of Debentures.

Coupon Payment Date Means, in respect of each Series of Debentures, the date(s)
specified in Annexure VIII.

Coupon Rate Means 8.40% per annum for the Series A Debentures and 8.40%
per annum for the Series B Debentures

Debentures Means collectively the Series A Debentures and/or Series B
Debentures, as the context may require.

Debenture Documents Means (i) the Debenture Trust Deed, (ii) this Information
Memorandum, (iii) Debenture Trustee Agreement, (iv) Escrow
Agreements, (v) Debenture Trustee Appointment Letter, (vi)
Subordination Agreement, (vii) Security Documents and (viii) any
other document designated as a Debenture Document by the
Debenture Trustee and the Company and "Debenture Document"
means any of them.

Debenture Holders / Investors Means the persons who are, for the time being and from time to
time, the holders of the Debentures and whose names appear in the
Register of Beneficial Owners and "Debenture Holder" means
each such person.

Debt Means the aggregate of the NominaLValue, Coupon, Default
Interest, costs, charges, expenses and all present and future
moneys, debts and liabilities due, owing or incurred irom time to
time by the Company to any secured party under or in connection
with the Debentures, this Deed and/or any other Debenture
Document (in each case, whether alone or jointly, or jointly and
severally, with any other person, whether actually or contingently,
and whether as principal, surety or otherwise), but without any
double counting.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio Shall be calculated in respect of any Testing Date, as per the
following formula, expressed as a ratio:



hifonnaiion Memorandum
For Private Circu/alion only

DSCR = [Free Cashflow/Debt Service]

Where:

"Free Cashflow" is calculated in respect of any Testing Date to be
the difference between:

(a) the aggregate of:
(i) Toll revenues received in cash from the Project for the Testing
Period; and
(ii) Interest income received by the Company during the Testing
Period;

and

(b) the aggregate of:
(i) O&M expense incurred for the Testing Period (excluding: (a)
expense incurred from the Distribution Account in relation to
repatriation of funds to the Sponsor; and (b) expenses incurred
towards repayment of the Existing Facilities);
(ii) Interest arising on the Distribution Account (and permitted
investments made from the Distribution Account);
(iii) any taxes paid/payable by the Company (excluding dividend
distribution tax and tax paid on buy-back of shares) during the
Testing Period; and
(iv) the Agreed MMR for the relevant Testing Period

"Debt Service" means, in respect of any Testing Period, the sum
of:

(a) the principal amounts or redemption amounts which were
scheduled to be paid in relation to the Debentures and the Existing
Facility; and
(b) Coupon for that Testing Period; and
(c) debt servicing obligations of the Company in respect of the
Additional Financial Indebtedness during that Testing Period, as
determined (except needed to reflect the terms of the financial
covenants) from the financial statements of the Company and
compliance certificates delivered by the Company. Provided
however that the Coupon for the Testing Periods ending on the D'
Testing Date, the 2"^^ Testing Date and the 3"" Testing Date will be
as follows: (a) for the T' Testing Date, the Coupon for the Testing
Period shall be four times the aggregate Coupon payable from the
Deemed Date of Allotment to the T' Testing Date; (b) for the 2"'*
Testing Date, the Coupon for the Testing Period shall be two times
the aggregate Coupon payable from the Deemed Date of Allotment
to the 2"'^ Testing Date; and (c) for the 3^^ Testing Date, the
Coupon for the Testing Period shall be four-thirds of the aggregate
Coupon payable from the Deemed Date of Allotment to the 3"*
Testing Date.

Deemed Date of Allotment October 16,2017.

Debenture Trustee Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Debenture Trustee Agreement Means the debenture trustee agreement dated October 03, 2017
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entered into between the Company and the Debenture Trustee.

Debenture Trustee Appointment
Letter

Means letter dated August 31, 2017, issued by the Debenture
Trustee to the Company, in relation to the appointment of Catalyst
Trusteeship Limited as the Debenture Trustee

Debenture Trust Deed

1

Means the deed to be executed between the Company and the
Debenture Trustee within a period of 30 (Thirty) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment, which will set out the detailed terms

and conditions upon which Debentures are proposed to be issued
and setting out the roles and responsibilities of the Debenture
Trustee in connection with the issuance of the Debentures.

Deed of Hypothecation Means the deed to be executed between the Company and the
Debenture Trustee within a period of 90 (Ninety) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment, which will set out the terms upon
which the assets of the Company are being hypothecated in favour
of the Debenture Trustee as security for the Debentures.

Depositories Act The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository A Depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories
and Participant) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time
with whom the Issuer has made arrangements for dematerializing
the Debentures.

Depository Participant / DP A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Director(s) Director(s) of the Issuer unless otherwise mentioned.

Disclosure Document /

Information Memorandum

This document which sets out the information regarding the
Debentures being issued on a private placement basis.

Distribution Account Means the sub-account of the Escrow Account titled "Mahua

Bharatpur Expressways Limited Distribution Account" to be
established under the Supplementary Escrow Agreement.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.

DSRA Means the sub-account of the Escrow Account titled "Mahua

Bharatpur Expressways Limited DSRA" to be established under
the Supplementary Escrow Agreement.

DSRA Amount Means an amount equal to three-fourth of the aggregate of the
Redemption Amount and Coupon payable by the Company over
the next 12 Months.

DSRA Deductions Means such amounts, as may be required to be credited to the
DSRA, so as to ensure that the DSRA Amount is maintained
during the Testing Period

Due Date Means a date on which any payment becomes due and payable to
the Debenture Holders in respect of the Debentures.

Early Redemption Amount Means, in respect of a Debenture on an Early Redemption Date, an
amount equal to the Accrued Amount.

Early Redemption Date Means any date prior to the Final Redemption Date on which the
Debentures are required to be redeemed in accordance with the
Debenture Trust Deed.

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer.

Eligible Guarantee Provider Means: (i) any scheduled commercial bank which has a long term
credit rating of at least AA+ provided by CRISIL; (ii) HDFC, only
if it has a long term credit rating of AA+ or above provided by
CRISIL; (iii) Aditya Birla Finance, only if it has a long term credit
rating of at least AA+ provided by CRISIL; (iv) Tata Capital, only
if it has a long term credit rating of at least AA+ provided by
CRISIL; (v) L&T Infrastructure, only if it has a long term credit
rating of at least AA+ provided by CRISIL; and/or (vi) Any other
financial institution which has been given a long tesm credit rating
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of at least AA+ by CRISIL for the last three consecutive years.

Erstwhile Escrow Account

Agreement

Means the supplementary escrow agreement dated September 21,
2016 entered into between the Company, L&T Infrastructure
Finance Company Limited, Catalyst Trusteeship Limited and
HDFC Bank Limited.

Escrow Account Means the escrow account to be opened in accordance with the
terms of the NHAI Escrow Agreement.

Escrow Agreements Means collectively the NHAI Escrow Agreement and the
Supplementary Escrow Agreement.

Event of Default Means any of the events described as an 'Event of Default' in the
row titled Events of Default in the summary terms set out in
Section 5.10 of this Information Memorandum and such other

events as may be identified in the other Debenture Documents.

Escrow Bank Means a scheduled commercial bank as decided by the Company

Excess Cashflow Means the difference between A and B, where: (a) A is the Free
Cashflows for a Testing Period; and (b) B is the aggregate of the
Debt Service amount and the DSRA Deductions.

Existing Facility Means the Rupee term loan agreement dated September 21, 2016,
entered into between the Company, L&T Infrastructure Finance
Company Limited and the Rupee Lenders (as defined in the
Existing Facility).

First Hypothecated Assets Means: (a) the Company's tangible moveable assets (other than
Project Assets), including without limitation, all movables together
with its accessories, computer hardware, computer software,
electronics spares machinery spares, tools and accessories both
present and future whether installed or whether lying loose or in
cases or which are stored in or to be stored in or to be brought into
or upon or be brought upon the Company's premises, warehouses,
stockyards and godowns or those of the Company's agents,
affiliates, associates or representatives at the work sites or at any
upcountry place or places wherever else the same may be, whether
now belonging to or that may at any time during the continuance
of this security belong to the Company and/or that may at present
or hereafter be held by any party anywhere to the order and
disposition of the Company or in the course of transit or delivery
and all replacements thereof, and additions thereto, whether by
way of substitution, replacement, conversion, realization or
otherwise howsoever with all benefits, rights and incidents
attached thereto, which are now or shall at any time hereafter be
owned by the Company, trademarks, service marks, trade names,
domain names, logos, get-up, patents, inventions, registered and
unregistered design rights, copyrights, topography rights, database
rights, rights in confidential information and know-how, and any
associated or similar rights anywhere in the world, which the
Company now or in the future owns or (to the extent of its interest)
in which the Company now or in the future has an interest (in each
case whether registered or unregistered and including any related
licences and sub-licences of the same granted by it or to it,
applications and rights to apply for the same) and all right, title,
interest, property, claims and demands whatsoever of the
Company unto and upon the same; and (b) the accounts, to the
extent identified under the Debenture Documents and the

permitted investments, any other receivables, monies
received/receivable under the operation and maintenance
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agreements or from any other person, (whether as liquidated
damages or otherwise), all other monies credited or liable to be
credited to the escrow accounts and the permitted investments, all
money, claims or money proceeds or receivables of whatsoever
nature arising howsoever and wheresoever, which are now due and
owning or which may at any time hereafter during the continuance
of the Security created in terms of the Deed of Hypothecation
become due and owing to or acquired by the Company in the
course of its business, and the full benefit of all rights and
remedies relating thereto, including but not limited to fees, deposit
and all claims damages and other remedies for non-payment of the
same and all claims under any insurance whether in addition to or
by way of renewal, extension or replacement of any money
previously deposited in or credited to the escrow accounts, to the
extent identified under the Debenture Documents, or otherwise,

together with any interest from time to time accruing in respect of
such monies

Final Redemption Date Means, in respect of each Series of Debentures, the date on which
such Debentures are redeemed in full and their Nominal Value

reduced to zero as specified in Annexure VUI herein.
Financial Indebtedness Means in relation to any person any indebtedness of such person

for or in respect of

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

moneys borrowed;
any amount raised by acceptance under any acceptance
credit facility, bill acceptance or bill endorsement facility
or dematerialised equivalent;
any amount raised pursuant to any note purchase facility
or the issue of bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or any
similar instrument;

receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables
to the extent they are sold on a non-recourse basis and
receivables sold or discounted in furtherance of

appointment of a Tolling Contractor);
any amount raised under any other transaction (including
any forward sale or purchase agreement) having the
commercial effect of a borrowing;
any derivative transaction entered into in connection with
protection against, or benefit from, fluctuation in any rate
or price including any credit support arrangement in
respect thereof (and, when calculating the value of any
derivative transaction, only the marked to market value
shall be taken into account);
shares (or any instruments convertible into shares) which
are expressed to be redeemable or the subject of a put
option or any form of guarantee;
any counter-indemnity obligation in respect of a
guarantee, indemnity bond, standby or documentary letter
of credit or any other instrument issued by a bank or
financial institution; and

(without double counting) the amount of any liability in
respect of any guarantee or indemnity for any of the items
referred to in sub-paragraphs (i) to (ix) above;

Financial Covenant Redemption Means, the occurrence of an event where the Debt Service
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Event Coverage Ratio for any four consecutive Testing Periods is less
than 1.50:1.

Financial Year/ FY Means each one year period from, and including 1 April of one
year to and including 31 March of the succeeding year.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Holding Company Shall have the meaning given to the term "holding company" in
the Act.

Hypothecated Assets Means collectively the First Hypothecated Assets and the Second
Hypothecated Assets.

IPO Means an initial public offering carried out in accordance with the
SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009.

Issue Private Placement of the Debentures.

Issue Closing Date Subject to any change to the Issue Schedule by the Issuer, the
Issue Opening Date shall be as indicated in the Issue Schedule.

Issue Opening Date Subject to any change to the Issue Schedule by the Issuer, the
Issue Opening Date shall be as indicated in the Issue Schedule.

Issuer/ Company Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited. (Formerly Known as
Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited )

Listing Agreement Means the agreement to be entered into between the Company and
the BSE for the purpose of listing the Debentures on the WDM
segment of BSE.

Majority Resolution Means: (a) a resolution passed at a meeting of the Debenture
Holders by a majority holding not less than 51% of the aggregate
outstanding Nominal Value of the Debentures, duly convened and
held in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed; or (b) written
instructions given, by a majority holding not less than 51% of the
aggregate outstanding Nominal Value of the Debentures.

Mandatory Financial Covenant
Redemption Event

Means, the occurrence of an event where the Debt Service
Coverage Ratio for any six consecutive Testing Periods is less than
1.50:1.

Mandatory Redemption Events Means: (a) termination by the Company of the Concession
Agreement; (b) tennination by the NHAI of the Concession
Agreement other than on occurrence of a 'Concessionaire Event of
Default', as set out in Clause 32.1.1 of the Concession Agreement;
(c) NHAI awarding the Company the concession to perform
augmentation to the capacity of the Project pursuant to article
VIIIA (Capacity Augmentation) of the Concession Agreement; or
(d) where the Company has not submitted any proposal referred to
in paragraph (c) above, and NHAI has awarded the concession for
augmentation of the capacity of the Project to a third Person
pursuant to article VIIIA (Capacity Augmentation) of the
Concession Agreement.

Memorandum of Association/

Memorandum

The Memorandum of Association of the Issuer, as amended from
time to time.

MMR Period Means each of: (a) the period beginning on the Deemed Date of
Allotment and ending on 30 September 2019 ("the 1st MMR
Period"); (b) the period beginning on 1 October 2019 and ending
on 30 September 2024 ("the 2nd MMR Period"); and (c) the
period beginning on 1 October 2024 and ending on 30 September
2029 ("the 3rd MMR Period").

MMR Guarantee Means a guarantee procured by the Sponsor or an Affiliate of the
Sponsor utilising credit lines available to it from an Eligible
Guarantee Provider, in accordance with the terms of the Debenture

10
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Documents, in form and substance satisfactory to the Debenture
Trustee.

MMRA Means the sub-account of the Escrow Account titled "Mahua

Bharatpur Expressways Limited MMRA" to be established in
terms of the Supplementary Escrow Agreement

N.A Not Applicable.

NHAI National Highways Authority of India

NHAI Escrow Agreement Means the escrow agreement to be entered into between the
Company, the Debenture Trustee, NHAI and the Escrow Bank,
within a period of 180 (One Hundred Eighty) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment.

Nominal Value Means, in respect of each Debenture, (i) on the Pay-in Date, the
Original Nominal Value, and (ii) on any date after the Pay-in Date,
the Original Nominal Value as reduced following any redemption
in part on a Scheduled Redemption Date.

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited.

PAN Permanent Account Number.

Original Nominal Value Means INR 10,00,000/-, being the Nominal Value of each
Debenture on the Pay-in Date

Prescribed MMR Amount An amount equivalent to the amounts specified in respect of each
Financial Quarter in the Supplementary Escrow Agreement or
such other applicable amount as determined by the Rating
Agencies from time to time and notified by the Company to the
Debenture Trustee and the Escrow Bank in writing.

Project Means improvement, operation and maintenance of rehabilitation
and strengthening of existing 2-lane road and widening to 4-Iane
divided highway of Km 63 to Km 120 of NH-11 (Bharatpur-
Mahua section in the state of Rajasthan), pursuant to the
Concession Agreement.

Project Assets Means all physical and other assets relating to and forming part of
the Project Highway, as more particularly described in the
Debenture Trust Deed.

Project Documents Means the documents executed in connection with the Project as
more particularly identified in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Project Highway Means improvement, operation and maintenance, rehabilitation
and strengthening of existing 2-Iane road and widening to 4-lane
divided highway of Bharatpur to Mahua section of National
Highway 11 (NH 11) from Km 63.000 to Km 120.000 in the state
of Rajasthan on built, operate and transfer basis and shall include
the Project Assets and the Project Facilities to be designed
engineered and built on the Project Site and to be operated and
maintained during the Concession Period in accordance with the
provisions of the Concession Agreement.

Project Facilities Means all the amenities and facilities situated on the Project Site,
as described in Schedule 'C of the Concession Agreement.

Project Site Means the real estate licensed by NHAI to the Concessionaire
under and in accordance with the Concession Agreement on which
the project Highway is situated.

Rating Agencies India Ratings and Research Private Limited and Crisil Limited.

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

Record Date Means the date which will be used for determining the Debenture
Holders who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any
Due Date, which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) days prior to
any Coupon Payment Date or Redemption Date. »
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Redemption Amount means in respect of each Debenture: (a) on any Early Redemption
Date, the Early Redemption Amount; and (b) on a scheduled
Redemption Date, the scheduled Redemption Amount

Register of Beneficial Owners Means the register of beneficial owners of the Debentures
maintained in the records of the Depository. •

R&T Agent Karvy Computershare Private Limited having its address at
Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032

ROC Registrar of Companies.

Rs./INR Indian National Rupee.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

Second Hypothecated Assets Means the Company's rights, titles, interest, benefits, claims and
demands under each of the: (a) the insurance contracts (except to
the extent they are not Project Assets) together with any
receivables or insurance proceeds thereunder; (b) the Concession
Agreement (in accordance with the Substitution Agreement); and
(c) the Project Documents (other than the Concession Agreement)
(including any guarantees, liquidated damages, performance bonds
and letters of credit that may be provided by any counterparty to
the Project Documents (other than the Concession Agreement))
except to the extent they are not Project Assets, and the
authorisations in respect of the Project including, without
limitation, the right to compel performance thereunder, and to
substitute, or to be substituted for, the Company there under,
exercise any rumination rights, and to commence and conduct

1

either in the name of the Company or in its own name or otherwise
any proceedings against any Person in respect of any breach of the
Project Documents (other than the Concession Agreement) and the
authorisations, to the extent capable of being charged and,
including without limitation, rights and benefits to all amounts
owing to, or received by, the Company and all claims thereunder
and all other claims of the Company under or in any proceedings
against all or any such persons and together with the right to
further charge and/or assign any of the Project Documents (other
than the Concession Agreement) and the authorisations, to any
person whether presently in existence or created hereafter.

Security Documents Means the (i) Substitution Agreement, (ii) the Deed of
Hypothecation; and (iii) any other documents designated as a
Security Document by the Debenture Trustee and the Company
and "Security Document" means any of them.

Scheduled Redemption Date Means the dates identified in Annexure VIII herein

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended
from time to time).

SEBI Regulations The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 as amended from time to time
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 issued by SEBI,
as amended from time to time.

Series Means the Series A Debentures and/or the Series B Debentures, as
the context may require.

Series A Debentures 1842 (One Thousand Eight Hundred and Forty Two) rated secured
listed redeemable non-convertible debentures of the Company to
be issued by the Company in terms of the Debenture Trust Deed,
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in 13 (Thirteen) sub series, each having a face value of Rs.
10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only) and aggregating up to Rs.
184,20,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Eighty Four Crore and
Twenty Lakh only only). The Series A Debentures shall comprise
of 13 sub-series numbered Series A1 - Series A13, as identified in
Annexure Vni herein

Series B Debentures 78 (Seventy Eight) rated secured listed redeemable non-
convertible debentures of the Company to be issued by the
Company in terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, in 3 (Three) sub
series, each having a face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten
Lakh only) and aggregating up to Rs. 7,80,00,000/- (Rupees Seven
Crore and Eighty Lakh only). The Series B Debentures shall
comprise of 3 sub-series numbered Series Bl- Series B3, as
identified in Aiinexure Vlil herein.

Sponsor Means Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte Ltd, a company
incorporated under the laws of Singapore, having its registered
office at 80 Robinson Road #16-03 Singapore - 068898.

Sponsor Subordinated Debt Means the aggregate of all principal, interest, default interest,
costs, charges, expenses and all present and future moneys, debts
and liabilities due, owing or incurred from time to time by the
Company to the Sponsor or its Affiliates (in each case, whether
alone or jointly, or jointly or severally, with any other person,
whether actually or contingently, and as principal, surety or
otherwise) and includes the existing outstanding debt payable to
the Company to the Sponsors or its Affiliates, in relation to which
the principal amount outstanding aggregates to INR 792,737,900'

Subordination Agreement Means the agreement entered into by the Sponsor with the
Debenture Trustee confirming that all its rights in relation to the
Sponsor Subordinated Debt shall be subordinated to the claim of
the Debenture Holders against the Company.

Subsidiary Shall have the meaning given to the term "subsidiary" in the Act
Substitution Agreement Means the agreement to be entered into between the NHAI, the

Debenture Trustee and the Company, substantially in the form as
set out in Schedule U of the Concession Agreement.

Supplementary Escrow
Agreement

Means the supplementary escrow agreement to the NHAI Escrow
Agreement, to be entered into between the Company, the
Debenture Trustee and the Escrow Bank, within a period of 180
(One Hundred Eighty) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

Stock Exchange BSE Limited.

Subscription Money The money credited by the applicant to the bank account of the
Company for the purpose of subscription of the Debentures.

Testing Date Means each of 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December
of each Financial Year

Testing Period Means, in respect of any Testing Date, a period of 12 calendar
months ending on such Testing Date

Termination Date Means the date on which the Concession Agreement and the
concession under the Concession Agreement expires pursuant to
the provisions of the Concession Agreement or is terminated by
means of a communication issued in accordance with the

Concession Agreement by one party to the other party terminating
the Concession Agreement.

Termination Payment Means the payment required to be made by NHAI in accordance
with the Concession Agreement.

TDS Tax Deducted at Source.
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Toll Charge levied on and payable for a vehicle using the Project
Highway in accordance with the terms of the Concession
Agreement.

Toll Plazas Means the structures and barriers erected on the Project Highway
for the purpose of regulating the entry / exit of vehicles in
accordance with the provisions of the Concession Agreement.

Tolling Contract Means the contract, if any, entered into by the Concessionaire with
the Tolling Contractor for the operation of the Toll Plazas
including collection of fees for and on behalf of the
Concessionaire.

Tolling Contractor Mean the person, if any, with whom the Concessionaire has
entered into a Tolling Contract for the operation of Toll Plazas and
collection of Fees for and on behalf of the Concessionaire.

WDM Wholesale Debt Market
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SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

2.1 ISSUER'S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and
should not be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a prospectus under the Companies
Act. The issue of the Debentures is being made strictly on a private placement basis and is proposed
to be listed on BSE. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to the
same person and shall be treated as such. This Information Memorandum does not constitute and shall
not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in
general.

This Information Memorandum has. been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Regulations. This
Information Memorandum has been prepared solely to provide general information about the Issuer to
investors to whom it is addressed and who, being permitted pursuant to the provisions of this
Information Memorandum, are willing to subscribe to the Debentures. This Information
Memorandum does not purport to contain all the information that any potential investor may require.
Further, this Information Memorandum has been prepared for informational purposes relating to this
transaction only and upon the express understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set forth
herein.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Debentures is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this
Information Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any
Debentures. Each Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and
other professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in
the Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the
suitability of such investment to such Investor's particular circumstances. It is the responsibility of the
Investors to also ensure that they will sell these Debentures in strict accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Information Memorandum and applicable laws, so that the sale does not constitute
an offer for sale to the public within the meaning of the Companies Act.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the
documents incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the
context of the Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such
material respects. No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representation not contained or incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or in any
material made available by the Issuer to any potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made,
such information or representation must not be relied upon as having being authorized by the Issuer.
The Issuer certifies that the disclosures made in this Information Memorandum are adequate and in
conformity with the SEBI Regulations. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility for statements
made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or any other material issued by or at the
instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance on any source of information other than this
Information Memorandum would be doing so at its own risk.

This Information Memorandum and the contents hereof are restricted only for the intended
recipient(s) who have been addressed directly and specifically through a communication by the
Issuer and only such recipients may apply for the Debentures. All Investors are required to
comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for investing in this Issue.
The contents of this Information Memorandum are intended to be used only by those Investors
to whom it is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other person^and should not
be reproduced by the recipient.
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No invitation is being made to any persons other than those to whom Application Forms along with
this Information Memorandum being issued have been sent. Any application by a person to whom the
Information Memorandum has not been sent by the Issuer shall be rejected without assigning any
reason.

The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum shall not reproduce or distribute in
whole or part or make any announcement in public or to a third party regarding the contents hereof
without the consent of tiie Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep confidential all information provided
(or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the existence and tenns of the Issue, any
specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or terms of any fees payable to the
Issuer or other parties in connection with the Issue. This Information Memorandum may not be
photocopied, reproduced, or distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the
Issuer. Upon request, the recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer
(including this Information Memorandum) without retaining any copies thereof. If any recipient of
this Information Memorandum decides not to participate in the Issue, that recipient must promptly
return this Information Memorandum and all reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other
information statement, notice, opinion, memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any
time in relation thereto or received in connection with the Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum to reflect subsequent events
after the date of Information Memorandum and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such
subsequent events without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum nor any sale of Debentures made hereafter
shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has
been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum does not constitute, nor may it be used for or in connection with, an
offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized
or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken
to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of this Information Memorandum in any
jurisdiction where such action is required. Persons into whose possession this Information
Memorandum comes are required to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.
The Information Memorandum is made available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict
understanding that it is confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES

As required, a copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with BSE in terms of SEBI
Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this Information Memorandum to the
BSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Information Memorandum that
this Information Memorandum has been reviewed, cleared, or approved by the BSE; nor does BSE in
any manner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any contents of this
Information Memorandum, nor does BSE warrant that the Issuer's Debentures will be listed or will

continue to be listed on BSE; nor does BSE takes any responsibility for the soundness of the financial
and other conditions of the Issuer, its Promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the
Issuer.

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

As per the provisions of the SEBI Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this Information
Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its review / approval.

2.4 DISCLAIMER OF THE TRUSTEE
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Tlie Issuer confirms that all necessary disclosures have been made in the Information Memorandum
including but not limited to statutory and other regulatory disclosures. Investors should carefully read
and note the contents of the Information Memorandum. Each prospective investor should make its
own independent assessment of the merit of the investment in the Debentures and the Issuer.
Prospective investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and other professional advisors as
to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the Debentures and should
possess the appropriate resources to analyze such investment and suitability of such investment to
such investor's particular circumstance. Prospective investors are required to make their own
independent evaluation and judgment before making the investment and are believed to be
experienced in investing in debt markets ancTare able to bear the economic risk of investing in such
instruments. The Debenture Trustee, ipso facto do not have the obligations of a borrower or a
principal debtor or as to the monies paid/invested by investors for the Debentures.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issue is made in India to investors as specified under the clause titled "Persons who may apply"
of this Information Memorandum, who shall be specifically approached by the Issuer. This
Information Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to

Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically addressed. Any disputes
arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts and tribunals at
Delhi. This Information Memorandum does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe

to the Debentures herein, in any other jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an
offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.6 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or
recall the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Rating Agencies has based
its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Rating
Agencies do not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information and
is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such
information. Most entities whose bank facilities/instruments are rated by the Rating Agencies have
paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities/instruments.

2.7 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the
Depository(ies) for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take
necessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor
with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment to Investors on the Deemed Date
of Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and on
realisation of the Subscription Money.
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SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The foUowing are the risks relating to the Issuer, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged
by the management of the Issuer. An investment in Debentures involves a high degree of risk.
Investors should carefully consider each of the following risk factors and all the information set forth
in this Information Memorandum before making an investment in the Debentures. The risks and
uncertainties described in this section are not the only risks that the Issuer currentlyfaces. Additional
risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Issuer may also have an adverse effect on the
Issuer's business, results of operations and financial condition. If any particular or some
combinations of the following risks or other risks that are not currently known actually occur, the
business prospects, results of operations and financial condition of the Issuer could be adversely
affected. The actual occurrence ofsuch risks will also affect the trading price of the Debentures and
the value of your investment could decline or be lost.

3.1 Risk Factors in relation to the Debentures

(a) Taxation

Potential purchasers and sellers of the Debentures should be aware that they may be required
to pay taxes in accordance with the laws and practices of India. Payment and/or delivery of
any amount due in respect of the Debentures will be conditional upon the payment of all
applicable taxes, duties and/or expenses.

Potential investors who are in any doubt as to their tax position should consult their own
independent tax advisers. In addition, potential investors should be aware that tax regulations

'  and their application by the relevant taxation authorities change from time to time.
Accordingly, it is not possible to predict the precise tax treatment which will apply at any
given time.

(b) Interest Rate Risk

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered are subject to price risk. The price of
such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest
rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices
increase. The extent of fluctuation in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to
maturity and the increase or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates. Any increase in
rates of interest is likely to have a negative effect on the price of the Debentures.

(c) The Debentures may be Illiquid

It is not possible to predict if and to what extent a secondary market may develop in the
Debentures or at what price the Debentures will trade in the secondary market or whether
such market will be liquid or illiquid. As specified in this Information Memorandum, the
Debentures are proposed to be listed on the BSE and an in-principle approval has been
obtained. If the Debentures are so listed or quoted or admitted to trading on the BSE, no
assurance is given that any such listing or quotation or admission to trading will be
maintained. The fact that the Debentures may be so listed or quoted or admitted to trading
does not necessarily lead to greater liquidity than if they were not so listed or quoted or
admitted to trading.

The Company may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase the Debentures at any price in
the open market or by tender or private agreement. Any Debentures so purchased may be
resold or surrendered for cancellation. The more limited the secondary market is, the more
difficult it may be for holders of the Debentures to realise value for the Debentures prior to
redemption of the Debentures.
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(d) Downgrading in credit rating

The Debentures have been rated by the Rating Agencies as having AAA (SO) rating for the
issuance of Debentures.

The Company cannot guarantee that this rating will not be downgraded. Such a downgrade in
the credit rating may lower the value oif the Debentures and may also affect the Company's
ability to raise further debts.

(e) The Company has limited sources of funds to fulfil its obligations under the Debentures

If there is a shortfall in- any amounts then due and payable pursuant to the terms of the
Debentures, the Company may not have sufficient funds to make payments on the Debentures
and the Debenture Holders may incur a loss on the Debenture amount, if any. The ability of
the Company to meet its obligations to pay any amounts due to the Debenture Holders under
the Debentures will ultimately be dependent upon funds being received from its business
activities. The Company is therefore generally exposed to the credit risk of the relevant
counterparties in respect of such paymen^.

(f) The Debentures may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Potential investors should ensure that they understand the nature of the Debentures and the
extent of their exposure to risk, that they have sufficient knowledge, experience and access to
professional advisers such as legal, tax, accounting and other advisers to make their own
legal, tax, accounting and financial evaluation of the merits and risks of investment in the
Debentures and that they consider the suitability of the Debentures as an investment in the
light of their own circumstances and financial condition. An investment in the Debentures
involves risks. These risks may include, among others, equity market risks, bond market risks,
interest rate risks, market-volatility and economic, political and regulatory risks and any
combination of these and other risks.

(g) The company's negative net worth position currently may render it a not so suitable
investment option for all categories of investors

As on March 31, 2017, the networth of the Company was marginally negative. If this
financial position were to continue, it may make it more difficult or expensive for the
Company to obtain future financing or meet liquidity needs. As on August 31, 2017, the
networth of the Company was negative INR 1.16 crores.

(h) The t^vo series of debentures have different rights attached to them and investors should
do their own due diligence in ascertaining whether a certain series of debentures
represents a suitable investment ^

The Debentures which constitute the Series B NCDs are subordinated to the Debentures

which constitute the Series A NCDs in terms of priority of payments and entitlement to
proceeds from the enforcement of security interests as well as cash flow from the escrow
accounts. The holders of such Debentures which constitute the Series B NCDs are hence more

exposed to payment default and recovery risks.

(i) Delays in court proceedings in India

If any dispute arises between the Company and any other party, the Company or such other
party may need to take recourse to judicial proceedings before courts in India. It is not

19



Information Memorandum
For Private Circulation only

unusual for court proceedings in India to continue for extended periods. Disposition of cases
may be further subject to various delays including multiple levels of appellate adjudication.

(j) Exercise of powers by the Debenture Trustee is subject to equitable principles and
supervisor)' powers of courts

The exercise by the Debenture Trustee of the powers and remedies conferred on it under the
Debentures and the Debenture Documents or otherwise vested in it by law, will be subject to
general equitable principles regarding the enforcement of security, the general supervisory
powers and discretion of the Indian courts in the context thereof and the obtaining of any
necessary governmental or regulatory consents, approvals, authorisations or orders.

(k) Debenture Trustee has the right to agree to certain amendments without consent of
Debenture Holders

t

The Debenture Trustee has the right, without requiring the consent of the Debenture Holders
to agree to any modification to the Debenture Document which is, in its opinion, of a formal
minor or technical nature or to correct a manifest error. The Debenture Trustee may also so
agree to any modification to the Debenture Document that is, in its opinion, not materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Debenture Holders.

(I) The right of the Debenture Holders to receive payments under the Debentures will be
junior to certain tax and other liabilities preferred by law

The Company will be applying for a no-objection certificate from the income tax authorities
under section 281 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of the security to be created for the
Debentures. The Company cannot guarantee that this no-objection certificate will be granted,
and if such certificate is not available prior to creation of the security, the assets subject to the
security may be subject to prior claims by the income tax authorities.

The Debentures will be subordinated to certain liabilities preferred by law such as claims of
the Government of India on account of taxes and certain liabilities incurred in the ordinary
course of the Company's business (including workmen's dues). Upon an order for winding-up
in India, the assets of a company are vested in a liquidator who has wide powers to liquidate
such company to pay its debt and administrative expenses.

(m) Receipt of coupon or principal is subject to the credit risk of the Company.

Investors should be aware that the receipt of any coupon payment and principal amount at
maturity is subject to the credit risk of the Company. Any stated credit rating of the Company
reflects the independent opinion of the referenced rating agency as to the creditworthiness of
the rated entity but is not a guarantee of credit quality of the Company. Any downgrading of
the credit ratings of the Company by the rating agency may lower the value of the
Debentures.

3.2 Rislts in Relation to Indian Market, Economy and Political Situation

(a) Future legal and regulatory obstructions

The central and state governments serve multiple roles in the Indian economy, including
producers, consumers and regulators, which may have a significant influence on the
Company. Future government policies and changes in laws and regulations in India, including
applicable foreign exchange laws and comments, statements, policy changes or any adverse
interpretation of applicable law by any regulator, including but not limited to the SEBl or the
RBI, may adversely affect the Debentures. The timing and content of any new law or
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regulation is not within the Company's control and such new law, regulation, comment,
statement, policy change or adverse interpretation by any regulator could have an adverse
effect on the market for and the price of the Debentures

A repeat of incidents like demonetisation or implementation of new tax regimes like the
Goods and Services Tax may impact the business prospects of the company

(b) Terrorist attacks, civil unrest, regional conflicts and other acts of violence or war
involving India and other countries could adversely affect the flnancial markets and
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition and

results of operations.

Certain events that are beyond the control of the Company such as terrorist attacks and other
acts of violence or war may negatively affect the Indian markets and also adversely affect the
worldwide financial markets and could potentially lead to a severe economic recession. These
acts may also result in a loss of business confidence, make travel and other services more
difficult and ultimately adversely affect the Company's business. India has experienced
communal disturbances, terrorist attacks and riots during recent years. If such events recur,
the Company's business may be adversely affected. Hostilities and tensions may occur in the
future and on a wider scale. Military activity or terrorist attacks in India, as well as other acts
of violence or war could influence the Indian economy by creating a greater perception that
investments in India involve higher degrees of risk. Events of this nature in the future, as well
as social and civil unrest in India, could influence the economy and could have a material
adverse effect on the market for securities of Indian companies.

(c) India is vulnerable to natural disasters that could severely disrupt normal business
operations.

India has experienced natural calamities, such as tsunamis, floods, cyclones, droughts and
earthquakes in the past few years. The extent and severity of these natural disasters
determines their impact on the Indian economy and infrastructure. Unforeseen circumstances
of below normal rainfall and other natural calamities could also have a negative impact on the
Indian economy. Because the Company's business and operations could be interrupted or
delayed as a result of a natural disaster in India, such natural disasters could affect its
business, financial condition and results of operations.

(d) Possibility of material changes in the accounts of the company post transitioning to
IndAS

Since the Company has to prepare its financial statements in accordance with the recently
introduced Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS), there could be material changes in the
financial statements of the Company in comparison with the financial statements prepared in
the previous years.

3.3 Risk Factors in relation to the Company

(a) The Company's revenues from the toll road can be subject to signiflcant fluctuations
due to changes in trafflc volumes. Decline in traffic volumes could also adversely affect
revenues.

The Company's toll revenues depend on toll receipts and are affected by changes in traffic
volumes. Traffic volumes are directly or indirectly affected by a number of factors, many of
which are outside the Company's control, including toll rates, fuel prices, the affordability of
automobiles, the quality, convenience and travel time on alternate routes outside the
Company's network and the availability of alternate means of transportation, including rail
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networks and air transport. Moreover, the Company's cash flows are affected by seasonal
factors, which may adversely affect traffic volumes

Traffic volumes are also influenced by the convenience and extent of a toll road's connections
with other parts of the local and national highway and toll road network, as well as the cost,
convenience and availability of other means of transportation. Revenue from toll receipts is
affected by traffic volume and tariff rates, both of which are outside the Company's control.
The tariff structure is fixed upon acceptance of a project and the Company does not have the
ability to change it. In the event that the Company experiences a significant decrease in traffic
volumes on toil roads, the Company may experience a corresponding decrease in its revenues,
and its profitability, cash flows, financial condition and results of operations may be
materially and adversely affected.

(b) The Company may be subject to increases in operations and maintenance costs, which
may adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

The operation and maintenance costs of the Company's road projects may increase due to
factors beyond the Company's control, including:
(i) the standards of maintenance or road safety applicable to projects prescribed by the

relevant regulatory authorities;
(ii) the requirement to restore projects in the event of any landslides, floods, road

subsidence, other natural disasters accidents or other events causing structural damage
or compromising safety;

(iii) higher axle loading, traffic volume or environmental stress leading to more extensive
or more frequent heavy repairs or maintenance costs. The cost of major repairs may
be substantial and repairs may adversely affect traffic flows;

(iv) inability of the operation and maintenance contractor to fulfill contractual obligations.
In such a scenario, the Company may have to replace the contractor which could
result in escalation in operation and maintenance expenses; or

(v) costs related to overlaying of the roads, which may be required as part of major
maintenance, may go up due to increase in underlying commodity prices.

Such factors may reduce the Company's profits and could adversely affect its business
operations, financial condition and prospects.

(c) Contingent liabilities could adversely affect the Company's financial condition

Tlie Company has certain litigations related to tax outstanding which in case of an adverse
outcome could affect the Company's financial position adversely. The Company may also
incur additional liabilities in the future on account of contracts remaining to be executed and
which have not been provided for.

(d) The Company's employee attrition rate may increase to a level where it is not able to
sustain deliverables at a given point of time.

The Company's ability to retain skilled employees depends on it having in place appropriate
compensation and incentive schemes. The Company believes it pays competitive
compensation packages and benefits to its employees. The Company may need to continue to
increase the levels of monetary and non-monetary incentives to retain talent. However, given
the increasing wage levels and the increased competition for professionally qualified staff in
India, there can be no assurance that the employee attrition rate will not increase to an
unsustainable level or that it will be able to attract, recruit and retain experienced
professionals to replace the professionals leaving at that particular point of time. Employee
compensation in India is increasing at a rapid rate, which could result in increased costs
relating to engineers, managers and other mid-level professionals. The Company may need to
continue to increase levels of monetary and non-monetary incentives to retain talent.
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(e) Traffic saturation may occur on Company's toll roads and an inability to resolve this
problem could affect its operations.

Toll roads may experience high traffic levels and congestion at certain times of the day or on
certain days of the week. Although the Company may consider possible solutions and take
appropriate steps in order to ease traffic flow and reduce congestion on such roads, there can
be no assurance that the saturation problems will be resolved under conditions that are
economically satisfactory to the Company. This could also lead to user dissatisfaction and
could potentially reduce the traffic volume. In that case, the Company's business, financial
condition and operations could be adversely affected.

(f) Leakage of tolls collected on the Company's toll roads may adversely affect the
Company's revenues and earnings.

The Company's toll receipts are primarily dependent on the integrity of toll collection
systems. The Company generates revenues from toll roads through collection of tolls. In such
projects, generally each motorist pays a one-time entry tariff to the toll operator at the point of
entry to the toll roads based on the average trip distance calculated for all the users of the toll
road.

The level of revenues derived from the collection of tolls may be reduced by leakage through
toll evasion, fraud or technical faults in the Company's toll systems. If toll collection is not
properly monitored, leakage may reduce the Company's toll revenue. Although the Company
has systems in place to minimise leakage through fraud and pilfering, any significant failure
by the Company to control leakage in toll collection systems, could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's business, prospects, financial condition and operations.

(g) If the Company fails to keep pace with technical and technological developments in the
surface transportation infrastructure industry, it could adversely affect the Company's
business and results of operations.

To meet the needs of the Company's operations, the Company must regularly update existing
technology and acquire or develop new technology for the Company's surface transportation
infrastructure services. In addition, rapid and frequent technology and market demand
changes can often render existing technologies and equipment obsolete, requiring substantial
new capital expenditures and/or write-downs of assets. The Company's future success will
depend in part on the Company's ability to respond to technological advances and emerging
standards and practices in a cost-effective and timely basis. The Company's failure to
anticipate or to respond adequately to changing technical, market demands and/or client
requirements could adversely affect the Company's business and results of operations.
Further, the cost of implementing new technologies could be significant and could adversely
affect the Company's financial condition and results of operations.

(h) The Company may be subject to litigation claims in the ordinary course of its business.

From time to time, the Company may be subject to litigation arising out of its operations.
Damages claimed under any such litigation may be material or may be indeterminate, and the
outcome of such litigation could materially impact its business, results of operations or
financial condition. While the Company assesses the merits of each lawsuit and defends itself
accordingly, it may be required to incur significant expenses or devote significant resources to
defending itself against such litigation. In addition, the adverse publicity surrounding such
claims could have a material adverse effect on its business.
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(i) The Company depends on various contractors and their sub-contractors to operate and
maintain projects. Any delay, default or unsatisfactoi*}' performance by these third
parties could materially and adversely affect its ability to complete, effectively operate
or maintain projects.

The Company depends on the availability and skills of third party contractors and their sub
contractors for the operation and maintenance of projects. The Company does not have direct
control over the timing or quality of services, equipment or supplies provided by these
contractors. There can be no assurance that such contractors will continue to be available at

reasonable rates in the areas in which the Company conducts its operations. The Company
may also be exposed to risks relating to the quality of their services, equipment and supplies.

The contractors and sub-contractors may not be able to obtain adequate working capital or
other financing on favourable terms as and when required'for completing activities. As a
result, the Company assumes the risk of delayed or reduced payments, liquidated damages or
penalty amounts, or termination of contracts. Any of the foregoing factors could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, reputation and results
of operations.
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Set out in Annexure IV hereto
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SECTION 5: DISCLOSUXUES UNDER SEBI REGULATIONS

The Information Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Regulations
and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Schedule I of the SEBI
Regulations

5.1 Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee:
(a) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and resolution(s) to be passed by the

Board of Directors for the allotment of the Debentures;

Copies of audited Annual Reports for the last 3 (Three) years;
Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any;
Undertaking to the effect that (i) the Issuer would, till the redemption of the Debentures,
submit the latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and
standalone financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow
statement) and auditor qualifications, if any, to the Debenture Trustee within the timelines as
mentioned in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Further, the Company shall also promptly submit to the Debenture Trustee all the other
documents/intimations as are required to be submitted under the provisions of Regulation 56
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

5.2 Issuer Information

Name:

Registered office of the Issuer:

Telephone No:
Website:

E-mail:

\

Corporate office of the Issuer:

Compliance Officer of Issuer:
Address:

Telephone No.:
Fax No.:

E-mail:

CFO of Issuer:

Address:

Trustee to the Issue:

Address:

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (Formerly Known as
Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad TG
500029

+91 40 4017 9779

www.mbel.co.in

cs@mbel.co.in

B-806, 807, AdvantNavis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector

- 142, Noida 201305 (UP).

Raman Tyagi
H.No. B-5/206, Krishna Apra Gardens,7, Vaibhav Khand,
Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City, Ghaziabad 201014 UP;
+91 9810060630;

+91 120-4868330;
raman.tyagi@cubehighways.com

Mr. Narsinga Rao Challa
8-16-17, Near Sri Rama Temple, Nagavamsam Street,
Anakapalle Visakhapatnam 531001 AP

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
Office No. 83 - 87, 8th floor,
'Mittal Tower', 'B' Wing,
Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
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Contact Person:

Tel;

Email:

Registrar to the Issue:
Address:

Contact Person:

Tel:

Email:

Credit Rating Agencies:

Address:

Contact Person:

Tel:

Email Id:

Address:

Contact Person:

Tel:

Email Id:

Auditor of the Issuer:

(for FY 2017-18)
Address:

Telephone No.:
E-mail:

Website:
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Mr. Umesh Salvi

+91 22 4922 0501

umesh.salvi@ctltrustee.com

Karvy Computershare Private Limited.
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli,
Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad - 500 032
Mr. Hanumantha Rao Patri

+91 40 6716 1602

hanumantha.patri@karvy.com

India Ratings and Research Private Limited
601-9, Prakashdeep Building, 7 Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi -
110001

Mr. C. Vijay Kumar
+91-9962070053

Vijaykumar.c@indiaratings.co.in

Crisil Limited

Crisil House, Central Avenue, Hiranandani Business Park,
Powai, Mumbai - 400076

Ms. Sushmita Majumdar
+022-33423162

Sushmita.majumdar@crisil.com

Natvarlal Vepari & Company (Regn. No, 106971W)

Oricon House, 4th Floor, 12 , K. Dubash Marg, Mumbai-
400023

+91 0821025165

njayendran@nvc.in
NA

5.3 A brief summary of business / activities of Issuer and its line of business

(a) Overview:

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (MBEL) [Formerly Known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur
Expressways Limited] operates a 57kms 4-lane road stretch extending from Bharatpur to
Mahua on National Highway 11 (NH-11) in the state of Rajasthan, India. The concession
agreement for the road stretch was signed in October, 2005 between the company and the
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI) on a Build Operate Transfer (BOT) Toll basis
in October, 2005. Tlie concession is valid for a period of 25 years from the Appointed Date
and is valid till April, 2031. The project commenced commercial operations in May, 2009 and
has an operational history with steady toll collection for more than 8 years now.

Key features of the road stretch are as below:

Project Description

Type of Project

COD

Concession End Date

Mahua to Bharatpur 4-lane Section of NH-11

NHAI Toll Project

8 May, 2009

9 April, 2031
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Project Length

No. of toll plazas

FY17 Passenger Car Units
(Tollable PCUs)

FY17 toll collection

57.3kms

2 (Amoli and Ludhawai)

Amoli- 22,711

Ludhwai- 23,694

Rs. 58.1 crs

The layout of the road stretch is as given below with the part highlighted in black the toll road
under consideration

.fe J

a-aru

CO tuN

Concessic"^^'!!!
^ Cu^p

i I *'r<,rt*n
l-rrrj*i

v^>rv^

JaidUl r*?v»«sj

H3*5aro

To l^&Ot & KoU Fv*vi

U*.k

The toll road under consideration constitutes the central part of three road stretches
connecting the shortest route between Agra and Jaipur and has been depicted above

The Company was initially incorporated in 2005 by the Madhucon Group. In late 2015, the
Sponsor entered into an agreement with the Madhucon Group to purchase 100% shares of the
Company. 74% of the share transfer was completed in March 2016 with the balance
completed in 2017. The Sponsor is a professionally managed platform set up by I-Squared
Capital (ISQ) and IFC to acquire and operate a portfolio of road and other infrastructure
assets in India. ISQ is a global infrastructure fund with focus on energy, utility and transport
sectors in USA, Europe and select growth economies such as India and China

The road stretch under consideration is strategically located and underpinned by the fact that
this is part of the shortest road stretch between Agra and Jaipur, two important tourist
destinations in India. Moreover, Rajasthan is the source of large amounts of construction
material and stone which contributes to a significant portion of the commercial traffic
movement. Additionally, there are marble, granite and stone quarrying, as well as ceramics
industries along the route providing for the captive commercial traffic. The road also serves to
connect ports on the western cost with the interiors of Uttar Pradesh. As a result, the road
stretch has seen steady rise in toll collections with toll revenues growing at 14% between
FYll and FY17

(b) Corporate Structure:

The Company has the following offices:

(i) Registered office situated at 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad
TG 500029;

(ii) Corporate office situated at B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector
- 142, Noida 201305 (UP); and

(iii) Site office situated at Amoli Toll plaza, NH-21 (Earlier NH-II), Village: Amoli,
Tehsil: Weir, District: Bharatpur, Rajasthan.
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The Company has no subsidiaries or branches.

(c) Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding of new projects:

The details of the Project are as follows:

(i) Project length, location, date of signing of concession agreement, concession period,
annuity and COD:

Project Project
Length

Location of the

Project
Date of signing of
the Concession

Agreement

Concession

Period

Annuity COD

57 KM (63 to
120),
Bharatpur To
Mahua Section

ofNH-U

57 Km State of Rajasthan October 13, 2005 Until April,
2031

NA May 08,
2009

(ii) Details of the structures: Please refer to Schedule A of the Concession Agreement for
detailed list of structures. A copy of the Concession Agreement has been made
available to the Debenture Trustee and is available for inspection by any person to
whom this Information Memorandum is addressed.

(iii) Current status and physical progress of the Project: Completed.

(iv) Details regarding operations and maintenance of the Project as well as tolling operations: The
construction of the Project is completed. Cube Highways has a well-equipped team of
professionals to manage the routine affairs at toll plaza and the maintenance of the road.
MBEL's senior management consists of an experienced traffic consultant who has over 30
years of experience in conducting traffic studies of prominent stretches, a veteran with sound
expertise in toll management, and professionals with deep understanding of the technical
specifications and advanced methods of operations and maintenance (O&M) to proactively
tackle the maintenance of the road projects. This is further supported by an experienced
finance and legal team. MBEL uses advanced road-testing mechanisms to prioritize
maintenance options on the basis of the life-cycle cost of the assets. The use of advanced
technology and management's extensive experience is expected to help in stringent
monitoring of the toll operations, effective maintenance and avoidance of any structural
damage to the road.

(v) Project expense /cost and means of funding:

Description FYll-12(mRs.Crores)

Project cost 387.93

Details of Cash inflow

Promoters equity 99.36

Term loan 250.17

NHAI grant 38.40

Total Funding 387.93
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(d) Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years (on a standalone
basis):

Parameters

(Figures in Rs.)

FY2017

(Audited)

FY 2016

(Audited)

FY20T5

(Audited)

Networth' -92,38,533 28,39,89,474 35,09,98,447

Total Debt 2,71,50,51,760 2,45,90,06,170 2,08,97,50,000

Comprising of Non-

Current

Maturities

of Long
Term

Borrowing^

2,69,18,49,548 2,29,95,87,299 1,90,56,00,000

Short Term

Borrowing
0 0 0

Current

Maturities

of

Long Term
Borrowing

2,32,02,212 15,94,18,871 18,41,50,000

Net Fixed Assets 3,03,63,73,635 3,14,43,27,446 3,28,20,93,144

Non-Current Assets 40,23,243 34,74,243 34,74,243

Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,60,84,428 ,13,18,70,271 82,95,578

Current Investments 0 0 0

Current Assets 8,52,84,287 20,42,62,284 22,90,60,594

Current Liabilities 38,16,67,150 53,26,13,031 58,69,62,217

Net Sales^ 66,24,11,027 67,68,90,865 64,25,34,248

EBITDA" 21,41,82,698 35,87,34,789 35,63,99,377

EBir' 9,88,94,287 22,07,87,090 22,94,04,193

Interest^ 34,08,61,740 29,16,97,570 28,05,66,651

PAT® -29,32,28,007 -6,70,08,973 -47,88,64,343

Equity Dividend amounts 0 0 0

Current ratio (x) 0.22 0.38 0.39

Interest Coverage Ratio (x)"* 0.29 0.76 0.82

Gross Debt/ Equity Ratio (x)' -293.88 8.66 5.95

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (x)^ 0.61 0.82 0.89

Notes:

1. Negative Net^vorth as a result of brought forward losses
2. Includes Subordinated Sponsor Debt infused by Cube Highways
3. Includes investment income, operational grants etc. over and above toll revenues
4. Operational expenses includes non-cash expenses in the form of Provisions for

Major Maintenance

5. Includes interest on sponsor debt
6. Includes impact of exceptional items in PAT for FY15

(e) Gross Debt Equity Ratio of the Company^:
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Before the issue of the Debentures -293.88

After the issue of the Debentures -293.63

*Note: As per audited numbers of FY2017 no change in Debt Equity Ratio since the
refinancing to take place of the existing outstanding balance. Computation of Debt to Equity
ratio considers Gross Debt of Rs. 271.51 crores and negative Shareholders' Funds of Rs. 0.9
crores

(f) Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation

(i) Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end i.e. September 30,2017:

Share Capital Aggregate value at face valiie (In Rs.)

A) AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

10,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 /- each 100,00,00,000

Total 100,00,00,000

B) ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

SHARE CAPITAL

99,360,000 Equity shares of Rs.lO /- each 99,36,00,000

Total 99,36,00,000

(ii) Changes in its capital structure till the last quarter end i.e. September 30, 2017 for the
last five years:

Date of Change Rs. Particular

NIL

(ill) Equity Share Capital History of the Company in the past five years, till the last quarter
end i.e. September 30,2017:

Date of

Allotment

No of

Equity
Shares

Face

Value

(Rs)

Issue

Price

(Rs)

Consideration

(Cashj other
than cash,

etc)

Nature of

Allotment

Cumulative Equity
Share

Premium"

(in Rs.)

No. of

equity
shares

Equity
Share

Capital

NIL

(iv) Details of any Acquisition or Amalgamation in the last 1 (One) year:

The Company has been taken over by Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte Limited on
March 29, 2016. The change in the shareholding of the Company during the last 1 (One) year
is as follows:

S.N6. Date of

Registration of
Transfer

Name of Transferor No. of

shares

transfe

rred

Amoun

t  Per

share

Name of transferee

1. 14-04-2016 Srei Infrastructure Finance

Limited

26,000 10 Madhucon Infra Limited
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2. 22/08/2016 Sourabh Gupta 100 10 Jayant Goel

3. 19/01/0017 Madhucon Projects Limited 1,00,000 10 Madhucon Toil

Highways Limited

4. 23/01/2017 Madhucon Toll Highways
Limited

2,58,07,

600

10 Cube Highways and
Infrastructure Pte

Limited

5. 22/09/2017 Anuradha Diwan 100 31 Gaurav Malhotra

6. 22/09/2017 Digvijay Singh 100 31 Vinay C Sekar

7. 22/09/2017 Ayant Gupta 100 31 Ankit Jain

8. 06/10/2017 Apama Goel 100 31 Sandeep Lakhanpal

9. 07/10/2017 Amit Bhushan 100 31 Rohan Sharma

10. 07/10/2017 Jayant Goel 100 31 Amit Bindal

(v) Details of any Reorganization or Reconstruction in the last 1 (One) year:

N.A.

(g) Details of the Equit}' shareholding of the Company as on the latest quarter end, i.e.
September 30,2017:

(i) Equity Shareholding pattern of the Company as on last quarter end, i.e. September 30,
2017:

Sr. No. Name of the Shareholder Total no. of

Equity Shares
held

No. of

Equity
Shares held

in Physical
Form

Total'Shareholding as % of
total no. of Equity Shares

1.
Cube Highways and
Infrastructure PTE Limited

99333400 99333400 99.973229%

2. Madhucon Infra Limited 26000 0 0.026167%

3.

Jayant K Goel
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

4.

Vinay C Sekar
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

5.

Gaurav Malhotra

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

6..

Ankit Jain

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

7.

Aparna Goel
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

100 100 0.000101%
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Limited)

8.

Amit Bhusan

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

Total '99360000 99334000 100.00%

(ii) List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on the latest quarter end, i.e.
September 30, 2017:

S. No.
Name of the Shareholder

Total no. of.

Equity Shares

held

No. of

Equity
Shares in

Physical
form

Total shareholding as % of
total no. of Equity Shares

1.
Cube Highways and
Infrastructure PTE Limited

99333400 99333400 99.973229%

2. Madhucon Infra Limited 26000 0 0.026167%

3.

Jayant K Goel
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

4. .

Vinay C Sekar
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

5.

Gaurav Malhotra

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 '  0.000101%

6.

Ankit Jain

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

7.

Aparna Goel
(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

8.

Amit Bhusan

(Nominee of Cube Highways
and Infrastructure PTE

Limited)

100 100 0.000101%

Total 99360000 99334000 -100%

(h) Following details regarding the directors of the Company:

(i) Details of current directors of the Company*:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company's Board of Directors as on date of the
Information Memorandum:
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Name, Designation,

Occupation and DIN Age Address

Director of

the Issuer

since

Details of other

Directorships
(as on 30/06/2017)

Akhil Kumar Jain

Designation: Independent
Director

Occupation: Retired IAS
Officer

DIN: 07521882

67

G-02, Amrapali
Sapphire, Sector
45,Noida-201303,

Gautam Buddh

Nagar, Uttar

Pradesh

28/07/2016
A*

Ravindranath Karati

Designation: Non-Executive
Director Occupation:
Service

DIN:07419535

46

Flat No. A-2, 2nd
Floor, Sri Sathya
Sai Aptt., H. No.
8-2-

293/K/309&310,
Kamalapuri Cny,
Phase-Ill,
Hyderabad,
Telangana-
500073

29.03.2016
NIL

Andrew Lewis

Designation: Executive
Director

Occupation: Service
DIN: 07420188

40

Flat No. 413, 1st
Floor, Plot No.

15C Delhi Appt,
Dwarka Sector

22, New Delhi,
Delhi - 110075

29.03.2016
NIL

Ashok Gupta
Designation: Independent
Director

Occupation: Practicing
Professional

DIN:00056829

54

B-24, Sarvodya
Enclave New

Delhi- 110017

29.03.2016

B*

Vasundhara Peddapalle
Designation: Woamn
Director

Occupation: Service
DIN:07418305

43

Mu. Kokangaon,
Ojhar T.S.,
Nashik,
Maharashtra,

422207

29.03.2016
c*

Raman Tyagi
Designation: Non-Executive
Director

Occupation: Service
DIN: 06752578

63

S-34, Greater

Kailash-ll, New

Delhi-110048

04/08/2014 D* '

None of the Directors of the Company appear on the RBI Defaulter list and/or the ECGC Defaulter
list.

A*
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Name^ of the Companies/Bodies
Corporate/Firms/Association of Individuals

Name of the Interested

Director

Nature of interest or

concern/Change in
Interest or concern

Jaipur Mahua Tollway Private Limited Akhil Kumar Jain Director

Andhra Pradesh Expressways Limited Akhil Kumar Jain Additional Director

Western UP Tollway Limited Akhil Kumar Jain Director

B*

Names of the Companies/Bodies
Corporate/Firms/Association of Individuals

Name of the Interested

Director

Nature of interest or

concern/Change in
Interest or concern

Alliance Strategies Limited Ashok Gupta Director & Member

Alliance Corporate Advisors Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

AG Advisory Services Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director & Member

Boutique Hotels India Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

NVP Venture Capital India Private Limited Ashok Gupta Alternate Director

Dhanlaxmi Infrastructure Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

Devi Business Hotels Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

HCC Concessions Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Raiganj-Dalkhola Highways Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Farakka-Raiganj Highways Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Badarpur-Faridabad Tollway Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Baharampore-Farakka Highways Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Narmada Bridge Tollway Limited Ashok Gupta Nominee Director

Aviation Training Academy Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

Brightbridge Advisors LLP Ashok Gupta Designation Partner

Bright Bridge Solutions Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director& Member

Andhra-Pradesh Expressway Limited Ashok Gupta Independent Director

Shriram Properties & Infrastructure Private
Limited

Ashok Gupta Director

Noida Towers Private Limited Ashok Gupta Director

Western UP Tollway Limited Ashok Gupta Independent Director

Gateway Office Parks Pvt. Ltd. Ashok Gupta Director

C*

Names of the Companies/Bodies
Corporate/Firms/Association of
Individuals

Name of the

Interested

Director

Nature of interest or

concern/Change in Interest or
concern

Andhra Pradesh Expressways Limited

Vasundhara

Paddapalle Additional Director

D*
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Names of the Companies/Bodies
Corporate/Firms/Association of
Individuals

Name of the

Interested

Director

Nature of interest or

concern/Change in Interest or
concern,

Jaipur-Mahua Tollway Private Limited Raman Tyagi Director

Andhra Pradesh Expressway Limited Raman Tyagi Director

Western UP Tollway Limited Raman Tyagi Director

(ii) Details of change in directors since last three years:

Name, Designation
and DIN

Date of Appointment/
Resignation

Director of the Company since
(in case of resignation) '

Remarks

Srinivasa Rao

Kamma, Director

23.03.2005 23.03.2005 Resigned effective
from 23.01.2017

DIN:00022855

Nama Krishnaiah,
Director

1

DIN: 00022778

16.12.2009 16.12.2009 Resigned effective
from 29.03.2016

Madhu Malampati,

Director

09.06.2008 09.06.2008 Resigned effective
from 29.03.2016

DIN: 00368625

Kumar Venkata

Naga Prasad

Kandimalla

Director

19.10.2015 19.10.2015 Resigned effective'
from 29.03.2016

DIN: 00084398

Gummi Sangeetha

Rani

29.10.2015 29.10.2015 Resigned effective
from 29.03.2016

Director (Woman

Independent

Director)

DIN: 02357883

Andrew Lewis,

Executive Director

DIN: 7420188

29.03.2016
t

NA

Ravindranath

Karati, Non-

29.03.2016
NA
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Executive Director

DIN: 07419535

Vasundhara

Peddapalle,

Woman Director

DIN:07418305

29.03.2016

NA

/

y

Ashok Gupta,

Independent

Director

DIN: 00056829

29.03.2016

NA
•

Jayant Goel,

Independent

Directo

DIN:01925642

29.03.2016

NA

Akhil Kumar Jain,

Independent

Director

DIN: 07521882

29.03.2016 29.03.2016 Resigned with ' effect
from 29.07.2016

(i) Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:

(!) Details of the auditor of the Company:

Name of the Auditor Address Auditor since

Natvarlal Vepari &
Company (Regn. No,
106971W)

Oricon House, 4^^ Floor, 12 , K. Dubash Marg,
Mumbai-400023

Appointed in AGM, 2017
(06.07.2017)

(ii) Details of change in auditors since last three years:

Name Address Date of

Appointment /
Resignation

Auditor of the

Company since
in case of

resignation)

Remari^

Gianender & Associates Plot No. 6 ,
Site No. 21 ,
Geeta Mandir

Marg, New
Rajinder

AGM 2008,

(23.08.2008)
Tenure of the Auditor

was over in AGM,
2017 as per the
Companies Act
provisions
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Nagar, New
Delhi-110060

(j) Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end September 30, 2017:

(i) Details of Secured Loan Facilities

Lender's Name
Type of
Facility

Amt

Sanctioned

(in Rs.

Million)

Principal
Amt

outstanding
(in Rs.
Million)

Repayment

Date/

Schedule

Security

HDFC Bank

Limited

Term Loan 691.29

HDFC Bank

Limited

Term Loan 29.69

As

mentioned

in table

below*

L  & T

Infrastructure

Finance Co.

Limited

Term Loan 660.86

L  & T

Infrastructure

Finance Co.

Limited

Term Loan 28.37

Aditya Birla
Finance

Limited

Term Loan 506.30

2080

Moveable assets

including Plant and
Machinery, Machinery
Spares, tools and
accessories, furnitures,

fixtures, vehicles and
other moveable assets,
save for the project
assets;

Borrower's accounts

(including Debt Service
Reserve Account,

permitted investment
and any other bank
accounts, other than the
distribution account,

receivables and cash in

hand in accounts

All receivables,
revenues and all

authorised investments

or other securities,

excluding project assets

All Intangible asses
including goodwill,
uncalled capital and
present and future
undertaking.

All current assets,

including but not
limited to, book debts,
operating cash flows,
receivable,
commissions and

revenues, both present
and future

Rights, titles and
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benefits under Project
Documents, including
right to receive
Liquidated damages in
terms of transaction

documents and

termination payments
as per Concession
Agreement.

All Insurance Contracts

as described in

Schedule 13 of Rupee
Loan Agreement

Negative Lien over all
Immovable Properties,
except Project Assets.

Pledge of 51% of the
Shareholding of the
Borrower on a fully
diluted basis

Loan Amount 185.69 8.00 In Crore In Crore

S.no Year Facility A Facility B Re-payment A Re Payment-B

1 2016 0 0
*

2 2017 0.70% 0.70% 1.30 0.06

3 2018 1.25% 1.25% 2.32 0.10

4 2019 2.40% 2.40% 4.46 ,  0.19

5 2020 3.80% 3.80% 7.06 0.30

6 2021 5.40% 5.40% 10.03 0.43

7 2022 5.50% 5.50% 10.21 0.44

8 2023 6.75% 6.75% 12.53 ■  0.54

9 2024 7.75% 7.75% ,  14.39 0.62

10 2025 9.75% 9.75% 18.10 0.78

11 2026 12.60% 12.60% 23.40 1.01

12 2027 , 13.86% 13.86% 25.74 1.11

13 2028 15.12% 15.12% 28.08 1.21

14 2029 15.12% 15.12% 28.08 1.21

The payment will be in 12 equal installments and will be paid on 1®* of every month,

(ii) Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities:

Lenders Name Type of Facility Amount Principal Repayinent Date
f

Sanctioned Outstanding
(Million) (Million)
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Cube Infrastructure NCD's 792.7379 792.7379 Whenever

Investment Co. Pte. Ltd. Surplus funds
available

(iii) Details of Non-Convertible Debentures

Debenture

series

Tenor/

period

of

maturity

Coupon Amount

(Rs.)

Date of

allotment

Redemption
schedule

Credit

ratine

Secured

/unsecured

Security

INE835H08011 15 years
1 Month

SBI base

rate + 500

bps

64

crores

20 lakhs

42 crores

Eighty Five
laklis Eight
Hundred

Seventy
Three was

allotted on

29.03.2016,

6 lakhs

Twenty Five
Thousand

Six Hundred

Twenty
Seven was

allotted on

14.04.2016

and Fifteen

lakh Eight .
Thousand

Five

Hundred

was allotted

on

29.04.2016

Whenever

surplus
funds

available

NA Un

Secured

NA

INE835H08029 April
28,
2031

As

mutually
agreed
between

the issuer

and

subscriber

5 crores

7 lakhs

Thirty
Seven

thousand

Nine

hundred

09.02.2017 Whenever

funds are

available

NA Un

Secured

NA

INE835H08037 8 Years

2

Months

SBI base

rate + 500

bps

10

crores

Rs. 5 lakli

was allotted

on

04.02.2016

and Five

lakh was '

allotted on

23.02.2016

Whenever

funds are

available

NA Un

Secured

NA
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(iv) List of Top 10 Debenture Holders as at September 30,2017:

Sr.

No.

Name of Debenture

Holders
Amount (Million)

1. Cube Infrastructure Investment Co. Pte. Ltd. INR 792.7379

(v) Amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with the name of the counter
party on behalf of whom it has been:

NIL

(vi) Foreign bank guarantees/ SBLC issued on behalf of the Issuer:

NIL ■

(vii) Details of Commercial Paper:

NIL

(viii) Details of other borrowings:

NIL

(ix) In the past five years, until the acquisition of the Issuer by Cube Highways Infrastructure Pte.
Ltd (which happened in March 30, 2016) there were multiple counts of delays due to which
the Issuer was assigned a credit rating of D. However, post the acquisition of the Company
by Cube Highways Infrastructure Pte. Ltd (which happened in March 30, 2016) there have
been no default/s by the Issuer, nor have there been any delays in payments of interest and
principal of any kind of term loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including
corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer.

(x) As of September 30, 2017, there are no outstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued
where taken / issued (i) for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a
premium or discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option.

(k) Details of Promoter holding in Company as on the latest quarter end, i.e. September 30,
2017:

Sr.

No.

Name of the

shareholders

Total no. of Equity
Shares

No. of Equity Shares
in Physical form

Total

shareholding
as % of total

no. of Equity
Shares

No. of

Equity
Shares

pledged

% of

Equity
Shares

pledged
with

respect

to

shares

owned

1. Cube

Highways
And

Infrastructure

Pte. Ltd.

99,333,400 99,333,400 99.97 50,673,600 51

2. Jayant K
Goel

100 100 .0001 — —

3. Digviiay 100 100 .0001 — —
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Singh

4. Anuradha

Diwan

100 100 .0001 — —

5. Ayant Gupta ICQ 100 .0001 -- —

6. Apama Goel 100 100 .0001 — —

7. Amit

Bhushan

100 100 .0001 — —

Total 9,93,34,000 9,93,34,000 99.9706% 50,673,600 51%

(I) Abridged version of the audited standalone financial information (like profit and loss
statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) for at least last three years and

auditor qualifications, if any.

Attached to this Information Memorandum in Annexure IV.

(m) Abridged version of latest audited/unaudited standalone financial information (like
profit and loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and auditors
qualification, if any.

Attached to this Information Memorandum in Annexure IV.

(n) Any material event/ development or change having implications on the financials/credit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer/promoters, tax
litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event, etc.) at the time
of Issue which may affect the issue or the investor's decision to invest / continue to invest
in the debt securities.

The issuer hereby declares that there has been no material event, development or change
having implications on the financials/credit quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings
against the Issuer/promoters, tax litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate
restructuring event, etc.) at the time of issue from the position as on the date of the last
audited financial statements of the Issuer, which may affect the issue or the investor's
decision to invest/ continue to invest in the debt securities of the Issuer.

5.4 Name and address of the Debenture Trustee

The Debenture Trustee is Catalyst Trustee Limited and its address has been set out in the
cover page. The Debenture Trustee has vide their letter dated 3T' August 2017 have given
their consent to the Issuer for their appointment as the Debenture Trustee for the aforesaid
issue under Regulation 4(4) of SEBI Regulations.

5.5 The rating rationale (s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of the
issue)/ credit rating letter issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the
issue) by the rating agencies

The Rating Agencies has assigned a rating of 'AAA (SO)' in respect of the Debentures.
Instruments with this rating are considered to have high degree of safety regarding timely
servicing of financial obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk. Please refer to
Annexure I of this Information Memorandum for, the letter dated 12"' October 2017 from
CRISIL, and 28"' September 2017 from India Ratings, assigning the credit rating
abovementioned and the rating rationale adopted by the Rating Agencies for the aforesaid
rating.
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Other than the credit ratings mentioned hereinabove, the Issuer has not sought any other credit
rating from any other credit rating agency for the Debentures offered for subscription under
the terms of this Disclosure Document.

5.6 If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document /
letter with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document
does not contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and
receipt of payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in
the offer document.

The Debentures are not backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other
document/letter with similar intent.

5.7 Copy of consent letter of Debenture Trustee to act as the debenture trustee to the issue

to be disclosed:

Attached to this Information Memorandum in Annexure n

5.8 The Debentures are proposed to be listed on WDM segment of BSE.

5.9 Other details

(a) DRR Creation:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, any company that intends to issue debentures
must create a debenture redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out
of the profits of the company until the redemption of the debentures. Accordingly, the
Company will create the necessary reserve to fulfill its obligations in relation to the
Debentures. ^

(b) Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 which have not been
repealed as yet, the rules made thereunder and the SEBI Regulations.

(c) Application process

The application process for the issue is as provided in Section 7 of this Information
Memorandum.
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5.10 Issue Details

Summary term sheet for Debentures

Please note that the Debenture Trust Deed to be executed in connection with the issuance of the
Debentures has been finalized, and the execution version of the same is available with the
Debenture Trustee for the purposes of review by any applicant. The key terms of the same have
been summarized below, however, in the event of any coiiflict between these terms and the
Debenture Trust Deed, the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed shall prevail.

Security Name Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

8.4% MBEL 2030 8.4% MBEL 2020

Issuer Mahua Bharatpiir Expressways Limited (Formerly Known as Madhucon Agra-
Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Type of
Instrument

Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

amounting Rs. 1,84,20,00,000/-
(Rupees One Hundred and Eighty Four
Crore and Twenty Lakh only) with
terms and conditions specified in this
term sheet. The Series A Debentures

shall comprise of 13 sub-series
numbered Series A1 - Series A 13, as

identified in Annexure VIII herein.

Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable,
Non-Convertible Debentures

amounting Rs. 7,80,00,000/- (Rupees
Seven Crore and Eighty Lakh only)
with terms and conditions specified in
this term sheet. The Series B

Debentures shall comprise of 3 sub-
series numbered B1 — Series-B 3, as

identified in Annexure VIII herein.

Nature of

Instrument

Secured

Senioritj' Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Senior Subordinated

Security Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

First pari-passu charge by way of
hypothecation of the First Hypothecated
Assets; and

First pari-passv charge-cum-assignment
by way of security created through
hypothecation/charge by way of
assignment or creation of charge over
the Second Hypothecated Assets

Second pari-passu charge by way of
hypothecation of the First Hypothecated
Assets; and

Second pari-passu charge-cum-
assignment by way of security created
through hypothecation/charge by way of
assignment or creation of charge over
the Second Hypothecated Assets.

Mode of Issue Private placement

Eligible Investors Only the following categories of investors, when specifically contacted, are eligible
to invest in these NCDs:

a. Individuals

b. Provident funds, Superannuation funds and Gratuity Funds

c. Mutual Funds

d. Companies, Body Corporates and Societies

e. Insurance Companies
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f. NBFCs and Residuary NBFCs

g. Banks

Any other investor authorized to invest in these NCDs

Listing On WDM segment of BSE Limited/

In case of delay in listing of the debt securities beyond 20 (Twenty) days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment the Company will pay penal interest of at least 1 %
(One Percent) p.a. over the Coupon Rate from the expiry of 30 (Thirty) days from
the Deemed Date of Allotment till the listing of the Debentures.

Issue Size Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Rs. 184,20,00,000/- (Rupees One
Hundred and Eighty Four Crore and
Twenty Lakh only). The Series A
Debentures shall comprise of 13 sub-
series numbered Series A1 — Series

A13, as identified in Annexure VHI

herein.

Rs. 7,80,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Crore
and Eighty Lakh only). The Series B
Debentures shall comprise of 3 sub-
series numbered Series B1 - Series

B3, .as identified in Annexure VIII

herein.

Option to retain
oversubscription

N.A.

Objects of the
Issue

To raise monies through issuance of the Debentures aggregating to Rs.
192,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Ninety Two Crore only)

Details of the

utilization of the

Proceeds

The proceeds realised by the Company from the issue of Debentures shall be
applied for refinancing of total outstanding debt of the Company and general
corporate purposes including the costs and expenses in relation to the Issue and
crediting funds to the DSRA

Coupon Rate Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

8.40% p.a. 8.40% p.a.

Step Up/ Step
Down Coupon
Rate

N.A

Coupon Payment
Frequency

Quarterly

Coupon payment
dates

Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Shall mean the dates as identified in

Annexure VUI

Shall mean the dates as identified in

Annexure VIII

Coupon Type Fixed

Coupon Reset
Process

N.A.

Day Count Basis Actual / Actual

Tenure Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Period commencing from the Deemed
Date of Allotment and expiring on
March 29,2030

Period commencing from the Deemed
Date of Allotment and expiring on
October 05, 2020

Redemption
Amount

Shall mean the amount identified in Schedule Annexure VIII.

w
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Redemption Date Shall mean the dates identified in Annexure VIII herein

Redemption

Premium/

Discount

N.A.

Issue Price Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh
only) per Debenture.

Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakh only)
per Debenture.

Discount at which

security is issued
and the effective

yield as a result of
such discount

N.A.

Minimum

Application size
The minimum application size for the Issue shall be 1 (One) Debenture and in
multiples of 1 (One) thereafter.

Put Option Date N.A

Put Option
Amount

N.A.

Put Notification

Time

N.A.

Call Option Date N.A.

Call Option
Amount

N.A.

Call Notification

Time

N.A.

Issue Schedule N.A.

\

Mandatory

Redemption
Event

Upon the occurrence of a Mandatory Redemption Event (described in paragraphs
(a), (b) and (d) of the definition of Mandatory Redemption Event), the Company
shall within 5 Business Days after the receipt into the Escrow Account of the
Termination Payment or the insurance proceeds (as the case may be), redeem
each Debenture in full by paying the Early Redemption Amount together with all
Default Interest and all other amounts payable under the Debenture Documents.

Upon the occurrence of a Mandatory Redemption Event (described in paragraph
(c) of the definition of Mandatory Redemption Event), the Company shall within
120 days of the occurrence of the event, redeem each Debenture in full by paying
the Early Redemption Amount together with all Default Interest and all other
amounts payable'under the Debenture Documents.

Change of Control
Redemption
Event

Unless otherwise approved by the Debenture Trustee, the Company shall ensure
that until such time as the Debt has been discharged in full the Sponsor shall (A)
own and shall continue to own, at least 51% of the paid-up equity share capital of
the Company; (B) have the right to appoint a majority of the directors or control
the management or policy decisions exercisable by the Company; (C) if the
Company becomes a part of an infrastructure investment trust structure, the
Sponsor shall be a sponsor in the trust; and (D) pursuant to an IPO, the Sponsor
shall continue to hold the largest shareholding in the Companv (for the purposes

V
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of this determination, shareholding of 'persons acting in concert' as defined in the
SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, shall
be aggregated).

If the Company proposes to deviate from any of the conditions set out above, the
Company shall obtain the prior written consent of the Debenture Trustee (such
consent not to be unreasonably withheld).

If the Debenture Trustee does not grant its consent, within 30 days of such notice,
as requested above, then the Company shall be entitled to deliver a notice (the
"Change of Control Redemption Event Notice") in writing to the Debenture
Trustee and redeem each of the outstanding Debentures in full within 60 Business
Days from the date of the Change of Control Redemption Event Notice by
paying, in respect of each Debenture to be redeemed, an amount equal to the
Accrued Amount together with all Default Interest (if any) and all other amounts
payable under the Debenture Documents in respect thereof.

Financial

Covenant

Redemption
Event

Upon the occurrence of a Financial Covenant Redemption Event, the Company
may deliver a notice (the "Financial Covenant Redemption Event Notice") in
writing to the Debenture Trustee and apply all amounts standing to the credit of
the Cash Retention Account, to redeem the Debentures in part or full, as the case
may be, together with all Default Interest and all other amounts payable under the
Debenture Documents in respect of the Nominal Value being redeemed.

Any redemption of Debentures pursuant to the paragraph above shall be made
such that: (a) such redemption is pro-rata across all the Debentures of all Series;
shall be done within two Business Days of the Financial Covenant Redemption
Event Notice; and (c) the Nominal Value of each Debenture after such
redemption is an amount rounded up to the nearest hundred (for which purpose
the Company shall adjust the amount in the Cash Retention Account being
applied to redeem the Debentures).

The Financial Covenant Redemption Event Notice shall specify: (a) the aggregate
amount in the Cash Retention Account to be applied towards redemption; (b) if
the Debentures are being redeemed in whole or in part; and (c) if redeemed in
part, the Nominal Value per Debenture being redeemed.

Mandatory
Financial

Covenant

Redemption
Event

Upon the occurrence of a Mandatory Financial Covenant Redemption Event, the
Debenture Trustee, shall deliver a notice (the "Mandatory Financial Covenant
Redemption Event Notice") in writing to the Company and shall require the
Company to apply all amounts standing to the credit of the Cash Retention
Account, to redeem the Debentures in part or full, as the case may be, together
with all Default Interest and all other amounts payable under the Debenture
Documents in respect of the Nominal Value being redeemed.

Any redemption of Debentures pursuant to the paragraph above shall be made
such that:

(a) such redemption is pro-rata across all the Debentures of all Series;
(b) shall be done within two Business Days of the Mandatory Financial Covenant
Redemption Event Notice; and
(c) the Nominal Value of each Debenture after such redemption is an amount
rounded up to the nearest hundred (for which purpose the Company shall adjust
the amount in the Cash Retention Account being applied to redeem the
Debentures). •
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The Mandatoi-y Financial Covenant Redemption Event Notice shall specify: (a)
the aggregate amount in the Cash Retention Account to be applied towards
redemption; (b) if the Debentures are being redeemed in whole or in part; and (c)
if redeemed in part, the Nominal Value per Debenture being redeemed.

Rating of
Instrument

'AAA (SO)' by India Ratings and Research Private Limited and Crisil Limited

Issuance mode of

the Instrument

Demat

Trading mode of
the Instrument

Demat

Settlement mode

of the Instrument

Cheque / Demand Draft / Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS / NEFT / RTGS / other
permitted mechanisms

Depositories NSDL & CDSL

Business Days A day (other than a Saturday/Sunday on which banks are open for genera!
business in Delhi

Record Date Means the date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holders who
shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any Due Date, which shall be the
date falling 15 (Fifteen) days prior to any Coupon Payment Date or Redemption
Date.

Interest on

Subscription
Money

Refer to Clause 7.28 of Section 7

Default Interest

Rate

Means the sum of Coupon Rate and 2% per annum.

Debenture

Documents
■  the Debenture Trust Deed;

■  the Deed of Hypothecation;
■  Information Memorandum;

■  Debenture Trustee Agreement;
■  Escrow Agreements;
■  Debenture Trustee Appointment Letter;
■  Subordination Agreement;
■  Security Documents;
■  any other document designated as a Debenture Document by the Debenture

Trustee and the Company

Business Day

conveiitioh

Unless otherwise specified, should the Coupon Payment Date falls on a day
which is not a Business Day, the next Business Day shall be considered as the
effective date(s) for that payment (provided that if the following payment date
falls within the next Month, the payment date shall be the immediately preceding
Business Day, so that the payment date falls within the same Month). The
Coupon payable shall not be adjusted due to the payment being made on the next"
Business Day. If a Redemption Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day,
the previous Business Day shall be considered as effective date for that payment.

Conditions

Precedent to

Disbursement

1. A certified true copy of the constitutional documents of the Company.

2. A copy of a resolution of the board of directors of the Company.

3. A certified true copy of the resolutions of the shareholders of Company passed
under Section 180(l)(c) of the Act approving the current borrowing limit of
the Company and under applicable provisions of the/Act approving the current
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securing limit of the Company;

4. A certified true copy of the special resolution of the shareholders of the

Company as required under Rule 14(2) of the Companies (Prospectus and

Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 approving the offer of Debentures for

subscription by way of private placement.

5. Execution of this Information Memorandum.

6. Valid rating letter and detailed credit opinion from the Rating Agency.

7. Appointment of Debenture Trustee.

8. No Event of Default has occurred and is continuing and no such event or
circumstance will result as a consequence of the Company performing any
obligation contemplated under the Transaction Documents.

9. There is no material adverse effect and there is no circumstances existing
which could give rise, with the passage of time or otherwise, to a material
adverse effect on the Issuer.

10. Such other Conditions Precedent as mutually agreed.
Conditions

Subsequent
Disbursement

to

1. The Company shall ensure that within a period of 30 (Thirty) days from
the date of creation of the security, the relevant security provider shall
file the relevant forms with the Registrar of Companies, as required under
the provisions of the Act or other statutory body/authority as may be
required under the applicable law for the purposes of recording the
creation of the relevant security interest.

2. The Company shall obtain an end use certificate from an independent
Chartered Accountant within 30 (thirty) days from the date of receipt of
Subscription Money for the issue of the Debentures confirming the end
use.

3. The Company shall maintain a complete record of this Information
Memorandum in Form PAS-5 as prescribed under the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 as per the
applicable law.

4. Execution of the Debenture Trust Deed, to be completed within 30
(Thirty) days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

5. Execution of the Deed of Hypothecation and documents executed in
connection with creation of hypothecation or recording the creation of the
hypothecation, to be completed within 90 (Ninety) days from the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

6. Execution of the Escrow Agreements and the Substitution Agreement to
be completed within ISO (One Hundred Eighty) Days from the Deemed
Date of Allotment.

7. The Company shall undertake to complete all formalities and pay all fees
in relation to listing of the Debentures on the BSE within 7 (Seven)
Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.
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8. Such other Conditions Subsequent as more particularly mentioned in the
Debenture Trust Deed.

Representations •  Status

and Warranties •  Project
•  Binding obligations
•  Non- conflict with other obligations
•  Power and authority
•  Validity and admissibility in evidence
•  No immunity

•  Authorised signatories
•  Conditions

•  Compliance with applicable law
•  Taxes

• Wilful defaulter

•  No default

•  No other business

•  Liabilities, financial indebtedness and encumbrances

•  Capital structure
•  No misleading information
•  Financial statements

•  Pari passu ranking
•  Accounts

•  Legal and beneficial ownership
• No proceedings pending
•  Insurance

•  Environmental laws and license

•  Solvency

•  Shareholding
•  DSRA

• Major Maintenance Service
•  Documents

•  Anti-corruption laws

• Money laundering; '
•  Undertaking to NHAI

Covenants and •  Information undertakings
Undertakings •  Positive covenants

• Negative covenants
•  Financial Covenants

• • Additional covenants as set out in the Debenture Trust Deed.

The Company represents that the Debenture Trust Deed is in agreed form and
copies thereof may be obtained from the Debenture Trustee for review. The
Company covenants that it shall not make any amendments to the agreed form of
the Debenture Trust Deed from the date of this Information Memorandum till the

date of execution of the Debenture Trust Deed unless otherwise agreed to by the
i Debenture Trustee or required to be made by the NHAI.

Financial The Company shall ensure that the Debt Service Coverage Ratio shall be tested in
Covenant respect of each Testing Date for the relevant Testing Period in each Financial

Year within 2 Business Days of the relevant audited/provisional financial
statements being delivered to the Debenture Trustee pursuant to Debenture Trust

¥
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Deed. It is clarified that for the purposes of testing of the Debt Service Coverage
Ratio, prior to the expiry of 12 (twelve) months from the Deemed Date of
Allotment, such adjustments as specified in the Debenture Trust Deed shall be
made.

If the Debt Service Coverage Ratio for a Testing Period is less than 1.50:1, all
Excess Cashflow standing to the credit of the Escrow Account (after debits have
been made from the Escrow Account in accordance witii the Supplementary
Escrow Agreement) on the last day of such Testing Period shall be transfenred to
the Cash Retention Account and retained in such Cash Retention Account until

utilised in accordance with paragraphs below. The said transfer shall be
completed within 1 Business Day of testing being done.

If the Debt Service Coverage Ratio for a Testing Period (for the Testing Dates
falling on 31 March and 30 September) is equal to or greater than 1.50:1, then the
Escrow Bank shall transfer an amount equal to the Excess Cashflow standing to
the credit of the Escrow Account on the last day of such Testing Period as well as
any amount standing to the credit of the Cash Retention Account on the last day
of such Testing Period to the Distribution Account. The said transfer shall be
completed within 1 Business Day of testing being done.

If the Debt Service Coverage Ratio for a Testing Period (for the Testing Dates
falling on 30 June and 31 December) is equal to or greater than 1.50:1, then the
Escrow Bank shall transfer to the Distribution Account an amount equal to (i) the
Excess Cashflow standing to the credit of the Escrow Account on the last day of
such Testing Period as well as any amount standing to the credit of the Cash
Retention Account less (ii) the aggregate scheduled Redemption Amount and
Coupon payable on the immediately following Due Date. The said transfer shall
be completed within 1 Business Day of testing being done.

If a Financial Covenant Redemption Event has occurred, the Company at its
discretion apply all amounts standing to the credit ofthe Cash Retention Account
for paying amounts that are due under the Debenture Documents in accordance
with terms of the Financial Covenant Redemption Event set out above.

If the Mandatory Financial Covenant Redemption Event occurs, all amounts
standing to the credit of the Cash Retention Account shall be applied for paying
amounts that are due under the Debenture Documents in accordance with the

terms of the Mandatory Financial Covenant Redemption Event set out above.

Notwithstanding the above paragraphs, if:
(a) any Testing Date falls within the last 18 months of a MMR Period; and
(b) the aggregate of the cash amount standing to the credit ofthe MMRA on such
Testing Date is less than the Aggregate MMR Balance,
then all Excess Cashflow standing to the credit of the Escrow Account on the last
day of such Testing Period shall be transferred to the MMRA until the aggregate
of the amount standing to the credit of the MMRA is restored to the applicable
Aggregate MMR Balance.

Events of Default Each ofthe following events in as Event of Default:
1. Non-payment
2. Other obligations
3. Misrepresentations
4. Cross default;
5. Insolvency;
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6. Insolvency proceedings;
7. Judgments, creditors' process;
8. Expropriation;
9. Unlawfulness;

10. Repudiation;
11. Security and guarantees;
12. Cessation of business;

13. Abandonment of the Project;
14. Suspension of the Project;
15. Project Site;
16. Insurance;

17. Authorisations;

18. Material adverse effect;

19. Audit qualification
20. Material litigation;
21. Debenture delisting event;
22. Credit rating;
23. Immunity;
24. Wilful defaulter;
25. Accounts;

26. Termination of Concession Agreement.

Consequences of
Event of Default

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default which is continuing, the Debenture
Trustee shall, if directed by the Debenture Holders by a Majority Resolution,
declare by notice in writing to the Company that: (a) the Debt shall be due and
payable forthwith; (b) the Security created pursuant to the Security Documents
has become enforceable; and (c) the Debenture Trustee is entitled to exercise
such other rights as may be available to it under the Debenture Documents or
under Applicable Law, including substituting the Company under the Concession
Agreement in accordance with the Substitution Agreement.

Provisions related

to Cross Default

Clause

1. Any Financial Indebtedness (other than Sponsor Subordinated Debt) of the
Company is not paid when due or within any originally applicable grace
period.

2. Any Financial Indebtedness (other than Sponsor Subordinated Debt) of
the Company is declared to be or otherwise becomes due and payable
prior to its specified maturity as a result of any actual or potential default,
event of default, or any similar event (however described).

Role and

Responsibilities of
Debenture

Trustee

1. The Debenture Trustee shall hold and accept the security interest including the
hypothecation for and on behalf of the Debenture Holders.

2. The Debenture Trustee shall enter into / issue / acknowledge / confirm any
agreements / deeds / letters / forms with the Company or any other entity
identified by the Company for creation, perfection of the security interests or
any other agreements for and on behalf of and for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders.

3. Such other role and responsibilities as more particularly described in the
Debenture Trust Deed.

Expenses All expenses related to the issue including but not limited to costs relating to stamp
duty, legal fee, credit rating charges and other expenses will be to the account of
the Issuer.

Taxes and 1. All payments to be made by the Company to any secyred^party under or in
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Deductions connection with the Debentures or a Debenture Document shall be made free

and clear of and without any Tax Deduction, unless the Company is required
to make a Tax Deduction.

2. The Company shall promptly upon becoming aware that it must make a Tax
Deduction (or that there is any change in the rate or the basis of a Tax
Deduction) notify the Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall
inform the Debenture Holders accordingly. Similarly, a Debenture Holder
shall notify the Debenture Trustee and the Company on becoming so aware in
respect of a payment payable to that Debenture Holder.

3. If the Company is required to make a Tax Deduction, it shall make the
necessary Tax Deduction and pay the full amount deducted to the relevant Tax
authority in accordance with the Tax Act and all other Applicable Law.

4. Within the time prescribed under Applicable Law after making either a Tax
Deduction or any payment required in connection with that Tax Deduction, the
Company shall deliver to the relevant secured party entitled to the payment
evidence reasonably satisfactory to that secured party that the Tax Deduction
has been made or (as applicable) any appropriate payment has been paid to the
relevant taxing authority and credit of taxes withheld is appearing online to the
credit of that secured party's account on the relevant official website of the tax
department.

Governing Law
and Jurisdiction

The Debentures shall be governed by and construed in accordance with Indian
law and the courts of Delhi.

5.11 Disclosures pertaining to wilful default:

(a) Name of the bank declaring the entity as a wilful defaulter:
N.A.

(b) The year in which the entity is declared as a wilful defaulter:
N.A.

(c) Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a wilful defaulter:
N.A.

(d) Name of the entity declared as a wilful defaulter:
N.A.

(e) Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters:
N.A.

(f) Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions:

N.A.
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SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT

FORM NO. PAS - 4

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OFFER LETTER

(Pursuant to Section 42 and Rule 14(1) of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules,
2014)

1.2

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(b)

1.3

General Information:

Name, address, website and other contact details of the Company, indicating both
registered office and the Corporate office:

Please refer Section 5.2 of this Information Memorandum

Date of Incorporation of the Company:

23/03/2005

Business carried on by the Company and its subsidiaries with the details of branches or
units, if any:

Please refer to Section 5.3(a) of this Information Memorandum

Brief particulars of the management of the Company:

The Company is managed by the current Directors of the Company. For details of the current
Directors, please refer to Section 5.3(h)(i) of this Information Memorandum.

Name, address, DIN and occupations of the directors:

Please refer Section 5.3(h)(i) of this Information Memorandum

Management perception of Risk Factors:

Please refer to Section 3 of this Information Memorandum.

Details of defaults, if any, including the amounts involved, duration of default, and
present status, in repayment of:

(1) Statutory Dues
(ii) Debenture and interest thereon
(iii) Deposits and interest thereon
(iv) Loans from banks and financial institutions and interest thereon

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Name, designation, address and phone number, email ID of the nodal / compliance
officer of the Company, if any, for the Issue:

Please refer to page number 25, sub-section 5.2 of this Information Memorandum

Particulars of the Offer:

Date of passing of Board Resolution The board resolution for the issuance of Debentures

has been passed on 2"'' September 2017. The copy of
the said board resolution is annexed hereto and marked
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as Annexure X.

Date of passing of resolution in general
meeting, authorizing the offer of securities

The shareholder resolution for receiving consent of the
shareholders of the Company under Section 42 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been passed on 26"'
September 2017. The copy of the said shareholders
resolution is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure

XI.

The shareholder resolution for receiving consent of the
shareholders of the Company under Section 180(l)(a)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been passed on 26'*'
September 2017. A copy of the said shareholders
resolution is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure

XI.

The shareholder resolution for receiving consent of the
shareholders of the Company under Section 180(l)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2013 has been passed on 29^
March 2016. A copy of the said shareholders resolution
is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure XL

Kind of Security Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

1842 Rated Listed

Redeemable Secured

Non-Convertible

Debentures. The Series A

Debentures shall comprise
of 13 sub-series numbered

Series A1 — Series A13,
as identified in Annexure

Vm herein

78 Rated Listed

Redeemable Secured

Non-Convertible

Debentures. The Series B

Debentures shall comprise
of 3 sub-series numbered

Series B1 - Series B3, as

identified in Annexure

Vni herein

Price at which the security is being offered,
including premium if any, along with
justification of the price

Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

The Series A Debentures

have a face value of Rs.

10,00,000/- per Series A
Debenture.

The pricing of the Series
A Debentures have been

arrived at on the basis of

prevailing market terms
and conditions.

The Series B Debentures

have a face value of Rs.

10,00,000/- per Series B
Debenture.

The pricing of the Series
B Debentures have been

arrived at on the basis of

prevailing market terms
and conditions.

Name and address of the valuer who

performed valuation of the security offered

The Debentures are being issued at face value

Amount, which the Company intends to
raise by way of securities

Series A Debentures Series B Debentures

Upto Rs. 184,20,00,000/-. Upto Rs. 7,80,00,000/-

Terms of raising of securities Refer to Section 5.10 of this Information

Memorandum.

Proposed time schedule for which the Issue
is valid

Please refer to Issue Schedule on the cover page

Purpose and objects of the Issue Refer to Section 5.10 of this Information

Memorandum.

Contribution being made by the Promoters
or directors either as part of the offer or

N.A.

y
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separately in furtherance of the object

Principal terms of assets charged as
security, if applicable

Refer to Section 5.10 of this Information

Memorandum.

1.4 Disclosure with regard to interest of directors, litigation, etc:

Any financial or other material interest of the
directors, promoters or key managerial
personnel in the Issue and the effect of such
interest in so far as it is different from the

interests of other persons

Nil

Details of any litigation or legal action
pending or taken by any Ministry or
Department of the Government or a statutory
authority against any Promoter of the
Company during the last 3 (three) years
immediately preceding the year of the
circulation of this Disclosure Document and

any direction issued by such Ministry or
Department or statutory authority upon
conclusion of such litigation or legal action
shall be disclosed

Nil

Remuneration of directors (during the
current year and last 3 (three) financial
years)

Please refer to Annexure VII

Related party transactions entered during the
last 3 (three) financial years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of this
Disclosure Document including with regard
to loans made or, guarantees given or
securities provided

Please refer to Annexure IX

Summary of reservations or qualifications or
adverse remarks of auditors in the last 5

(five) financial years immediately preceding
the year of circulation of this Disclosure
Document and of their impact on the
financial statements and financial position of
the Company and the corrective steps taken
and proposed to be taken by the Company
for each of the said reservations or

qualifications or adverse remark

Nil

Details of any inquiry, inspections or
investigations initiated or conducted under
the Act or any previous company law in the
last 3 (three) years immediately preceding
the year of circulation of offer letter in the
case of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries. Also if there were any were any
prosecutions filed (whether pending or not)
fines imposed, compounding of offences in
the last 3 ' (three) years immediately
preceding the year of this Disclosure
Document and if so, section-wise details
thereof for the Company and all of its

Nil

56



Information Memorandum
For Private Circulation only

subsidiaries

Details of acts of material frauds committed

against the Company in the last 3 (three)
years, if any, and if so, the action taken by
the company

Nil

1.5 Financial Position of the Company:

The capital structure of the Company:

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up capital (number of securities, description and aggregate
nominal value): Please refer to Section 5.3(f)(i) of this Information Memorandum

Size of the Present Issue Upto Rs. 1,92,00,00,000/-, of which Rs. 184,20,00,000/- is
being raised through issuance of the Series A Debentures
and Rs. 7,80,00,000/- is being raised through issuance of
the Series B Debentures.

Paid-up Capital:
a. After the offer:

b. After the conversion of

Convertible Instruments (if
applicable):

This issuance of Debentures will not alter the paid-up
capital of the Issuer

Share Premium Account:

a. Before the offer:

b. After the offer:

This issuance of Debentures will not alter the reserves in

the share premium account of the Issuer

Details of the existing share capital of the Issuer:

Please refer to Section 5.3(f)(i) of this Information Memorandum

Details of allotments made by the Company in the last one year preceding the date of this Disclosure
Document separately indicating the allotments made for consideration other than cash and details of
the consideration in each case:

Date of allotment

No. of

shares

allotted

Face Value of

shares allotted

Issue Price of

shares allotted

Form of

ConsideratiQn

No shares have been allotted in the preceding 1 year.

Profits of the Company, before and after
making provision for tax, for the 3
(three) financial years immediately
preceding the date of circulation of this
Disclosure Document

In?

Profit

before

tax

Profit

after

tax

FY17

(26,60,76,428)

(29,32,28,007)

FY16

(7,86,38,151)

(6,70,08,973)

FY15

(26,50,30,814)

(47,88,64,343)

Dividends declared by the Company in
respect of the said 3 (three) financial
years; interest coverage ratio for last
three years (cash profit after tax plus
interest paid/interest paid)

Financial Year Diyidend Dividend Interest

Ended % Coverage
Ratio

31.03.2017 Nil Nil 0.29
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31.03.2016 Nil Nil 0.76

31.03.2015 Nil Nil 0.82

A summary of the financial position of
the Company as in the 3 (three) audited
balance sheets immediately preceding the
date of circulation of this Disclosure

Document

^lease refer to Annexure V

Audited Cash Flow Statement for the 3

(three) years immediately preceding the
date of circulation of this Disclosure

Document

Please refer to Annexure VI

Any change in accounting policies
during the last 3 (three) years and their
effect on the profits and the reserves of
the Company

N.A.
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SECTION 7: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Information Memorandum,

Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction
Documents.

7.1 Mode of Transfer/Transmission of Debentures

I

The Debentures shall be transferable freely. The Debenture(s) shall be transferred and/or transmitted
in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act and other applicable laws. The Debentures
held in demateriallzed form shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the rules/procedures
as prescribed by the Depository and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any other
applicable laws and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee($) should ensure that the transfer
formalities are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be
paid/redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of debenture holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where the
transfer formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the transferees would
need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal procedure followed for
transfer of securities held in dematerialized form shall be followed for transfer of these Debentures

held in dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery instructions containing details of the
buyer's DP account to his DP.

7.2 Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the
Debenture Holder(s) for redemption purposes and all payments due to the Debentures will be paid by
cheque/fund transfer/RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of
beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The names would be as per the R&T Agent's records on
the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be simultaneously
redeemed through appropriate debit corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries' name and account
number, address, bank details and DP's identification number will be given by the R&T Agent to the
Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by
EFT/RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption payments.

1

7.3 Trustee for the Debenture HoIder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture Holder(s).
The Issuer and the Debenture Trustee intends to enter into the Debenture Trust Deed ijiter alia,

specifying the powers, authorities and obligations of the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer. The
Debenture Holder(s) shall, without further act or deed, be deemed to have irrevocably given their
consent to the Debenture Trustee or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things in respect of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trustee may in its
absolute discretion deem necessary or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture Holder(s).
Any payment made by the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s) shall
discharge the Issuer pro ianto to the Debenture Holder(s). The Debenture Trustee will protect the
interest of the Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of Principal Amounts and Coupon and
they will take necessary action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture Trust Deed, at the
cost of the Issuer. No Debenture Holder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the Issuer unless
the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trust Deed
shall more specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of
enforcement thereof.
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7.4 Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other than
those available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture Holders
the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the shareholders of
the Issuer.

7.5 Modification of Debentures

The manner in which the terms of the Debentures can be modified shall be as provided for in the
Debenture Trust Deed.

7.6 Right to accept or reject Applications

The Board/Committee of Directors reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject
any application for subscription to the Debentures, in part or in full, without assigning any reason
thereof.

7.7 Notices

Any communication to be made under or in connection with the Debenture Documents shall be made
in writing and, unless otherwise stated, shall be made by fax or electronic mail which shall be
followed by a communication by way of letter.

Any communication or document made or delivered by one person to another under or in connection
with this Deed will only be effective:

i. if sent by fax before 5 p.m. on a working day in the place to which it is sent, when sent or, if
sent by fax at any other time, at 9 a.m. on the next working day in that place, provided, in
each case, that the person sending the fax shall have received a transmission receipt; or

ii. if by way of letter, when it has been left at the relevant address before 5 p.m. on a working
day in the place to which it is sent, when sent or, if sent at any other time, at 9 a.m. on the
next working day in that place or 5 Business Days afler being deposited in the post postage
prepaid in an envelope addressed to it at that address;

iii. if by way of electronic mail sent by the Debenture Trustee to any person, when sent by the
Debenture Trustee unless the Debenture Trustee receives a message indicating failed delivery;
and

iv. if by way of electronic mail sent by any person otlier than the Debenture Trustee, when
actually received in readable form by the Debenture Trustee and then only if it is addressed in
such a manner as the Debenture Trustee shall specify for this purpose,

and if it is expressly marked for the attention of the department or officer (or any substitute
department or officer as the other person shall specify for this purpose).

Each of the Company and the Debenture Trustee shall notify each other and each Debenture Holder
promptly upon becoming aware that its electronic mail system or other electronic means of
communication cannot be used due to technical failure (and that failure is or is likely to be continuing
for more than 24 hours). Each Debenture Holder shall notify the Company and the Debenture Trustee
promptly upon becoming aware that its electronic mail system or other electronic means of
communication cannot be used due to technical failure (and that failure is or is likely to be continuing
for more than 24 hours). Until the affected person has notified the Parties that the failure has been
remedied, all notices between those parties shall be sent by fax or letter in accordance with this
Clause. Y /
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7.8 Issue Procedure

Only investors as specified in the section titled "Persons who may apply" given hereunder may apply
for the Debentures by completing the Application Form in the prescribed format in block letters in
English as per the instructions contained therein. The minimum number of Debentures that can be
applied for and the multiples thereof shall be set out in the Application Form. No application can be
made for a fraction of a Debenture. Application forms should be duly completed in all respects and
applications not completed in the said manner are liable to be rejected. The name of the applicant's
bank, type of account and account number must be duly completed by the applicant. This is required
for the applicant's own safety and these details will be printed on the refund orders and /or
redemptions warrants.

An Application form must be accompanied by either demand draft(s) or cheque(s) drawn or made
payable in favour of the Issuer or otherwise as may be set out in the Application Form or details of
transfer made, and crossed "Account Payee Only". Cheque(s) or demand draft(s) may be drawn on
any bank including a co-operative bank, which is a member or a sub-member of the bankers clearing
house located at Mumbai. The applicant may transfer payments required to be made in any relation by
NEFT/RTGS, to the bank account of the Issuer as per the details mentioned in the Application Form.

7.9 Application Procedure

Potential investors will be invited to subscribe by way of the Application Form prescribed in the
Information Memorandum during the period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing
Date (both dates inclusive). The Issuer reserves the right to change the issue schedule including the
Deemed Date of Allotment at its sole discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue
will be open for subscription during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the
Issue Schedule.

7.10 Fictitious Application

All fictitious Applications will be rejected.

7.11 Basis of Allotment

Notwithstanding anything stated elsewhere, Issuer reserves the right to accept or reject any
application, in part or in full, without assigning any reason. Subject to the aforesaid, in case of over
subscription, priority will be given to Investors on a first come first serve basis. The investors will be
required to remit the funds as well as submit the duly completed Application Form along with other
necessary documents to Issuer by the Deemed Date of Allotment.

7.12 Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire Application Amount is payable to the
Issuer's bank account along with the Application Form. Applicants can remit the application through
NEFT/RTGS, details of which is as follows:

Beneficiary Name
Credit Account No

Centre Location

Bank

Branch

MBEL - ESCROW A/C

05720310003503

Gurgaon, Haryana
HDFC Bank Limited

Vatika Atrium , A-Block, Golf Course Road, Sector 53,
Gurgaon 122002

Account Type : MBEL-Escrow Account
IFSC Code : HDFC0000572
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7.13 Persons who may apply

The Persons to whom this Disclosure Document is being issued are the only persons eligible to apply
for this private placement of Debentures subject to fulfilling their respective investment norms/rules
and compliance with laws applicable to them by submitting all the relevant documents along with the
Application Form. The class of investors to whom this Disclosure Document is being issued are:

Individuals;

Provident funds, Superannuation funds and Gratuity funds;
Mutual funds;

Companies, Bodies corporate and Societies;

Insurance companies; and
NBFCs and Residuary NBFCs

Banks;

Other eligible persons;

All Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/guidelines applicable to them for
investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential investors in the issue may be subject to statutory and/or regulatory
requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities by such
categories of persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with all regulatory
requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other requirements. Applicants
ought to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to the laws applicable to them.

7.14 Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

(a) The applicant must have at least one beneficiaiy account with any of the DP's of the
Depository prior to making the application.

(b) The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account number
and DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading "Details for Issue of
Debentures in Electronic/Dematerialised Form".

(c) Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant's respective beneficiary
account(s) with the DP.

(d) For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to those
appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should
necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with the
DP.

(e) Non-transferable allotment advice/refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent to the Issue.

(f) If incomplete/incorrect details are given under the heading "Details for Issue of Debentures in
Electronic/Dematerialised Form" in the Application Form, it will be deemed to be an
incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at the sole discretion of
the Issuer.

(g) For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the applicant
as registered with his/Iier DP shall be used for all correspondence with the applicant. The
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applicant is therefore responsible for the correctness of his/her demographic details given in
the Application Form vis-a-vis those with his/her DP. In case the information is incorrect or
insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the losses, if any.

(h) The Redemption Amount, the Coupon or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture
Holders whose names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent
as on the Record Date. In case of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not

identified in the records of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep in
abeyance the payment of the Redemption Amount or other benefits, till such time that the
beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer, whereupon the
Redemption Amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as identified.

7.15 Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with the Depository for issue and holding of Debenture
in dematerialised form.

7.16 List of Beneflciaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each Record
Date. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption monies.

7.17 . Application under Power Of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along with
the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and the tax
exemption certificate/document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the submission of
the completed Application Form. Further modifications/additions in the power of attorney or authority
should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s) at such other address(es) as
may be specified by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or authority, a
certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and/or bye-laws along
with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application Form at the time of making
the application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or
reject any application in whole or in part and in either case without assigning any reason thereto.
Names and specimen signatures of all the authorized signatories must also be lodged along with the
submission of the completed Application Form.

7.18 Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable

(a) Copy of PAN card to be submitted

(b) Application Form (including RTGS details)

7.19 Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the applicant
and the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing direct credit of
Redemption Amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture Holder(s) through NEFT/RTGS.
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7.20 Succession

In the event of winding-up of the holder of the Debenture(s), the Issuer will recognize the executor or
administrator of the concerned Debenture Holder(s), or the other legal representative as having title to
the Debenture(s). The Issuer shall not be bound to recognize such executor or administrator or other
legal representative as having title to the Debenture(s), unless such executor or administrator obtains
probate or letter of administration or other legal representation, as the case may be, from a court in
India having jurisdiction over the matter.

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of probate or
letter of administration or other legal representation, in order to recognize such holder as being
entitled to the Debenture(s) standing in the name of the concerned Debenture Holder on production of
sufficient documentary proof and/or an indemnity.

7.21 Mode of Payment

All payments must be made through cheque(s)/drafit(s)/transfers/RTGS as set out in the Application
Form.

7.22 Effect of Holidays

If the Due Date for redemption on the NCDs falls on a day that is not a Business Day, the
Coupon/Principal Amount shall be paid on the immediately preceding Business Day.

7.23 Tax Deduction at Source

Tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof will be deducted at source. For seeking TDS exemption/lower rate of TDS, relevant
certificate/document must be lodged by the debenture holders at the office of the Transfer Agents of
the Corporation at least 15 (Fifteen) days before the relevant payment becoming due. Tax exemption
certificate / declaration of non deduction of tax at source on interest on Subscription Money, should
be submitted along with the Application form.

7.24 Letters of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures, will be provided in physical form on
the Deemed Date of Allotment itself. The Debentures, will be issued in dematerialised form, within 2
(Two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.

7.25 Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed Date of
Allotment by which date the Investors would be intimated of allotment.

7.26 Record Date

The date which will be used for determining the Debenture Holders who shall be entitled to receive
the amounts due on any Due Date, which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) days prior to any Due
Date.

7.27 Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be
dispatched within 7 (Seven) days from Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.
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In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate of the
Subscription Money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been made, the
Registrar shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer repay the money to
the extent of such excess, if any.

7.28 Interest on Subscription Money

The Company shall be liable to pay to each Debenture Holder subscribing to the Debentures, interest
on the subscription monies (subject to any tax deductible at source under Applicable Law) paid by the
said Debenture Holder in the event that the Debenture Holder has remitted the subscription monies to
the bank account of the Company prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment, which interest shall be
calculated at the monthly Coupon rate for the period commencing from the date on which the said
Debenture Holder has made payment of the'subscription monies and the same is credited to the bank
account of the Company and ending on the day immediately preceding the Deemed Date of
Allotment. The interest on the subscription monies thus calculated shall be paid by the Company to
the Debenture Holders on the first Coupon Payment Date.

7.29 Pan Number

Every applicant should mention its PAN allotted under Income Tax Act, 1961, on the Application
Form and attach a self attested copy as evidence. Application forms without PAN will be considered
incomplete and are liable to be rejected.

7.30 Payment on Debentures

Payment on the Debentures will be made by way of cheque(s) /demand draft(s)/credit through RTGS
system/funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of
beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Principal Amount and applicable
Coupon by the Issuer to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of
Debenture Holder(s) on the Record Dates. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform the
Depository and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with the Depository will be
adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the liability of
the Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: Please note that only those persons to whom this memorandum has been speciflcally
addressed may apply. However, an application, even if complete in all respects, is liable to be
rejected without assigning any reason for the same. The list of documents provided above is
only indicative, and an investor is required to provide all those documents / authorizations /
information, which are likely to be required by the Issuer. The Issuer may, but is not bound to
revert to any investor for any additional documents / information, and can accept or reject an
application as it deems fit. Investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned above are
merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to invest as per extant
laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is required to check and comply
with extant rules/regulations/ guidelines, etc. Governing or regulating their investments as
applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way, directly or indirectly, responsible for any
statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor, neither is the Issuer required to check or
confirm the same.
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SECTION 8: DECLARATION

The Issuer undertakes that this Disclosure Document contains full disclosures in accordance with

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
issued vide circular no. LAD-NRO/GN/2008/13/127878 dated June 06, 2008, as amended, as per
Securities and Excliange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2012 issued vide circular no. LAD-NRO/GN/2012-13/19/5392 dated October 12, 2012,
and SEBI Circular CIR/IMD/DF/18/2013 dated October 29, 2013 and also Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2014 issued vide
Circular No. LAD-NRO/GN/2013-14/43/207 dated January 31, 2014 and Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Payment of Fees) (Amendment) Regulations, 2014 vide circular No. LAD-
NRO/GN/2014-I5/03/1089 dated May 23, 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Payment of Fees) (Amendment) Regulations, 2014 vide circular No. LAD-NRO/GN/2014-
15/03/1089 dated May 23, 2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2015 issued vide Circular No. LAD-NRO/GN/2014-
15/25/539 dated March 24, 2015 the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 issued vide circular no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-
16/013 dated September 02, 2015 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 vide Circular No. LAD-NRO/GN/2016-17/43/004
dated May 25, 2016 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Payment of Fees)
(Amendment) Regulations, 2017 vide circular No. LAD-NRO/GN/2016-17/037 dated March 06,2017
as well as the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014.

The Issuer also confirms that this Disclosure Document does not omit disclosure of any material fact
which may make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are
made, misleading. The Disclosure Document also does not contain any false or misleading statement.

The Issuer accepts no responsibility for the statement made otherwise than in the Disclosure
Document or in any other material issued by or at the instance of the Issuer and that any one placing
reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at his own risk.

Without prejudice to the above, the Company and each of the directors of the Company, confirm that.

(a) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder in relation to the Issue;

(b) The compliance with the Companies Act and the rules does not imply that payment of
dividend or interest or repayment of Debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government;

(c) The monies received under the Issue shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated
in this Information Memorandum;

I, Ravindranath Karati, authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number
10 (Ten) dated September 02, 2017 to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this Information
Memorandum, and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. Whatever is stated in this
Information Memorandum and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no
information material to the subject matter of the Information Memorandum has been suppressed or
concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the Promoters subscribing to the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, corre
legibly attached to this form.

Prp

fO 66

a*



Information Memorandum
For Private Circulation only

For Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited
(Formerly Known as

Name of Signatory:
Designation: Directorx,^
Date: October 10, 2017
Place: Noida, Uttar Pradesh

VI

ratpur Expressways Limited)

th Karati
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ANNEXURE I; RATING LETTER & RATING RATIONALE

[AHacbedSeparately]

\  I

Jyj

68



Information Memorandum
For Private Circulation only

ANNEXURE II: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

[Attached Separately]
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ANNEXURE III: APPLICATION FORM

PART A: SERIES A DEBENTURES

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(FORMRLV KNOWN AS MADHUCON AGRA-JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED)

(Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad TG 500029
Telephone: 040 4017 9779

Contact person: Mr. Raman Tyagi, Director
Email: raman.tyagi@cubehigh\vays.com

Private and Confidential

(Not for circulation)
Serial No. MBEL/2017/10/A01

Dear Sirs,

Having read and understood the contents of the Transaction Docninents, we apply for allotment to us of the
Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Scries A Debentures being privately placed. The
amount payable on application us shown below Is remitted herewith. On allotment, please place our name on
the Register of Debenture Holders. We bind ourselves to the terms and conditions as contained in the
Transaction Documents. We note that the Company is entitled in its absolute discretion to accept or reject
this application whole or in part without assigning any reason whatsoever.

(PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE FILLING THIS FORM)
Form in which certificate is to be issued

[ ] Demat

DEPOSITORY NAME: (NSDL/CDSL) [ ]

DP-ID: CLIENT ID:

DP- NAME CLIENT-NAME

We understand that in case of allotment of Series A Debentures to us, our beneficiary account as mentioned
above would be credited to the extent of Series A Debentures allotted. We also understand that Series A

Debentures will be issued to us and will have to be held by us in dematerialized form only and no physical
certificates will ever be issued by the Company.

The application shall be for a minimum of I' (One) Series A Debenture and in Multiples of 1 (One) Series A
Debenture thereafter (Each Debenture of Rs 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)

Remittance through Cheque/Draft {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

Sr. No Series No. of

Series A

Debentures

applied for
(In figures)

No. of

Series A

Debentures

applied for
(In words)

Amount (In
Rs.)

Amount (In words)

1. A1 20 Twenty 2,00,00,000 Two Crores

2. A2 26 Twenty Six 2,60,00,000 Two Crores Sixty Lakhs

3. A3 46 Forty Six 4,60,00,000 Four Crores Sixty Lakhs

4. A4 100 One

Hundred

10,00,00,000 Ten Crores

5. A5 110 One

Hundred

Ten

11,00,00,000 Eleven Crores

6. A6 140 One

Hundred

14,00,00,000 Fourteen Crores
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Fortv

7. A7 150 One

Hundred

Fifty

15,00,00,000 Fifteen Crores

8. A8 200 Two

Hundred

20,00,00,000 Twenty Crores

9. A9 210 Two

Hundred

Ten

21,00,00,000 Twenty One Crores

10. AlO 220 Two

Hundred

Twenty

22,00,00,000 Twenty Two Crores

II. All 250 Two

Hundred

Fifty

25,00,00,000 Twenty Five Crores

12. A12 250 Two

Hundred

Fifty

25,00,00,000 Twenty Five Crores

13. A13 120 One

Hundred

Twenty

12,00,00,000 Twelve Crores

Date Cheque /Demand Draft No. Cheque /Demand Draft drawn on

Remittance through NEFT/RTGS {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

Sr. No Series No. .of

Series A

Debentures

applied for
(In figures)

No. of

Series A

Debentures

applied for
(In words)

Amount (In

Rs.)

Amount (In words)

1. A! 20 Twenty 2,00,00,000 Two Crores

2. A2 26 Twenty Six 2,60,00,000 Two Crores Sixty Lakhs

3. A3 46 Forty Six 4,60,00,000 Four Crores Sixty Lakhs

4. A4 100 One

Hundred

10,00,00,000 Ten Crores

5. A5 110 One

Hundred

Ten

11,00,00,000 Eleven Crores

6. A6 140 One

Hundred

Forty

14,00,00,000 Fourteen Crores

7. A7 150 One

Hundred

Fifty

15,00,00,000 Fifteen Crores

8. A8 200 Two

Hundred

20,00,00,000 Twenty Crores

9. A9 210 Two

Hundred

Ten

21,00,00,000 Twenty One Crores

10. AlO 220 Two

Hundred

Twenty

22,00,00,000 Twenty Two Crores

11. All 250 Two

Hundred

Fifty

25,00,00,000 Twenty Five Crores

12. A12 250 Two

Hundred

25,00,00,000 Twenty Five Crores
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Fifty

13. A13 120 One

Hundred

Twenty

12,00,00,000 Twelve Crores

Amount CRs.) [ 1 (Rupees only)

Remittance Particulars

Mode of Remittance Date of Remittance Name of the Remitting Bank and
Branch

STEPS

RTGS

We are applying as {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

1 Company 2 Commercial Bank

3 Eliaible Financial Institution 4 Insurance Companies

5 NBFC & Residuary NBFC 6 Mutual Fund

7 Others

Application Details

First A jplicantis Name in Full (Block letters)

Second Applicant's Name in Full (Block letters)

1 1 1  1 I 1

Third Applicant's Name in Full (Block letters)
1 1 1 1 1

Mailing Address in Full (Do not repeat name. Post Box No. alone is not sufficient.)

Pin: Tel: Fax;

Tax Details PAN orGIRNo. IT Circle / Ward / District

1.

2.

3.

1.

2.

3.

Details of Bank Account of the First Applicant:

Name of the Bank Branch

Account No: Nature of Account: SB/CA

RTGS Code of Bank/ Branch

Tax Deduction Status: (Please tick one)

(  ) Fully Exempt (Please furnish exemption certificate):

(  ) Tax to be deducted at source;
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Specimen Signature

Sl.No Name of the Authorized Signatory Designation Signature

1

2

Acknowledgement Slip shall be given to the investors as shown below the Instructions.

Tear Here

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SLIP

APL MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad TG 500029
Telephone: 040 4017 9779

Contact person: Mr. Raman Tyagi, Director
Email: raman.tyagi@cubehighways.com

Application Form Sr. No: MBEL/2017/10/A01

Received from

Address

an application for Series A Debentures along with Cheque/Demand Draft No.
Drawn on for Rs. (Rupees

Dated

only)
(Note: Cheques and Drafts are subject to realization)

STEPS/RTGS Remittance Particulars

Mode of

Transfer

Date of Remittance Name of the Remitting Bank and
Branch

Amount of Remittance

STEPS Rs.

(Rupees

)
RTGS

•
-

Rs.

(Rupees

)
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PART B: SERIES B DEBENTURES

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED
(MADllUCON AGRA-JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED)

(Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar Hyderabad TG 500029
Telephone: 040 4017 9779

Contact person: Mr. Raman Tyagi, Director
Email: raman.tyagi@cubehighways.com

Private and Confidential

(Not for circulation)
Serial No. MBEL/2017/10/B01

Dear Sirs,

Having read and understood (he contents of the Transaction Dociinients, we apply for allotment to its of the
Rated, Listed, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Series B Debentures being privately placed. The
amount payable on application as shown below Is remitted herewith. On allotment, please place our name on
the Register of Debenture Holders. We bind ourselves to the terms and conditions as contained in the
Transaction Documents. We note that the Company Is entitled In Its absolute discretion to accept or reject
this application whole or In part without assigning any reason whatsoever,

(PLEASE READ THE INSTRUCTIONS CAREFULLY BEFORE FILLING THIS FORM)
Form in which certificate is to be issued

[ ] Demat

DEPOSITORY NAME: (NSDL/CDSL) [ ]

DP-ID; CLIENT ID:

DP- NAME CLIENT-NAME

We understand that in case of allotment of Series B Debentures to us, our beneficiary account as mentioned
above would be credited to the extent of Series B Debentures allotted. We also understand that Series B

Debentures will be issued to us and will have to be held by us in dematerialized form only and no physical
certificates will ever be issued by the Company.

The application shall be for a minimum of 1 (One) Series B Debenture and in Multiples of 1 (One) Series B
Debenture thereafter (Each Debenture of Rs 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)

Remittance through Cheque/Draft {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

Sr. No Series No. of

Series B

Debentures

applied for
(In figures)

No. of

Series B

Debentures

applied for
(In words)

Amount (In
Rs.)

Amount (In words)

I. HI 20 Twenty 2,00,00,000 Two Crores

2. B2 24 Twenty
Four

2,40,00,000 Two Crores Fourty Lakhs

3. B3 34 Thirty Four 3,40,00,000 Three Crores Forty Lakhs

Date Cheque /Demand Draft No. Cheque /Demand Draft drawn on

/
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Remittance through NEFT/RTGS {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

Sr. Series No. of No. of Amount (In Amount (In words)
No Series B Series B Rs.)

Debenture Debenture

s  applied
for (In

s  applied
for (In

figures) words)

1. 81 20 Twenty 2,00,00,000 Two Crores

2. 82 24 Twenty
Four

2,40,00,000 Two Crores Fourty Lakhs

3. 83 34 Thirty Four 3,40,00,000 Three Crores Forty Lakhs

Amount (Rs.) ] (Rupees only)

Remittance Particulars

Mode of Remittance Date of Remittance Name of the Remitting Bank and Branch

STEPS

RTGS

We are applying as {Tick (V) whichever is applicable}

1 Company 2 Commercial Bank

3 Eligible Financial Institution 4 Insurance Companies

5 NBFC & Residuary NBFC 6 Mutual Fund

7 Others

Application Details

First Applicantls Name in Full (Block letters)

Second Applicant's Name in Full (Block letters)

1 t 1  1 1 1  1 1 1
Third Applicant's Name in Full (Block letters)

1 1 1  1 1 1 1 1  1 1

Mailing Address in Full (Do not repeat name. Post Box No. alone is not sufficient.)

i
Pin; Tel: Fax:

Tax Details PAN or GIR No. IT Circle / Ward / District

1.

2.

3.

1.

2.

3.

Details of Bank Account of the First Applicant:

Name of the Bank Branch
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Account "No: Nature of Account; SB/CA

RTGS Code of Bank/ Branch

Tax Deduction Status: (Please tick one)

( )  ■ Fully Exempt (Please furnish exemption certificate);

( ) Tax to be deducted at source:

Specimen Signature

Sl.No Name of the Authorized Signatory Designation Signature

1

2

Acknowledgement Slip shall be given to the investors as shown below the Instructions.

Xear Here

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SLIP

APL MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956)

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Hlmayatnagar Hyderabad TG 500029
Telephone: 040 4017 9779

Contact person: Mr. Raman Tygai, Director
Email: raman.tyagi@cubehighways.com

Application Form Sr. No: MBEL/2017/10/B01

Received from

Address

an application for Series B Debentures along with Cheque/Demand Draft No.
Drawn on for Rs. (Rupees

Dated

only)
(Note: Cheques and Drafts are subject to realization)

STEPS/RTGS Remittance Particulars

Mode of

Transfer

Date of Remittance Name of the Remitting Bank and
Branch

Amount of Remittance

STEPS Rs.

(Rupees

)
RTGS Rs.

(Rupees

')
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AIVNEXUREIV: LAST AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Attached separately]
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ANNEXURE V: SUMMARY FINANCIAL POSITION (AUDITED)

Please note that the Summary Financial Position of the Issuer, for the last three years is as follows:

Financial Year Balance Sheet Profit & Loss

Account

2014-15 Page Number 25 Page Number 26

2015-16 Page Number 55 Page Number 56

2016-17 Page Number 62 Page Number 63
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ANNEXURE VI: CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (AUDITED)

Please note that the audited cash flow statements of the Issuer, for the last three years is as follows:

Financial Year Cashflow Statement

2014-15 Page 27

2015-16 Pages 57

2016-17 Pages 64

]/
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ANNEXURE VII: REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Remuneration Of Directors (During The Current Year And Last 3 (Three) Financial Years)

Name FY2014- FY 2015- FY 2016- FY 2017-18

15 16 17 (till August 31,
2017)

Mr. Raman Nil Nil Nil Nil

Tyagi

Mr. Nil Nil INR INR 5,20,340
Ravindranath 29,95,712 (for 2 months
Karati only)
Mr. Andrew Nil Nil INR INR 6,29,900

Lewis 15,27,260

Mrs. Nil Nil Nil Nil

Vasundhara

Peddapalle

Mr. Ashok Nil Nil Nil- Nil

Gupta

Mr. Akhil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Kumar Jain
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ANNEXURE VUI: PAYMENT SCHEDULE

PART A: SERIES A CASHFLOWS (AGGREGATE)

All amounts beloM' are in Rs. Lakits
PAYMENT-

DATE

TOTAL

REPAYMENT

STARTING

AMOUNT

INTEREST

PAYMENT

PRINCIPAL

REPAYMENT

OUTSTANDING

PRINCIPAL

03-Jan-18 334.89 18420.00 334.89 0.00 18420.00

03.Apr-18 481.52 18420.00 381.52 100.00 18320.00

03-;ul-18 383.67 18320.00 383.67 0.00 18320.00

03-Oct-I8 487.88 18320.00 387.88 100.00 18220.00

03-Jan-I9 385.76 18220.00 385.76 0.00 18220.00

03-Apr-19 507.38 18220.00 377.38 130.00 18090,00

03-Jul-19 378.85 18090.00 378.85 0.00 18090.00

03-OC1-19 513.01 18090.00 383.01 13000 17960.00

03-Jan-20 380.26 17960.00 380.26 0.00 17960.00

03-Apr-20 605.10 17960.00 375.10 230.00 17730.00

03-iul-20 370.30 17730.00 370.30 0.00 17730.00

05-0ct-20 612.50 17730.00 382.50 230.00 17500.00

04-Jan-2l 366.49 17500.00 366.49 0.00 17500.00

05.Apr.2i 866.49 17500.00 366.49 500.00 17000,00

05-Jul-2l 356.02 17000.00 356.02 0.00 17000.00

04.Oct.2l 856.02 17000.00 356.02 500.00 16500.00

O3.Jan.22 345.55 16500.00 345.55 0.00 16500.00

04.Apr-22 895.55 16500.00 345.55 550.00 15950.00

04.JuI.22 334.03 15950.00 334.03 0.00 15950.00

03^3«.22 884.03 15950.00 334.03 550.00 15400.00

03-Jan-23 326.06 15400.00 326.06 0.00 15400.00

03-Apf-23 1018.97 15400.00 318,97 700.00 14700.00

03-Jul-23 307.85 14700.00 307.85 0.00 14700.00

03.OCI-23 1011.24 14700.00 311.24 700.00 14000.00

03-Jan-24 296.42 14000.00 296.42 0.00 14000.00

03.Apr-24 1042.39 14000.00 292.39 750.00 ^ 13250.00

03.Jul.24 276,73 13250.00 276,73 0.00 13250.00

03.Oa.24 1029.77 13250.00 279.77 750.00 12500.00

03-Jan.2S 264.66 12500.00 264.66 0.00 12500.00

03-Apf.25 1258.90 12500.00 258.90 1000.00 11500.00

03.Ju|.25 240.84 11500.00 240.84 0.00 11500.00

03.Oa-25 1243.48 11500.00 243.48 1000.00 ■ 10500.00

05-Jan-26 227.15 10500.00 227.15 0.00 10500.00

06-Apr.26 1269.90 10500.00 219.90 1050.00 9450.00

03-JuI-26 191.38 9450.00 191,38 0.00 9450,00

OSOa-26 .  1254.43 9450.00 204.43 1050.00 8400.00

04.Jan-27 175.92 8400.00 175.92 0.00 8400.00

OS-Apr-27 1275.92 8400.00 175.92 1100.00 7300.00

05.JuI-27 152.88 7300.00 152.88 0.00 7300.00

04-Oa-27 1252.88 7300.00 152.88 1100.00 6200.00

03-Jan-28 129.84 6200.00 129.84 0.00 6200.00

04-Apr-28 1380.91 6200.00 130.91 1250.00 4950.00

03-Jul-28 102.25 4950.00 102,25 0.00 4950.00
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03-Jul-26 O.IO 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20

05-Oc».26 111 0.22 0.22 0.22 0.22

04-Jan-27 0,21 0^1 0.21 0.21

05-Apr-27 5,2! 0.21 0.21 0.21

OS-Jul-27 0.10 0.21 0.21 0.21

04-Oa.27 S.IO 0.2! 0.21 0.21

03-Jan-28 0.21 0 21 0.21

04-Apr-28 5.21 0.21 0.21

03-Jul-28 0.10 0.21 0.21

03-Oct-28 5.11 0.21 0.21

03-Jan-29 0.21 0.21

03-Apr-29 5.21 0.21

03.Jul-29 0.10 0.21

03-Oct-29 5.11 0.21

03-Jsft-30 0.21

29-Mar-30 10.20

PART D: SERIES B CASHFLOWS (AGGREGATE)

Ail amounts below are in Rs. Lakiis

REPAYMENT

DATES

TOTAL

REPAYMENT

STARTING

AMOUNT

INTEREST

PAYMENT

PRINCIPAL

REPAYMENT

OUTSTANDING

PRINCIPAL

03-Jan-18 14.18 780.00 14.18 0.00 780.00

03-Apr-18 116.16 780.00 16.16 100.00 680.00

03-Jul-18 14.24 680.00 14.24 0.00 680.00

03-Oct-18 114.40 680.00 14.40 100.00 580.00

03-Jan-19 12.28 580.00 12.28 0.00 580.00

03-Apr-19 132.01 580.00 12.01 120.00 460.00

03-iul-19 9.63 460.00 9.63 0.00 460.00

03-OCI-I9 129.74 460.00 9.74 120.00 340.00

03.Jan.20 7.20 340.00 7.20 0.00 340,00

03.Apr.20 177.10 340.00 7.10 170.00 170.00

03-Jul.20 3.55 170.00 3.55 0.00 170.00

05.0a.20 173.67 170.00 3,67 170.00 0.00

PART E: SERIES B CASHFLOWS (AGGREGATE FOR EACH SUB SERIES)

All amounts below are in Rs. LakJis
SERIES NAME B1 B2 B3

No. ofbonds 20 24 34

Amount (in Rs. Lakhs) 200 240 340

03-Oct-17

03-]an-I8 3.64 4.34 6.18

03-Apr-18 104.14 4.97 - 7.04

03-Jul-18 2.09 5.03 7.12

03-OCI-18 102.12 5.08 ^7.20

03-Jan-19 5.08 7.20

03-Apr-19 1 124.97 7.04

03-Jul-l9 2.51 7.12

03-Oct-19 122.54 7.20

03-Jan-20 7.20

OJ-Apr-20 177.10

03.Jul-20 3.55
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05-OC1.20 173.67

PART F: SERIES B CASHFLOWS (PER DEBENTURE)

Ailamounis below are in Rs. Lakhs
SERIES NAME B1 B2 B3

03^ct.|7

03-Jan-18 O.IS 0.18 0.18

03-Apr-18 5-21 0.2! 0.21

03-Jul-lg 0.10 0.21 0.21

03-OC1.I8 S.ll 0.21 0.21

03-Jan-19 0.2! 0.21

03.Apr-19 5.2! 0.21

03-Jul.l9 0.10 0.21

03-OCI-19 5.11 0.21

03-Jan-20 0.21

03-Apr.20 5.21

03-Jul-20 0.10

05-0«.20 S.ll

y
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ANNEXURE IX: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Please note that the related party transactions entered into by the Issuer, for the last three years is
contained as follows:

Name of Party 2014-2015

(INR)

2015-2016

ONR)

2016-2017

Madhucon Infra

Limited

44,800,473 47,040,497 Nil

Madhucon

Projects Limited

763,500,201 Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE X: BOARD RESOLUTION

I

[Attached Separately]
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ANNEXURE XI: SHAREHOLDERS' RESOLUTIONS

[Attached Sepai-afely]



IndiaRatings
& Researcii

Filch Group

Mr. Riiiii.in 1

Dircvior

Maluij niiutvitpiir l-.xprcssways Limited
AdvniilNavis liusiucss Park.

l»lot nil. 0". Notda - 201305
Comacl Nil Oi20-IR6K3,>2

\ovvmlKT Ih. 2t)l"

k hu! ■Utu: Mr. Rtiiiuiii Tyin-i. Director

Dear Sir.

vcrlibU- ilcbciiHircs ofMalnia Bliaralptir [•..vprfsswuys l.imilidUc; Raiiiitt to secured non-convi

„Kliu Raliivas and Rc^varcb (Ind-Ra) has assigned Malma liiKU-m|u,r i:xprcss»a>s Lmmcd\ (MUM t
iioivtonvcrlihlc dcheniiiivs (NCDs) as lollinvs:

inoriimcntTvnc Sizc of Issuc (INR mHlion) Rating/OutlHok Ratinii Acttoii

Series A debentures
Scries B debentures

1.842

78

IMI) AA,A(SD)'Slahle
IND AAA(S(.))/Siablc

Assiencd

.AsNigiied

The iMfd ratin-s bavc been a.ssigned arter the receipt of executed llnancit.eagreement, supplementary cscrmv agreement and suburdma.mn auK.mun,

I be rating rationale h;is been piibiislicd on India Ratings website.

amt'olMins r>.-»»naWc v.rifeati.m of Ib.l inlbrnwli™. Imm ilKlqicndcl
extent such sources are available for a given secnnty.

sccuriiv .u in the particular jurisdiction of the issuer, and a variety o! olhci l.ich

;s;rs:;s:;:s==

b\ tlieir nalore cannot be verilicd as laus.

India Ratings & Research Private Limited A Fitch Group Company
601-9. Prakastideep Building,? Tolstoy Ma'g. New Delhi 110001

Tel;+9ni 43567230 I Fac t91 11 43567231 I CIN/LLPtN;U67100MH1995FTC14004» wiivw.lndlarattogs.co.ln



India Ratings
& Research

Filch Group

\> ;i vcMih. dcspik- mu N ttilkaiioii ol'cun-ctn Vacts, ralings can be iUTl-cil-«I In littiiivuncnl> i-i cndilitvis
thai nciv ni»i :imici|\ilt.nl at llic lime a talinii was issued ur arfimicil-

liulia Kaiines sccl^s to tnniiiii,ii'ii>|N iinpnnc its ratinus criteria ami incllmdnlnaics. ami pcriodicuih
updates the "ilcscri|nion> on its wehsiic of its criteria iiml metlutdolojiics for securities ol'a iiiveit i\pe. llic
criicna ami methodology used to deietniinc a rating aelion are ihosc in ell'eel at the litnc the laiing actimi
IS taken, nhidi for puLdk ratings is the date ol'ihc related rating aeiion eoMiiiieni:ii> I iieli i.iting aelion
coinmeniary pnnides inrorniaiioii ainnit the criteria and motliodologv used lo arrive at the slated lalina.
nhidi niav dilVer rrnm the genera! criteria and niclhodcilogy Ibi the applicahle security lypc posted on the
uehsiic at a given time, l-'or this reti.son. you slioiild always consult the applicahle rating aelioii
coininent.ir\ I'oi the most aeeiii'Hic inrormation on llie basis urany given public rating.

Riiliiiiis are ba.scd on eslabli.sheci criteria and methodologies thai India l<aling.s is coiiliniioiis(\ esatiuiling
.aid iipdalini!. Thercl'orc. ratings arc the collective oork product ol" Imiia Killings and no iiidividual. or
liouip ol" iiuhviduals. is .solely responsible for a rating. .All India Kaiings reports have shareil authorship,
hulividmils ideniilled in an India Ratings report were involved in. hm are not solely resimnsible lor, the
opinions slated therein, rite individinils ane named for contact purposes only

Killings are not a rcconimendatiuii or suggestion, directly or iiulirecily. u» yuii or any oilier pcison. to buy.
sell make or lu'ld am invcstmoni. loan or security or to undertake any invcstnicrn strategy vsilh tespeei lo
any invesimenl. loan'or sceui ily or any issuer. Ratings do not cnmmeni on die jidciiiiacy .'I maikel prke.
ihe .siiitabililv of anv investmem. loan or seciiriiy lor a particniar iiivcslnr lineUidlng wiihoui limiuiiion.
am aceouniiiiu aiul.'or regulators treatment), or the tax-exempi itature or laxabiliiy of payineiih made m
rcsiieci of ain irnestment. loan or securiiy. India Ratings is not your advisor, nor is liulia Ratings
providm" to sou or am other pariv anv llnancial advice, oi any legal, auditing, actminimg. appraisal,
viiliialion 01 actuarial k-rviees. A rating should not be viewed as a ivpiacemeni lor such advice or
ser\ ices.

ii will he impnrianl tlial yon promptly provide us with all iiil'onnalion ihm m.iy be inalerial lo ihc ralings
Ml thai oui ralimis coinimic to be appropriate. Uating-s may be raised, lowered, withdrawn, or placed on
Rating Watch diic to changes in. additions to. acciiiacy of or the inadequacy of inlbrnialuin or lor any
oilier reason India Ralings deems sulTicicnt

Noihing ill this letter is imended lo or should be construed as ercaliiig ii llducimy ivhiliondiip between
iiidin Ralings and vou or between India Ratings and any user ot the ralings.

In this letter. "India Ratings" means India Rulings & Research IM. l.td. and any successor iii imcfesi,

\Vc iiie plciised lo have had the opportunity lo tie of service !o you. ft we can lie ol turther assistance,
please conluct Ihe undersigned at 022 • 4000 1700.

Sinccrelv.

India Riiiings

4-
l>eveiidra Kumar Pant

Senior Director

Simil KumarSiiilia
Direcloi

Miihiin Hhiiriitniir Kxiircssivitv l.imilcd
I (>

7 ^

LJ
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India Ratings
&: Research
A Fitch Croup Company

India Ratings Assigns Mahua Bharatpur Expressway's NCDs
Final 'IND AAA(SO)': Outlook Stable

16
Bv Siva Subramanian

Indfa Ratings and Researdt (Ind-Ra) has undertaken the following rating actions on Mahua

NOV 2017 Brpressways Umited's (MBB.) non-convertible debentures (NCDs):

In^niment Date of Coupon Maturity

Type Issuance Rate i Date

!  (%)

Size of

Issue

(million)

Rating/Outlook Rating

Action

Series A - - ^ •
debenbtres i

1NR1.842 INOAAA

(SO)/StaWe

As^gned

Series B . i .

debentures 1
- INR78 INDAAA

{S0)/5table

Asdgned

The final ratings have been assigned after the receipt of executed thjandng documents: debenture trust deed,

debenture trustee agreement, supt^ementary escrow agreement and subordination agreement. The confirmation of die

execution of the escrow agreement Is pending from National Highways Authority of India (NHAI; TND AAA'/StaMei: and

MBEL has provided an undertaking to execute the docuntents Immediately after the conflrmabon from NHAL In the

event of any changes, MBEL vrould re-execute the escrow agreement in a manner agreeable to all parties.

The NCO issuartce has a fixed coupon, eDminatlng the Interest rate variation risk. The proceeds win be used to

refinance MBQ.'s existing bank loans and issue ei^enses, and create a debt service reserve account (D5RA).

KEY RATING DRIVERS

Established Operational Track Record: The ratings reflect the projed's long operadonal track record of more than

eight years, with a sustained growth In traffic and toll revenue (toll revenue CAGR over FY10-FY17: 12.7% and traffic

CAGR over FY10-FY17: 6.4%). Toll rates are 100% linked to the wholcsate price Index, due to which the toll rates

Increased 6% yoy In June 2017. However, given die Improvement In traffic numbers, die revenue dependence on toll

escalation has reduced to some exttnL Monthly toll collection from two toll (Aaas (at Amoli and Ludhawal] combined

Increased to INR4fi million in FY17 from INR22 million In FYIO. MBEL recorded a toll revenue of INR307 million for

6MFY1S. As on 31 March 2017, MBEL had cash and cash equivalents of tNR27& million.

Since the start of tolling in FVIO, passenger cars have been accoundng for around 41% of the total traffic compo^on

(12.5% of revenue), as the projed stretch connects Important cities such as Jaipur and Agra, which are two prominent

tourist destinations for domestic and international tourists. Considering die project's strategic location and vital

connectivity to the ports In Gujarat, mineral-rich areas such as central and western Rajasdtan, and eastern Indian

states (eastern Dttar Pradesh, Bttiar, West Bengal, Assam and others), Ind-Ra expects reasonable revenue growth over

the medium to long term, leading to strong coverage metrics.

Robust Cash nowrs: The ratings further reAed MBB.'s strong coverage metrics. Ind-Ra has assui

CO
\



growth rate throughout ttie debt tenure and a higher operation and maintenance expenses than projected by MBS-'s

managemenL Also, the cash flows show resilience to strong downside stresses. Even flat growth from FY20 Is not likely

to Impair MBEL's debt serviceability.

Improved Debt Structure/Strong Structural Features: The refinancing exercise ben^ts from an extended

amortisation schedule and a fixed int^est rate for die entire tenure. Lender protection features Indude:

An upfront DSRA equivaleni to six months of debt service obligations will be created and will further be

augm&Tted to nine months of debt service obligations. Havrever. the DSRA an be replaced vdth a non-fund-based

bank guarantee from the sponsor or Its affiliates. According to the management, a DSRA totalling 1NR99.11 mlliion has

been created.

A major maintenance reserves (MMR) would be crested operational ash flows for a prtrposed

major maintenance In September 2019. MBEL, starting from December 2017, would be required to maintain the MMRA

balance on a quarterly basis, as mentioned In the MKRA schedule, until the quarter ending September 2019. No new

MMR guarantee halite procured in relation to hie presalbed MMR amount appliable for the last IS months of die

MMR period (I.e. a MMR guarantee annot be procured from month 43 until mtmth 60 of the MMR period, and only

ash must be trantfc^red from tee escrow amount.

The executed documents indlate a quarterly minimum DSCR testing of l.Sx. If the quarterly payout

date Is a date when there is no scheduled principal repayment on die NCDs, the Issuer an transfe' all surplus amounts

(subject to meeting the DSCR covenant for the trailing 12-month peiiod) generated until that quarterly payout date to

the distribution account after reserving an amount equtvalert to the amount of the debt senridng due on the next

scheduled debt servicing date.

In the event of DSCR below l.Sx on any quarterly tesdng dates for the trailing Umonftis, the enthe

surplus generated by the asset will be mapped In the cash retenOon account

Prescribed WaterfttI Medianism: An Independent trustee appointed wilt monitor the escrow account and Ihe

reserves on which there wlH be a lien. The trustee will also momtor the ̂ ipn^rlatiDns induding debt smdce [uymenls

which will be governed try the Allowing prescribed watertell medianlsn In line with concession agreement- a) statutory

dues; b) regular maintenance; c) debt payment; d) major maintenance reserve; e) DSRA; f) ash retention account;

and g) distribution account. Moreover, bond documents have covenants that predude additional borrowings on MBEL's

books and a mechanism to Instruct die escrow bank to transfer the necessary amounts from the DSRA and permitted

investments made from the DSRA Into the debt payment account before five business days, on account of Insuffident

funds to pay the debt due under the debentures on that due date.

Expected Strong Growth In Influential Areas Mitigates Volume Risk: The completed constrvction of the ring

road In Jaipur and die planned ring road ki Agra, coupled with upcoming eastern dediated freight corridor

developments, are llk^ to spruce up the construction matehal demand and bring additional commercial traffic to this

project road. The construction of the ring road mentioned above, in the long run, is likely to Increase the economic

actM^ on the stretch. Addlhonallv, the project road onnects the ports In die vrestem side to the hinterland In Uttar

Pradesh. The project road Is the shorted distance between the proposed western dedlatcd freight corridor (linking

Jawahartal Nehru Port Trust hi Gujarat to Dadri In Uttar Pradesh) and the eastern dediated freight corridor (linking

Ludhlana In Punjab to DankunI In West Bengal).

Financially Strong Sponsors: Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte Ltd (Cube Highways) owns a 99.97% stake In

MBEL. Cube Highways Is promoted by !-Squared Capital (S0% stake) and International Finance Corporation (20%).

I-Squared Capital Is an Independent global Infrastructure fund with a focus on the energy, ubllty and transport sectors

in die US, Europe and select hlgh-groivUi large economics such as China and India. International Finance Corporation Is

the private sector arm of the World Bank.

Capacity Augmentation and Variable Concession Period; The concession agreement stipulates that NHAI an

construct an addlttonal loilway after eight years from the commercial operations date (8 May 2009). In the event NHAI

deciding to construct the additional toUway, the concession period vrould be increased by half the number of years by

which such commissioning precedes the expiry of the concession period. Altematively, if NHAI derides to inwte a

proposal for aparity augmentetion, MBEL has the option to participate in such a bid and has to match the lowest offer.

If MBEL decides not to participate, the bid document for capacity augmentation will specify a terminatiWLPaym^t. The

current concesSon ends on 9 April 2031. xpr«

V
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Adequate Coverage Ratios: Ind-Aa's forecasts reveal that the project has adequate coverage ratios throughout dd>t

maturity. Also, MBQ. can withstand a high traffic downside midwut defaulting cm debt commitments due to the

availability of the nine-month DSRA. In FY17, f^^'s revenue was !N(t580.94 million (Pf16: mRS95 million) and

EBITDA margin was 34.61% (53,00%).

RATING SENSITIVITIES

Negative: Material deterioration In coverage ratios and failure to adhere to the debt ̂ucture/covenants would result

In a negative rating aoton.

COMPANY PROFILE

MBH. is a ̂ ledal purpose vehlde formed to construct, operate and transfer a 57km road str^ch in Rajasthan that Ues

between Bhartapurand Mahua on NH 21 (formerly NK 11). The project has been awarded by NHAI on a build, operate

and transfw (toll) basis and has a concession period of 25 years, starting 14 April 2006. Tolling on the project stretch

commenced in May 2009. The first major maintenance activity was concluded in June 2016.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Particulars FY17 FY16

Total revenue (indvdlng operating and maintenance support from NHAI and Interst income) (INR million) 662.41 676.89

^eating expenses (INR mKlon) 448.23 318.16

EBTTDA (INR mUUon) 214.18 358.74

Cash and cash equivalents (INR million) 276.084 131.87

Debt/EBITDA (x) 4.76 4.94

Source: MBEL

RATING HISTORY

Instniment Type Current Rating/Outlook Historical Rating/Outlook

Rating Type Rated

Amount

(million)

Rating 28 September 2017

Non-convertible debenture (NCOs) Long-term INR1,920 IND AAA(SO)/Sable Provisional IND AAA(SO]/Stab!e

ANNEXURE

ISIN

Number

INE835HC7021

INE83SH0ra39

Series

Sertes

A1

Series

A2

Date of

Allotment

16 October

2017

16 October

2017

Coupon Rate

(Vc)

8.40

8.40

Redemption

Date

3 October 201B

3 Ocbiber 2019

Size of Issue

(million)

INR20

ngR2
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INE835H07047

INE83SH07a54

Series

A3

16 October

2017

8.40

8.40

5 October 2020

4 October 2021

1NR46

INRIOOSeries

M

16 Octoba

2017

1NE835H07062 Series

AS

16 0(&ber

2017

8.40 3 October 2022 INRllO

INE835H07070 Series ' 16'October

A6 ' 2017
8.40 3 October 2023 }NR14a

INE83SH07088 Series

A7

16 October

2017

8.40 3 0ct^ 2024 INR150

1NEB35H071)96

IN£e31M07104

Series

AS

Series

A9

16 October

2017

8.40 3 0cnber 202S 1NR200

16 October

2017

8.40 5 October 2026 INR210

INa35H07112 Sales

AlO

16 October

2017

8.40 4 October 2027 INR220

IKE835H07120 Series

All

16 0ct^e-

2017

8.40 3 October 2028 1NR2S0

IME835H07138 Series

A12

16 Ocb>ber

2017

8.40 3 October 2029 INR250

INe835H07W6 Series

A13

16 Octobo'

2017

8.40 29 March 2030 INR120

Total-Series A IMtl,842

1NE63SH07153 Series

81

16 October

2017

6.40 3 October 2018 INR20

INEB3SH07t81 Series

B2

16 October

2017

8.40 3 October 2019 INR24

INE83SH07179 Series

B3

16 October

2017

8.40 S October 2020 INR34

Total-Series 8 INR78

COMPLEXITY LEVEL OF INSTRUMENTS

For details on complexitv tevds of the Instruments, |

SOLICITATION DISCLOSURES

i.eQ.ln/eomDtedtvHrHlicatofs.

AddiUortal information Is available at www.indiarabngs.co.ln. 1be ratings above were solicited by, or on behalf of, the

Issuer, and therefore, India Ratings has been compensated for the provision of the ratings.

Ratings are not a recommendation or suggestion, directly or Iridlrectly, to you or any other person, to buy, sell, make or

hold any ln^«sCIT1ent, loan or security or to undertake any Investment strategy with reflect to any investment, loan or

security or any Issuer.

ABOUT INDIA RATINGS AND RESEARCH

d>

yew



India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) is India's most respected aedit fating agency committed to providing India's credit

markets accurate, timely and prospective credit opinions. Built on a foundation of Independent thinking, rigorous

analytics, and an open and balanced approach towards aedit research, Ind-Ra has grown rapidly during the past

decade, gaining significant market presence in India's fixed income market.

Ind-Ra currency maintains coverage of corporate issuers, financial institutions (including banks and Insurance

companies), finance and leasing companies, managed funds, urtun local bodies, structured flnsnce and project finance

companies.

Headquartered In Mumbal, Ind-Ra has seven branch offices located in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chcnnal, Odhi,

Hyderabad, Kolkata and Rune. Ind-Ra Is recognised by the Seajritles and Btchange Board of India, the Reserve Bank of

India and National Housing Bank.

Ind-Ra is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Fitch Group.

For more information, visit www.lndiaratlnas.co.ln.

DISCLAIMER

ALL CREDIT RATINGS ASSIGNED BY INDIA RATINGS ARE SUBJEa TO CERTAIN aMTTATlGNS AND DISCLAIMERS,

PLEASE READ "nHESE UMITATIONS AND DISCLAIMERS BY F0U0WIN6 THIS UNK;

HTrPS://WWW-INDIARATlNGS.COi»/RATING-DEFlNrnONS. IN ADDITION, RATING DEFINmONS AND THE TERMS

OF USE OF SUCH RATINGS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE AGENCY'S PUBUC WERSITE WWW.INDIARATINGS.CO.IN.

PUBLISHED RATINGS, CRITERIA, AND METHODOLOGIES ARE AVAILABLE FROM THIS SITE AT ALL TIMES. INDIA

RATINGS' CODE OF CONDUCT, CONFIDSMTIALrTY, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, AFFILIATE RREWALL, COMPLIANCE,

AND OTHER RELEVANT POUOB AND KIOCEDURES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM THE CODE OF CONDUCT SECTION

C»= THIS SITE.
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Ratino Criteria for Infrastructure and Prelect Finance
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Associate Director
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Secondary Analyst

Rabiam Raju Nakka

Associate Director

022 40001742

t*Pre

£

\



Venkataraman Rajaraman
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Ratings PDIQII
CONFIDENTIAL W IX I O I L.

GDSII 176'I86387/NCD/(»I700965
Ociober 12.2017 AnS&PGlobalCompanif

•Mr. Raman T>a|i
Director

•Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Ltmiicd
B-806 '807. Advani Navis Business Park

Sector 142

Noida- 201305

Dear Mr. Raman Tyagi.

Re: CRISIL Rating for the Rs. 184.2 Crorc Non-Conscrliblc Debentures'^ of Maliua Bharatpur ExpressHuys Limited
(MEEL)

All ratings assigned by CRISIL are kept under continuous surveillance and review.

CRLSIL has, sficr due consideration, realTirmed tts rating of "Provisional CRISiL AAA ($0)/S(able" (pronounced as
Provisional CRISIL triple A structured (Rvligation raung with stable outlook) to the captioned debt instrument. Iiisiniments with
iliis rating arc considered to have the highest degree of safci) regarding timclj servicing of lltianetal obligations. Such
insininiems carry lowest credit risk.

Kindly note that the provisional rating will be converted to final rating after CRISIL receives the following confirmations and
transaction documents duly executed within 120 days from the date of assignment of the provisional rating, to the satisfaction
of CRISIL.

• Debenture trust agreement,
• Debenture trust deed,

• Escrow agreement,
• Supplementary escrow agreement
• Subordiiiiition Agreement
• Trustee awareness letter

• Representations and warranties lener

CRISIL will issue a final rating letter on receipt of documents mentioned above.

Please note that, in arriving at the ratings. CRISIL has assumed that the representations made by MBEL are true and that the
structure, based on which the rating is assigned, shall work and operate as represented by MUEL. CRISIL does not guarantee
the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the representations made by you to CRISIL and'or the representations made in the
transaction documents. CRISIL is not responsible for any acts of commission or omission of the MBEL and'or the Trustee.

As per our Rating AgreemenL CRJSIL would disseminate the rating along with outlook through its publications and other
media, and keep the rating along with outlook under surveillance for the life of the instrument. CRISIL reserves the right to
withdraw, or revise the rating I outlook assigned to the captioned instrument at any time, on the basis of new information, or
unavailability of information, or other circumstances which CRISIL believes may have an impact on the rating.

As per the latest SEBI circular (reference number: CJR.'IMD/DF;17/2013: dated October 22. 2013) on centralized database for
corporate bonds/debentures, you are required to provide iniemalional securities identification number I'ISIN; along with the
reference number and the date of the rating letter) of all bond/delreniurc issuances made against this rating letter to us. The
circular also requires you to share this information w ith us w ithin 2 days after the allotment of the ISIN. We request you to mail
us all the necessary and relevant Information at debiissue@crisil.coiii. Ihis will enable CRISIL to verify ami confirm to the
depositories, including NSDL and CDSL. the ISIN details of debt rated by us. as required by SEBI. Feel free to conwct us for
any ciarificaiions you may have at debtissue@cristl.com

Should you require any clarifications, please feel free to gel in touch with us.

With warm regards.

Yours sincerely.

Sushmita Majumdar Nivcdiia Shibu
Director - CRISIL Ratings Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings

A CRISIL rshnp mfleers CRiSJL'scurren' oomifinonlttsliktlihocOclumeiyfaymsntolthe obiigaliotiturKSei ins/afed/nstmmenr inadoo&fxx constitute en autS of
the tatoc} enixy ty CRISIL CRISIL ratings are liased on mlormalton proviOed by the issuer or obiatneO by CRISIL Irom sources i canstOors rellaOle. CPIS'L does not
guarantee the completeness or accuracy ol the mformahon on which the rating is based A CRiSiL ratmg is not a recommendation to t>uy. ssH. or hold the rated
instrument, it does not comment on the merfietpnceorsuitabllitylorB panicuiar Investor AJI CRiSiL ratings are itnder seirvsiHsnes Raiingsare revised as end when
omumatances so warrant CRISIL's not responsible tor any errors and espedally stales iiiat n Iras no fmanoal liabilty whatsoever to ffis suescnbais / users t
iransmitterstdisinbatorso/lhisptcdua. CRISIL Ratings rating cntena the public on the CIVSIL web site, wvnvcnsilcom Porihe
latest rating mhsrmatioo en anylnstnimeni of Helpdesit at 1300-267-lXI

R«gtotar«<10fflc«:CRISILKouM,C«r[tr*IAveflii«.HIranand«nl Business Park. Powai, Mumbei • 400076. Pttonst-fOl 223362 3000 I Faxt-f0122 4060 6600
wmv.crisil.com



Ratings CRISIL
An S&P Global Company

A prefix of'Provisional' indicates ihai the rating centrally factors in the strength of specific structures, and will be supported
bv certain critical documentation by the issuer, without which the rating would cither have been dilTcreni or not a.ssigned ab
iiiitio. This is in compliance with a May 6. 2015. directive by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SCUl).
'Standardising the term, rating symbol, and manner of disclosure with regard to conditional' provisional ' in-principle ratings
atcsigncd by credit rating agencies (CRAs)'

/ L

A CRISIL rating reflecss CRISIL'S comnt opWon cn W# IMIihood of timely payment of the ebligaltons unOerit\e rated msinjmant end does not consljliAa^Mdit ̂
me rated entiSy by CW'SfL CRtStl. ratings are baaed on rnfoimafion provided by the issuer or obtained by CRISIL from sources It consnfers r&rable CRISIL does not
guarantee the comptefeness or accuracy of the WAsrmation on wtiicb Ihe rating is based A CRISIL ratmg Is not a teoommendetion to buy. sell, or hold ine rated
inslrumeni e does not comment on the tnadtel price or suHabilily lor e panieufar mveslof. All CRiSIL ratings are under surveillance Ratings are revised as end Mhen
oicumstances so wanani CWS/L Is not responsible for any errors and espeaaliy stales thai it has no financial frabitily whatsoever to the subscribers / vse^
rransmiffeis / distnbulors of this pcodud CR/SIL Ratings rating cnfena emseUMnMfiouf charge to the public on the CRISIL iveb site, w.vw cnsllcom For the
latest rating informelion on any mslfument Of any Helpdesk at 1600-267-13q t

RaglaterMi Office: CfilSiL House. Central Avenue. Hiranandani Business Park. Powai, Mumbai - A00076. Phona: +91 22 3342 3000
www.cnsil.cam

Fax;+91 224040SB00
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Ociobcr 12.2017

CRISIL
An SSP Global Company

.Mr. Kainan Tyagi
Director

Mahua Bharaipur Expressways Umltcil
B-S06'807. Advam Navis Business Park

Sector 142

Noiria- 201305

Dear Mr. Raman 1 yagi.

Re: CKISIL Rating Tor the Rs.7.8 Crorc Nnn-Coiiscrtihie Debentures'^ oFMahua Bharaipur Expressways Limited
tMBF.L)

All ratings assigned by CRISIL are kepi under continuous surveillance and review.

CRiSll. has, after due consideration, reaffirmed its rating of "Provisional CRISIL AAA (SO)/StabIc" (pronounced as
Provisional CRISIL triple A structured obli^tion rating with stable outlook) to the captioned debt insirumem. Instiomcnts with
this rulina are considered to have the highest degree of safely regarding timely servicing of tlnancial obligations. Such
insii'innents carry lowest credit risk.

Kindly note that the provisional rating will be convened to final rating after CRISIL receives the following confinnations and
traiKsaciion documents duly executed within 120 days from the date of assignment of the provisional rating, to the satisfaction
ofCRISIL.

• Debenture trust agreement,
• Debenture trust deed,

• Escrow agreement.
• Supplementary escrow agreement
• Subordination Agreement
• Trustee awareness letter

• Representations and warranties letter

CRISIL will issue a final rating letter on receipt ofdocumcnu rrwniioned above.

Please note that, in arriving at the ratings. CRISIL has assumed that the representations made by MBEL are true and that the
structure, based on which the ratingds assigned, shall work and operate as represented by MBEL. CRISIL does not guarantee
the accuracy, adcrjuacy. or compklcness of the representations made by you to CRISIL and/or the representations made in tlic
trunsaction documents, CRISIL Is not responsible for any acts of commission or omission of the MBEL and'or the Trustee.

As per our Rating Agreement. CRISIL would disseminate ilic rating along with outlook through its publications and other
media, and keep the rating along with outlook under surveillance for the life of llic instrument. CRISII. reserves the right to
withdraw, or revise the nuing < outlook assigned to the captioned instrument at any time, on the basis of new- infornialion, or
unavailability of information, or other circumstances which CRISIL believes may have an impact on the rating.

As per the latest SEBI circular (reference number CIR-IMO/DP/IT/^Oi:.; dated October 22. 2013) on centralized datable for
corporate bonds/debcniurcs, you are required to provide international securities identification number (ISIN: along with the
reference number and the dale of the rating letter) of all bond/debenture issuances made against this rating letter to us. The
circular also requires you to share this information with us within 2 days after the allotment of the ISIN. We request you to mail
us all the necessary and relevant information at debtissue@crisil,coni. This will enable CRISIL to verify and confirm to the
depositories, including NSDL and CDSL. the ISIN details of debt rated by us. as required by SEBi. Feel free to contact us for
any clarifications you may have at debtissue@crisil.com

Should you require any clarifications, please feel free to gel in touch with us.

Whh warm regards.

Yours sincerely.

Sushinita Majumdar
Director • CRISIL Ratings

Nivedita Shibu

Associate Director - CRISIL Ratings

lie an audit ofACfitSIL rating lefleas CfilSIL's aiTanl opimen on the likelitiood ol hmely payment of me oougaaons under the rated instrvment and does not»
the rated entity Dy CRiS'L CRiSiL ratings are based on in/ormalio'i p/ovded Dy the issuer or cblemed by CRiStL from sources iiconsKiers raiiab'e CRiSIL does not
guarantee Itie completeness or accuracy ol the inlormation an nnicn the ralmg is based A CRISIL rating is not a recommendation to buy. sen. or Md ins ratetf
matrurryent. a does not comment on the market prKe or swiabiiily for a paMitMttiimstoJAll CPtSli ratings are under swveHtanx Ratings are /eviseO as arid when
arcumstances so warrant CRtSIL is not c^J,

, d.^nn,irnii nt this nmdurl CfllSli Rr^mos ratmo cmena ate aumieSle without Ja/qsTo ftw putUiC On »ie ^

Mww.crisil.com



Ratings CRISIL
An S&P Global Company

'A prefix of "Provisional" indicates Itiai the raiing centrally factors in the strengih of specific structures, and will be supported
by certain critical documentation by the issuer, ivitbout which the rating would either have been different or not assigned ab
initio. This is in compliance with a May ft, 2015, directive b> the Securities and Exchange Board of India <SEBI).
'Standardising the icmi, rating symbol, and manner of disclosure with regard to conditional'' provisional,' in-principle ratings
assigned by credit rating agencies (CRAs)'

A Cft'S/L rating refiocts CR/SILScurrenft<>''"o''onlt)eW<elif)OOdcrftimetypeymenlerftti#oSilpga/ionsufKJef tfteratedinstfwnenf snddoesnotConsMotean aotW of
We rated enWIyC/Cft/SiL CRtS/t mtings an base<3 on MofmaHonproviM by the issuer or Mained by CRISIL f/wnwiwesstf considers ratieOte CRlSli does not
guarantee tfte eompWeness or accuracy ot the intomisf/on on wntcft the rstmg is based A CfHSH rating Is not a recommendaVcn to buy. sell, or hold the rated
insirvmenf: tfdoesnof com/ttonf on (be madWtpriceorsu/tab/'Sy ftvaparficolennvestor. All CRISIL ratings are under surveillance Ratings are revised as and Mrfien
circumstances so warrant CRISIL is not responsible for any errors and espeoaily sletes that it has no financial ftaOiKly wbatsoever to Ibe subscnbers / users /
transmitters 7 distnfiufers of this product CRiSiL Ratings rating cnfena Charge to Ibe puMc on fbe CRiSiL web site, ivnw cnsii com For the
(afast raw?/nrpfmation on any instrument ofany 1800-267-130?

Regictered l>ffie«: CRISI1. House, Central Avenue, HiranandanI Business Parti, Powal, Mumliai - 400076. Phone: +91 2233423000 I Faa: +91 2240409600
vnvw.crisU.com
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Mr Hainan Tyaa;!.
Diroclor

Mciluia IJharaiptir lixprcssways l.iniiicd
B-Rfl6,8fl7. Atlvanl Xji\ is Business Park.

Plot mv 07. Noi(lii-2()l3(lr

ConiaclNo, 0120-486833:

September 28. 2017

Kind Ann: Mr. Raman Tvavi. Director

Dear Sir.

Rc: Rating to proposed senior sceurcd imn-convcrtlblc debentures of Mahiia Bhanitpur
Kxprcssuay? lamited

India Hatiniis and Rescareli (liui-Ra} has assigned Mnliiia Bharatpiir IRprcsswass I.iinileil's (MHI-I,)
proiwscd non-conveilible debentures (NCDs) as follows:

Instrument Type Size of Issue (million) Rating/Outlook Rating Action

Proposed NCDs 1NRI.920 Provisional IND AAA(SO) I Stable Assigned

'J'he proposed NCD issue will have a fixed eotipon. eliminating the interc.si rate variation risk. The bond
will he amortised over 25 iiiicmial scmi-annuril instalments. Proeceds from the NCI) issue will Ik used to
refimince MBPL's e.xisting bank loans, incur expenses in relation to the issue and crediting funds to the
Debt SeiA'ice Reserve Account (DSRA). In addition to the proposed NCDs, there shall be a subonlinatcd
-sptmsor debt outstanding.

The final rating will be assigned following the closure of the issue upon the receipt of final
documentation, eonforming to the infumiation already received by Ind-Ra.

■|"hc rating rationale has been published on India Ratings website.

In issuing and inainluining its ratings, India Ratings relies on factual information il receives from issuers
and underwriters and from other sources India Ratings believes to be credible. India Ratings conducts a
reasonable investigation of the factual iufonnation relied upon by il in accordance wrili its ratings
methodology, and obtains reasonable verification of that information from independent .sources, to the
extent such sources arc available for a given sccuriis.

Tlic manner of India Ratings factual investigmion and the sc<tpc of the tliird-parly verification il obtains
will vaiy depending on the nature of the rated security and its issuer, the availability and nature of
relevant public information, access to the management of the issuer and its advisers, the availabilhy of
pre-existing third-party verificiitions such as audit reports, agrccd-iipon procedures letters, appraisals,
actuarial reports, engineering reports, legal opinions and other reports provided by third parlies, the
availability of independent and competent third-party verification sources with respect to the pmiiculur
security or in the particular junsdielion of the issuer, and a variety of other factors.

India Ratings & Research Private Limited A Fitch Group Company
601 -9, Prakashdecp Building. 7 Tolstoy Marg. New De'hi 110001

Tet:+9111 "13567230 I Fa*.»91 11 43567231 I CIN/LLPIN U67100MH1995FTC140049 I www.indlaratings.co.in
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Usci-s of India Ratings ratings should understand that neither an enhanced factual investigation nor any
third-party vcrillcathrn can ensure that all of the information India Ratings relies on in connection with a
rating will he aeciirale and coniplelc. Uliiniaiel.v. tlic issuer and its advisers arc responsible for the
aceiirac\ of the inrorniaiion ihc\ provide lo India Ratings and to the market in offering d»K-nmcnts and
other reports. In issuing its ratings India Ratings must rclj on the work of experts, including independent
auditors v\iili respect to nnancial sialemciits and attorneys with rc-speci to legal and lax mailers, further,
ratings are inlieronlly forward-looking and cinbnds assumptions and predictions about future events that
by their nature cannot he vcritled as facts. As a result, despite any vcritleation of eurrenl liiels. ratings
can be alVcclcd b\' future events or conditions that were not anticipated al the lime a rating was issued or
alTirmcd.

India Ratings seeks lo continuously improve its ratings criteria and methodologies, and periodically
U|xlaics the descriptions on its website ofils criteria and metiiodolouics for securities ofa given type. The
criteria and niciiiodolouy used to determine a rating action arc those in effect al the time liic rating action
is taken, which for public ratings is llie date of the related rating action commemary. facii rating action
commentary provides information about the criteria and methodology used lo arrive at the stated rating,
which may differ from the general criteria and methodology for the applicable sceuiily l\ pe posted on the
website at a given time, for this reason, you should always consult the applicable raling aclioti
commemary for the most accurate information on the basis of any given public rating.

Ratings arc based on established criteria and methodologies that India Ratings is coiitiniioiisly evaliuiting
and updating. Therefore, ratings are the collective work product of India Ratings and no individual, or
group of individuals, is solely responsible for a rating. All India Ratings reports have shared autliorsliip.
Individuals idcnlrficd in an India Ratings report were involved in. but are not solely responsible for. the
opinions stated therein. The individiisls arc named for contact purposes only.

Ratings arc not a recommendation or suggestion, directly or iiidirecliy. to \'ou or an\ other person, to Iniy.
sell, make or hold any investment, loan or security or to undertake any investment strategy wiili respect lo
any investment, loan or security or any issuer. Ratings do not comment on the adct|ii}icy of market price,
the suitability of any investment, loan or security for a particular investor (including withoul limitalion.
any accounting and/or regulatory treaimcnl), or (he ta.x-cxcmpl nature or inxabilily of payments made in
respect of any invcsimcnt. loan or sceiirily. India Ratings is not your advisor, nor is India Ralings
providing to you or any other paity any financial advice, or any legal, auditing, aceouming. ajipraisal.
valuation or iteluarial services. A rating should not be viewed as a rcpl.ieemenl for such advice or
services.

It will he iinporlanl that you promptly provide us with all informalioii thai may lie material lo the ratings
so that our ralings continue to be appropriate. Ratings may be raised, lowered, withdrawn, or placed on
Raling Watch due to changes in. additions lo. accuracy of or the inadequacy of information or for any
other reason India Ralings deems sufllcient

>

Nothing in this letter is intended lo or should be consimed as creating a llduciary rclultonship helvveen
India Ratings and you or between India Ratings and any user ofthe ratings.

In this letter. "India Ratings" means India Ratings & Research I'vt. Tul. and any successor in imeiesl.

Muhun UhHra(|iur Expressway Seiilcmlicr 2017



India Ratings
& Research

Fitch Group

We ;irc pli-jisctl In luivc hml Ihe (ippiiriuiiiis to be of service to yoti. If we can he of fiinlier iissisiiiilcc.
please contact the undersigned at 022 - 4000 1700.

Sincerely.

India Ratings

Ocvcndra Kumar Pant

Senior Director

StfrfTrKTiinar Sinha
Director

MahuA Bharalpur Expresstvay Liaitcd 28 September 2017
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MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Corporate Information

Board of Directors:

Mr. Andrew Lewis

Mr. Raman Tyagi

Mr. Ravindranath Karat)

Ms. Vasundhara Peddapalle

Mr. Ashok Gupta

Mr. Akhil Kumar Jain

Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Andrew Lewis, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Narsinga Rao Challa, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Jatin Makkar, Company Secretary

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. Gianender & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Registered Office:

1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda,

Himayatnagar, Hyderabad,

Telangana 500029
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Invitation to attend the 12'^ Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on Thursday, July 06, 2017

Dear Members/Directors/Auditors

You are cordially invited to attend the 12*^ Annual General Meeting of the Mahua
Bharatpur Expressways Limited which wlli be held on Thursday, the 06'^ July, 2017
at 10:00 A.M, at the registered office of the Company situtated at 1^' Floor,

Domalguda, HImayatNagar, Hyderabad, 500029.

The notice convening the Annual General Meeting is attached herewith.
"  - r

Yours Truly

By the Order of the Board

For Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

Jatin Makkart

Company Secretary

Wa-64, Shakarpur, Delhi-10092

Date: June 13, 2017

Place: Noida

Enclosure:

1. Notice of AGM

2. Attendance Slip

3. Proxy Form

4. Route Map
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(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipuv Expyesiwaus Limited)

NOTICE GFTHE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 12^^ (Twelfth) Annual General Meeting of the Company will

be held on Thursday, July 06, 2017 at 10:00 A.M. at the registered office of the Company

situated at 1^^ Floor,1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayat Nagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029 to

transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31" March, 2017 and

statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date along with the Cash Flow

Statement and notes forming part of accounts together with the Reports of Directors' and

the Auditors' thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raman Tyagi, who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this

Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 17^^ Annual General Meeting to be held

for the Financial Year 2021-22 and fix their remuneration and to pass the following

resolution thereof:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,

2014, as amended from time to time and pursuant to the recommendation of Audit

Committee of the Board of Directors, M/s Natvar Lai Vepari & Co. , Chartered

Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106971W ) (' Statutory Auditors') be and are hereby

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of

ensuing Annual General Meeting ('AGM') till the conclusion of the 17^^ AGM to be held

for the financial year 2021-22 subject to ratification of their appointment at every AGM

at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board and the Statutory

Auditors, based on the recommendation of Audit committee."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. TO APPROVE THE SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY FROM "STATE OF

TELANGANA" TO "NATIONAL CAPITAL TERRITORY OF DELHI"

To consider and If thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT In partial modification of the earlier resolution passed by shareholders

at Its meeting held on March 29,2016, any Director or Company Secretary of the Company

be and is hereby severally or jointly authorized to issue the notice to all the shareholders,

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)
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MAHUA 3HARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Lt'mt'tecf)

directors and auditors of the Company, as also to all other persons entitled to receive the

notice, to fix the cut-off date to finalize the list of creditors, to serve individual notices to

creditors and to take such further actions and steps as may be deemed necessary In this
regard and to finalize the newspaper advertisement to be published in English language

and any other language as may be prescribed including vernacular language of Telangana

in respect of the shifting of registered office of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds

and things and to sign, execute and file and/ or modify all such forms, papers, applications,

petition, affidavits, indemnity, undertakings and documents with statutory/regulatory

authorities such as Registrar of Companies or Regional Directors or other

Government/Regulatory Authorities, as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013

or any other statute in force and to represent the Company in all other matters incidental

thereto, as may be considered necessary and expedient, other related deeds and

documents with such authorities as may be necessary and to do all such acts, deeds and

things as may be deemed necessary to give effect to the shifting of the registered office

of the Company from the "State of Telangana" to "National CapitalTerritory of Delhi" and

as may be in its absolute discretion deem necessary and to settle any question that may

arise In this regard including delegation of authority by way of letter of authority / power

of attorney to any other persons, If required as may be considered necessary or expedient

to give effect to this Resolution .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ankush Agarwal and/or Mr. Shailesh Kumar Singh,

Company Secretaries in Practice or any other person authorized through a letter of

authority / power of attorney by any Director of the Company, be and are hereby

authorized jointly and/ or severally to act, appear for and defend all actions and

proceedings for and on behalf of the Company in the matter of the application to be filed

before the Regional Director, South East Region, the Registrar of Companies and such

other authorities as may be necessary and to do and/or caused to be done, to execute

and/or caused to be executed all such acts, deeds and things Incidental thereto to give

effect the shifting of registered office of the Company from "State of Telangana" to

"National Capital Territory of Delhi.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT a certified copy of this Resolution be provided to all concerned

under the hands of a Director or Company Secretary of the Company."

5. TO RE- APPOINT MR. ANDREW LEWIS AS CEO AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE

COMPANY FOR A PERIOD OF 3 YEARS

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Sections 196,197,198, 203,

Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with

rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof

for the time being In force), (hereafter called the 'Act') and Articles of Association of the

Company and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be required \V
in this regard, the approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr.

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
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MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS UMtTED

(Fornxeriu knowA as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Un\ited)

Andrew Lewis (DIN:07420188) as the CEO and Executive Director of the Company for a

period of 3 years w.e.f. 29^*^ March 2017 to 28'^ March 2020, liable to retire by rotation, at a
revised remuneration and terms and conditions as set out below:

a) Basic Salary: Rs. 59,841 per month

b) House Rent Allowance (HRA): Rs. 29,921 per month.

c) Transport Allowance: Rs.l600 per month.

d) Special Allowance: Rs. 31,918 per month.

e) Uniform Allowance; Rs. 1,250 per month.

f) Medical Allowance: Rs. 1,250 per month.

g) Children Education Allowance: Rs. 200 per month.

h) Perquisites and Other Entitlements:

Mr. Andrew Lewis will be entitled to the below mentioned perquisites and other entitlements

for official purposes (subject to applicable Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) of the

Company):

i) Leaves as per Company Policy;

ii) Mediclaim, Group Personal Accident (GPA) Insurance and Group Term Insurance;

ii) Reimbursement of traveling, entertainment and other business promotion expenses

actually incurred forthe business of the Company.

Mr. Andrew Lewis shall be entitled to such other benefits or amounts as may be permissible

within the limits underSection 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject

to approval of Board of Directors and members, if required.

The following perquisites shall also be allowed and will not be included in the computation of

the ceiling on perquisites:

I. Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to

the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax

Act, 1961;

II. Payment of Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each

completed year of service; and

III. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.

For the purpose of Gratuity and other benefits, the services of Mr. Andrew Lewis will be

considered continuous with the Company from the date he joined the services of this

Company as Whole Time Director or as may be decided by the Board of Directors from tirne

to time.

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
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(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jafpur Expressways Li'Mi'ted)

Perquisites and allowances shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, 1962 wherever

applicable and in the absence of any such rules, perquisites shall be evaluated at actual cost.

The payment of remuneration including perquisites and allowances are subject to provisions
under the laws applicable at that time.

Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, in case of no profits or inadequate profits in any

financial year, the payment of salary, perquisites and other allowances as aforesaid shall be

made subject to any statutory approval(s) underthe Act and/or the limits as prescribed under

Section II of Part II of Schedule V to the Act or any other statutory modifications therein,

substitutions or re-enactment thereof, as applicable.

Mr. Andrew Lewis shall not be paid any fee for attending meeting(s) of the Board or

Committee(s) thereof.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Andrew Lewis be granted increments annually or otherwise

of the above remuneration (within the overall maximum limits whether or not It is resulting

into any change in any of the heads of aforesaid remuneration) subject to their conformity

with the Act and If required, with any statutory approvals.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the terms and conditions of appointment of Mr. Andrew Lewis be

altered and varied and / or his designation be changed as may be agreed to between the

Board of Directors and Mr. Lewis in terms of the provisions of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and

. are hereby jointly and/or severally, authorized to do, or cause to be done, all such acts,

matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable In connection with or incidental to giving

effect to above resolution (i) including but not limited to filing of necessary forms with the

jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, (ii) making appropriate changes to the statutory

registers maintained by the Company, and (Hi) certifying true copies of the resolution and

forwarding the same to any person or authority for their records and necessary action."

6. Ratification/approval of remuneration paid to Mr. Ravindranath Karati in the capacity of
Executive Director & Chief Finance Officer

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(hereafter called the 'Act') and rules made there under and any amendments thereto or

statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof and Articles of Association of the Company,

recommendation of the Nomination and remuneration committee and further approval by

the Board of directors and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may

be required in this regard, the following remuneration and other benefits allowed to Mr.
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(Fonweriu known as Madl\ucon A^fa-Jaipui' Expreiswaus Liiviited)

Ravindranath Karati in the capacity of Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer, be and is

hereby ratified and approved for a period of two months i.e April 2017 and May 2017."

a) Basic Salary: Rs. 1,23,581 per month

b} House Rent Allowance (HRA): Rs. 61,791 per month.

c) Transport Allowance: Rs.1600 per month.

d) Special Allowance: Rs. 70,498 per month.

e) Uniform Allowance: Rs. 1250 per month.

f) Medical Allowance: Rs. 1250 per month.

g) Children Education Allowance: Rs. 200 per month.

h) Perquisites and Other Entitlements:

Mr. Ravindranath Karati was entitled to the below mentioned perquisites and other
entitlements for official purposes (subject to applicable Standard Operating Procedures
(SOPs) of the Company):

i) Leaves as per Company Policy;

ii) Mediclaim, Group Personal Accident (GPA) Insurance and Group Term Insurance;

ill) Reimbursement of traveling, entertainment and other business promotion expenses

actually incurred for the business of the Company.

Mr. Ravindranath Karati was entitled to such other benefits or amounts as maybe permissible

within the limits under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 subject

to approval of Board of Directors and members, if required.

The following perquisites were allowed and not included in the computation of the ceiling on

perquisites;

I. Company's contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to

the extent these either singly or put together are not taxable under the Income Tax

Act, 1961;

II. Payment of Gratuity payable at a rate not exceeding half a month's salary for each
completed year of service; and

III. Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director and / or Company Secretary of the Company, be and

are hereby jointly and/or severally, authorized to do, or cause to be done, all such acts,

matters, deeds and things necessary or desirable in connection with or incidental to giving

effect to above resolution (i) including but not limited to filing of necessary forms with the

jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, (ii) making appropriate changes to the statutor
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registers maintained by the Company, and (iii) certifying true copies of the resolution and

forwarding the same to any person or authority for their records and necessary action."

7. Change in Designation of Mr. Ravindranath Karati from Executive Director to Non-Executive

Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013

and Articles of Association of the Company, designation of Mr. Ravindranath Karati be and Is

hereby changed from Executive Director to Non-Executive Director of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ravindranath Karati in the capacity of Non-executive director

won't be paid any remuneration, except sitting fees, if any.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and

are hereby authorized, jointly and/or severally, to do all-such acts, deeds and things as may

be necessary to give effect to above resolution Including but not limited to filing of necessary

e-form(s) with the Registrar of Companies and making necessary entries in the statutory

registers of the Company."

By Order of the Board

For Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

Place: Noida

Date: June 13, 2017

Sd/

Jatin Makkar

Company Secretary

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO

APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE

PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGREEGATE

NOT MORE THAN 10 PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY.

A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10 % OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE

COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY

AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR

SHAREHOLDER.
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2. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the

company at any time but not less than 48 hours before the meeting. A format of proxy

is enclosed.

I

3. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions and explanatory statement

are open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during working hours

between 9.30 A.M. and 1.00 P.M., except on holidays.

4. The Directors' Report, Auditors' Report and Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31,

2017 and the Profit and Loss Account forthe year ended on that date are enclosed.

5. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the

meeting are requested to send to the company a certified copy of the Board

Resolution authorising their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the

meeting.

6. Route Map for the venue of Annual General Meeting is enclosed herewith.

7. Shareholders are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report to the Annual

General Meeting and are requested to sign at the place provided on the attendance

slip and hand It over at the entrance of the venue.

8. A member desirous of seeking any information on the accounts or operations of the

Company Is requested to forward his/her query in writing to the Company at least

seven working days prior to the meeting, so that the required information can be

made available at the meeting.

9. Statutory registers maintained will be availablejor inspection by the members at the

A6M.

10. Members are requested to notify any change in their address to the Company

immediately.

11. The relevant explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act,

2013 in respect of special business as set out above is annexed hereto.
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MAHUA 3HARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly known as Madhucon A^ra-Jai'pur Expressways LiMi'ted)

EXPLANATORY STAEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013 AND FOR ORDINARY BUSINESS ITEM NO. 3

ITEM NO. 3

As per provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the term of M/s Gianender &

Associates, Chattered Accountants, New Delhi, theStatutory Auditor of the Company is going

to expire on the conclusion of ensuing Annual General Meeting to be held on July 06, 2017.

Accordingly, pursuant to the provisions of Section 139,141 and other applicable provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board of

Directors of the Company at their meeting held on June 10, 2017 have proposed the name of

M/s Natvar Lai Vepari & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Registration No. 106971W ) to be

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of five years from the

conclusion of this Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of 17^^ Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is in

any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under item no. 3 to be passed as an ordinary resolution.

ITEM NO. 4

Shareholders of the Company at the extra-ordinary general meeting held on March 29, 2016

had approved the matter of shifting the registered office of the Company from the State of

Telangana to National Capital Territory of Delhi and had authorized Ms. A V Syamala,

Practicing Company Secretary for filing the petition with Regional Director.

However, since the current management is not in touch with Ms. A V Syamala, it is proposed

to pass another resolution in modification of earlier resolution passed in order to authorise

Mr. Ankush Agarwal and/or Mr. Shailesh Kumar Singh, Company Secretaries in Practice to
take the necessary actions in connection with filing the application with Regional Director and

to take other necessary actions, in connection with the registered office shifting from the

State of Telangana to National Capital Territory of Delhi.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in

any way concerned or Interested, financially or otherwise. In the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under item no. 4 to be passed as a special resolution.
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ITEM NO. 5

Members of the Company are requested to take note that Mr. Andrew Lewis was appointed
as an Executive Director on March 29, 2016 and his appointment had got regularised on

August 31,2016. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on March 27, 2017 have further

appointed him as Chief Executive Officer ('CEO') of the Company for a period of three years.

It is proposed to re-appoint Mr. Andrew Lewis as CEO & Executive Director of the Company

for a period of three years i.e. w.e.f. 29^^ March 2017 to 28'^ March 2020 and also to revise
his remuneration structure (effective from April 1, 2017).

The Nomination 8i Remuneration Committee in its meeting held on 27^^ March 2017, have

considered and recommended the increase in remuneration of Mr. Andrew Lewis and his re-

appointment as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer.

The details as prescribed under Secretarial Standard -2 (SS-2) issued by the Institute of

Company Secretaries of India are tabled below:

Name Andrew Lewis

Age 40

Qualification Commerce Graduate

Experience 17 years

Terms & Conditions of Appointment As per resolution No. 5 of accompanying

Notice

Date of first appointment on the Board March 29, 2016

Shareholding in the Company Nil

Relationship with other Directors, Manager

and KMP

No relationship

No. of Board meetings attended during the

year

1

Other Directorships Nil

Membership/Chairmanship of the

Committees of Board held in other company

Nil

The following additional detailed Information as per Section - II of Schedule V is as follows:

1. General Information

a. Nature of Industry Infrastructure Development

b. Date or expected date of

commencement of commercial

production

The Company was Incorporated in the year

2005, however its tolling operations

commenced in the year 2009.
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(^Formey'fy known as Madhueon Agra-Jai'pur Eypresswaus Limited)

c. In case of new companies, expected

date of commencement of activities

as per project approved by financial

institutions appearing in the

prospectus.

Not Applicable

d. Financial performance based on

given indicators.

Financial year 2016-17

Particulars 2016-2017

Total Revenue 6624.11

Profit/loss before

interest. Dep &Tax

1900.74

Interest (3408.62)

Depreciation (1152.88)

Deferred Tax (271.52)

Profit/(Loss) After

Tax

(2932.28)

e. Foreign investments or

collaborators, if any
Nil

II. Information about the appointee

a. Background details Mr. Andrew Lewis Is a commerce graduate

from Chaudhary Charan Singh University. He

has 17 years of overall experience in senior

decision making positions.

He has earlier worked with Feedback Brisa

Highways OMT Pvt. Ltd. (FBH) as Project

Manager. During his tenure with FBH, he

worked on multiple programs, which

included monitoring of toll operations, route

operations and maintenance activities for'

designated projects, along with monitoring

and managing various iT solutions for

clients. He was also actively Involved with

the company's new business initiatives, to

start new business verticals. He has also

worked with International Road Dynamics
South Asia Pvt. Ltd. and has a rich experience

in commissioning Toll Management

Solutions for over 15 projects across India.

b. Past remuneration The Remuneration drawn by Mr. Andrew

Lewis during the past one years was

INR 15,27,260.
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c. Recognition or awards -

d. Job profile'and his suitability Mr. Andrew Lewis is the Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

and devotes his whole-time attention to the

operations and maintenance of toll road and

also takes care of llasloning responsibilities

with National Highways Authority Of India

(NHAI) and various other Statutory

Authorities, whenever required. He

exercises powers under the supervision and

superintendence of the Board of the

Company.

e. Remuneration proposed It is proposed to pay consolidated monthly

remuneration to Mr. Andrew Lewis up to Rs.

1,25,980 by way of Salary and perquisites,

performance based rewards / incentives etc.

f. Comparative remuneration profile

with respect to industry, size of the

Company, profile of the position and

person

Considering the responsibilities shouldered

by him of the enhanced business activities of

the Company, proposed remuneration is

Commensurate with Industry standards and

Board level positions held in similar sized

and similarly positioned businesses.

g. Pecuniary relationship directly or

indirectly with the Company, or

relationship with the managerial

personnel, if any

Mr. Andrew Lewis does not have any

pecuniary relationship with the Company

except remuneration drawn as Whole Time

Director and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company.

III. Other information:

a. Reasons of loss or inadequate profits Lower toll revenue then projected is one of

the key reasons for incurring loss. Besides,

during the current year, Operation and

maintenance expenses are to the tune of Rs.

42.17 Crores, i.e. Higher than the last year

expenses of Rs. 30.16 Crores. Also, during

the last year, there was" a non-recurring

income in the form of Revenue Grant from

NHAI for Rs. 8.23 Crores, which is not there

In the current year.

b. Steps taken or proposed to be taken

for improvement

Company is trying to reduce the finance

costs and operation and Maintenance costs.

Further, it is exploring alternate sources of

revenue in the form of advertisement

income, development of way side amenitie^
etc. 1.
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c. Expected increase In productivity

and profits in measurable terms

It is difficult to forecast the productivity and

profitability in measurable terms. However,

the productivity and Profitability may
improve and would be comparable with the

industry average

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, other

than Mr. Andrew Lewis, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in

the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under item no. 5 to be passed as a special resolution.

ITEWI NO. 6

Mr. Ravindranath Karati was appointed as an Executive Director on March 29, 2016 and re-

appointed on August 31, 2016. Also, he was appointed as Chief Finance Officer (CFO) on

March 29, 2016 for a period of one year.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee in Its meeting held on March 27, 2017, has

considered and recommended the increase in remuneration and re-appointment of Mr.

Ravindranath Karati as Executive Director and Chief Finance Officer and board of directors

have further approved the same In its meeting held on March 27, 2017. It is proposed to

ratify/approve the increased remuneration paid to him for two months.

To further inform the members that Mr. Ravindranath Karati has tendered his resignation

from the position of CFO making his resignation effective from May 31, 2017 and also that

management has decided to change his designation from executive to non-executive director,

with effect from May 31,2017.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, other

than Mr. Ravindranath Karati are in any way concerned or Interested, financially or otherwise,

in the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under item no. 6 to be passed as a special resolution.

ITEM NO. 7

/

After considering the letter of resignation submitted by Mr. Ravindranath Karati in his

capacity as Chief Financial Officer, It is proposed to change the designation of Mr.

Ravindranath Karati from Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director.
fsf

Registered Office: 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, HImayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)
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MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expre5iwau5 Umited)

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, other

than Mr. Ravlndranath Karati are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,

in the said resolution.

The Board recommends resolution under item no. 7 to be passed as an Ordinary resolution.

By Order of the Board

For Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

Place: Noida

Date: June 13, 2017 Sd/

Jatin Makkar

Company Secretary

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar,"Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)

CIN No: U45203TG2005PLC045689; Phone: 0J20-4868332, Email: cs@mbel.co.ln



MAHUA 3HARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(ForMsrh known as Madhucon Aara-Jaipur Expresswaus United)

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Regd. Off: 1st Floor, 1-2-6 Domalguda, HImayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

Ph. 0120-4868307, Email id: compliance@mbel.com

CIN: U45203TG2005PLC045689

ATTENDANCE SUP

Regd. Folio No. / DP ID - Client ID :

Name and Address of First/Sole Shareholder:

No. of Shares held

i hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on

Thursday, July 06, 2017 at 10:00 A.M. at 1^^ Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar,

Hyderabad, Telangana 500029.

Signature of Member / Proxy

Notes:

a. Only Member/Proxy can attend the meeting. No minors would be allowed at the

meeting

b. Member / Proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the

meeting and handover at the entrance duly filled In and signed

ra/o

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)

CIN No; U45203TG2005PLC045689; Phone; 0120-4868332. Email; csgimbel.co.in



MAHUA 3HARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerfy known ai Madlyucon Aara-Jaifyur Expressways Liwiited)

PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(CIN: U45203TG2005PLC045689)

Regd. 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

Tel: 0120-4868307, Email ID: compliance@mbel.com

12^'' ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of Member(s):

Registered Address:

Email ID:

Folio No./DP ID-Client ID:

I/We being the member(s) of

Expressways Limited, hereby appoint

shares of Mahua Bharatpur

1.

failing him/her

Name

failing him/her

2. Name

Address

Email ID

Signature or

Address

Email ID

Signature or

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 12^^^

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, July 06, 2017 at 10:00 A.M

at 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029.

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)

CIN No: U45203TG2005PLC045689; Phone! 0120-4868332, Email: cs(5)mbel.co.in
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MAHUA SHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerh known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited.)

s.

No.

RESOLUTIONS Option

Matter of Resolution For Against

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance

Sheet as at 31st March, 2017 and statement of Profit

and Loss forthe year ended on that date along with the

Cash Flow Statement and notes forming part of

accounts together with the Reports of Directors' and

the Auditors' thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raman Tyagi, who

retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for

re-appointment.

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company

4. To approve the shifting of Registered Office of the

company from "State of Telangana" to "National

Capital Territory of Delhi"

5. Approval for increase in remuneration and

reappointment of Mr. Andrew Lewis, Chief Executive

Officer

6. Ratification/approval for remuneration paid to Mr.

Ravindranath Karati in the capacity of Executive

Director & Chief Finance Officer

7. Change in Designation of Mr. Ravindranath Karati from

Executive Director to Non-Executive Director

Signed this day of

Signature of the shareholder

Reference Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID

No. of Shares

Notes:

.2017
Affix

1 Rupee

Revenue

Stamp

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

Corporate office: B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Nolda 201305 (UP)

GIN No; U45203TG2005PLC045689; Phone: 0J20-4868332, Email: cstambel.co.fn



MAHUA SHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Foymerlu known as MaciPxncon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Ukvxited)

1. The Proxy form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at

the Registered Office of the company not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

2. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013, a person can act as

a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not

more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A

member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying

voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a

proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4. This is only optional, please put a 'X' In the appropriate column against the resolutions

indicated in the Box. If you leave the 'For' or 'Against' column blank against any or all

the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks
appropriate.

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person

If he so wishes.

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but

names of all the joint holders should be stated.

Registered Office; 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, HImayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029
Corporate office; B-806, 807, Advant Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, Noida 201305 (UP)

CIN No! U45203TG2005PLC045689; Phone; 0120-4868332, Email: cs(ambel.co.ln



MAHUA 3HARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly ky\owt\ as Madi\ucon Agfa-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Route map for 12^^ Annual General Meeting of Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited,

scheduled to be held on Thursday, July 06, 2017 at 10:00 A.M at 1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda,

Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, Telangana 500029.
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RfljAHUA BHJARATPUR IXFRilSSWAYS LiMITlD

EieTORS' !i^ '
. (For the Financial Year 2016-2Q17)..

To,

The Members,

Mahua Bharatpur B<pressways Limited.

Your Directors have pleasure In presenting 12**" Directors Report of your Company together with the
Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31,2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHUGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Financial Results:-

Particular 2016-17

(Afnount m

Lakhs)

2015-16

(Amount in

Lakhs)
Total Revenue 6624.11 6768.91

Profit/ (Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 1900.74 3587.35

Interest (3408.62) (2994.25)
Depreciation (1152.88) (1379.48)
Deferred Tax (271.52) 116.29-

Profit / (Loss) after Tax (2932.28) (670.09)

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

During the year, the Gross revenue of the Company was Rs. 66.24 Crores and the Loss after deferred Tax

was Rs. 29.32 Crores as compared to previous year gross revenue of Rs. 67:69 Crores and loss after

deferred tax of Rs. 6.70 Crores respectively. Your Directors expect that-the new initiatives taken by the
management will result in better financial performance of the Company in coming years.

DIVIDEND

In view of the loss incurred-by the company, the Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for
the financial year ended March 31, 2017.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Company was incorporated as a Special Purpose Vehicle for designing, construction, development,
finance, operation and maintenance of Bharatpur - Mahua Section (KM 63.000- KM 120.000) of-NH -11
In the state of Rajasthan with a Concession Period of 25 years awarded by NHAI. The management is
expecting a good traffic flow in upcoming years.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the.Company during the year ended March 31,

2017.

^Pr
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HOLDING COMPANY

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as ISQ Asia Infrastructure l-A Pte. Ltd.) is the
Holding Company of Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited holding 99.97% of its Equity Share Capital as
on March 31, 2017.

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd. has purchased 25.97% stake (25,807,600) equity shares on
January 23, 2017 from Madhucon Toll Highways Limited and the Company has become the wholly owned
subsidiary Company of Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associate Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, there was no change In the authorized share capital and paid up share
capital of the Company.

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd. has purchased 25.97% stake (2,58,07,600 equity shares) on
January 23, 2017 from Madhucon Toll Highways Limited.

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED FORWARD AS RESERVE

The Company has not proposed to transfer any amount to the reserve.

CHANGES IN SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

During the Financial Year 2016-17, no additional share capital was issued by the Company.

However, transfer of 1,00,000 Equity shares from Madhucon Projects Limited to Madhucon Toll Highways
Limited got effected on January 19, 2017 and also the transfer of 2,58,07,600 Equity Shares from
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited to Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as ISQ
Asia Infrastructure l-A Pte. Ltd.) got effected on January 23, 2017.

BOARD MEEHNGS:

The Board met 7 (Seven) times during the financial year 2016-2017 viz. April 14,2016, July 28,2016,
November 25, 2016, January 23,2017, February 09,2017, March 02,2017 and IVlarch 27,2017.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013 and Articles of Association of the Company.

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN THE BOARD MEETINGS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31.2017

S.L Name of the Director Meeting

Number of Meetings

Held

Number of Meetings .
Attended

1 •Ravindranath Karati 7 7

2 Raman Tyagi 7 6



3 Akhil Kumar Jain* 7 5

4 Jayant Goel* 7 2

5 Ashok Gupta 7 4

6 Kamma Srinivasa Rao* 7 4

7 Andrew Lewis 7 1

8. Vasundhara Peddapalle 7 1

appointed as an additional director on July 28, 2016 and his appointment had got regularized with effect
from August 31,2016. Further Mr. Kamma Srinivasa Rao resigned from the Board of Directors on January
23, 2017.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS

During the year, Mr. Jayant Goel and Mr. Kamma Srinivasa Rao, ceased to be director of the Company
effective from July 29,2016 and January 23,2017 respectively. The Board members place on record their
sincere appreciation towards services rendered by Mr. Jayant Goel and Mr. Kamma Srinivasa Rao, during
their tenures as Director of the Company.

During the year, Mr. Akhll Kumar Jain was appointed as an additional director on July 28, 2016 and the
appointments of Mr. Andrew Lewis, Mr. Raman Tyagi, Mr. Ravindranath Karati, Mrs. Vasundhara
Peddapalle and Mr. Akhil Kumar Jain had got regularized at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on August 31, 2016. Further Mr. Ravindranath Karati and Mr. Andrew Lewis were re-appointed for
the position of Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director & Chief Financial Officer,
respectively for a period of three years each in board meeting held on March 27, 2017 subject to
shareholder's approval. ^

Mr. Raman Tyagi, Director of the Company will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANANGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Mr. Sourabh resigned from the post of the Company Secretary and Mr.
Jatin Makkar was appointed in his place on January 23, 2017. Further Mr. Ravindranath Karati, CFO &
Executive director and also Mr. Andrew Lewis, CEO & Executive director got re-appointed in Board
meeting held on March 27,2017 for a term of three years.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Your directors state that:

i. In the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2017; the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

ii. the Directors have selected Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made Judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company, at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company-for that
period.



iii. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017 on a "Going
Concern" basis.

V. the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year under review, ail contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during
the Financial Year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on Arm's Length basis.
The details of transactions with related parties are set out in Form AOC-2 and attached as an Annexure-1.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, made investments, given guarantee
and provided securities as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed thereunder.

The Company has established Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report their concerns or
grievances to the vigilance officer. The chairman of the Audit Committee has been assigned the
monitoring duty and to ensure the effectiveness of this mechanism throughout the year. The mechanism
provides adequate safeguard'against the victimization of people by any director or an employee of the
Company. The Chairman of the Audit Committee can take suitable action in consultation with the vigilance
officer In all the complaints.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the Audit Committee was re-constituted on April 14,2016 comprising of:
Mr. Ashok Gupta, Non - Executive Independent Director as Chairman,
Mr. Jayant Goei, Non - Executive Independent Director and

Mr. Ravindranath Karati, Executive Director & CFO as members of the Committee

It was again re-constituted on November 11, 2016 comprising of:

Mr. Ashok Gupta, Non - Executive Independent Director as Chairman,

Mr. Akhil Kumar Jain, Non - Executive Independent Director and
-  Mr. Ravindranath Karati, Executive Director & CFO as members of the Committee

The Audit Committee met on July 28, 2016 during the financial year under review, to review the Audited
Financial Results as at March 31, 2016 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31,
'2015 and Notes on Accounts attached thereon and also to consider other required matters.

L



NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 14,
2016 comprising of:

Mr. Ashok Gupta, Non - Executive Independent Director as Chairman,
Mr. Jayant Goel, Non - Executive Independent Director, and
Mr. Raman TyagI, Non - Executive Director as members of the Committee

It was re-constituted on November 25,2016 comprising of:

Mr. Ashok Gupta, Non - Executive Independent Director as Chairman,
Mr. Akhll Kumar Jain, Non - Executive Independent Director, and
Mr. Raman TyagI, Non - Executive Director as members of the Committee

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met on 2 (two) times during the financial year under review
i.e. on July 28, 2016 and March 27,2017.

Nomination & Remuneration Policy is attached as per Annexure-ll.

INDEPENDNET DIRECTORS

The meeting of independent directors of the company was held on December 30, 2016 to review the
performance of Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has internal Risk Management Policy with prime focus on dealing with different kinds of
risks which occurs or likely to occur In day to day operations of the Company and outlines risk mitigating
measures to be adopted by the Board.

Periodic assessments to Identify the risk areas are carried out and management Is briefed on the risks in
advance to enable the company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are taken into
account while preparing the annual business plan for the year. The Company has formulated a policy for
Risk management with the following objectives:

•  Provide an overview of the principles of risk management
•  Explain approach adopted by the Company for risk management
•  Define the organizational structure for effective risk management
•  Develop a "risk" culture that encourages all employees to identify risks and associated

opportunities and to respond to them with effective actions.

•  Identify, assess and manage existing and new risks in a planned and coordinated manner with
minimum disruption and cost, to protect and preserve Company's human, physical and financial
assets
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The Company also oversees in the area of financial risks and control. Major risks identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on continuing basis.

i

INTERNAL financial CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, safeguarding of Its assets, prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely
preparation of reliable financial disclosures.

The Company's internal control system is commensurate with the nature, size and complexities of
operations. These systems are regularly reviewed by the statutory and Internal auditors along with the
management.

-s

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the Financial Year 2016-17, the Company was not required to Incur any CSR expenditure, pursuant
to the provisions of Section 135 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, as the Company did not have positive
average net profits in three immediately preceding financial years.

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATMENTS.

The Company has no Subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associate Company.

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year under review.

COST AUDIT
f

Provisions of. Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Cost Audit are not applicable on the
Company.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS'REPORT

The present term of M/s Gianender & Associates, Chartered Accountants, New Delhi, the Statutory
Auditor of the Company is expiring on the conclusion of the Ensuing Annual General Meeting. As per the
provisions of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the statutory auditors of the Company need to
be rotated. Accordingly, M/s Natvarlal Vepari & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, (Registration No.
106971W) have been proposed by the Board of Directors to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company for a term of five years i.e. from the conclusion of ensuing 12*^ Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of 17*^ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

M/s Natvarlal Vepari & Co., Chartered Accountants have confirmed their eligibility to the effect that their
appointment in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, if made, would be within prescribed limits laid down
under the Act, and they are not disqualified for reappolntment.

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to ip the Auditors' Report are self-explanatory and do not call
for any further comments. The Auditors' Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.

O
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Auditors have hot reported any Instance covered under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 to

the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDFT REPORT

Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2016-17 was conducted by M/s Bajaj & Associates, Company
Secretary in practice in accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Secretarial Auditor's Report is attached to this Report as per Annexure-lii.

Secretarial Auditors has made the following observation in the Secretarial Audit report:

1. Mr. Ravindranath Karati and Mr. Andrew Lewis were appointed as Executive Directors (covered under

definition of Whole Time Directors ('WTD") under Companies Act, 2013) during the F.Y. 2015-16 and

their appointments was not ratified nor their remuneration was approved by the Shareholders in

General Meeting.

2. As required by Rule 7 of The Companies (Registration Offices and Fees) Rules, 2014, Balance Sheets, P

& L A/c, and other similar documents signed by the Directors/Company Secretary/KMP andfiled with

the Registrar of Companies, did not contain the addresses of the respective signatories.

3. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 contained few observations /

reservations by the Secretarial Auditor. However, the Company has not given any explanation in the

Directors' Report for thefinancial year ended31.03.2016, in respect ofsuch observations/reservation

made in the Secretarial Audit Report.

Pointwise response of your Directors on the above-mentioned observation in the Secretarial Audit report

are as follows:

1. The appointments of Mr. Ravindranath Karati and Mr. Andrew Lewis were ratified in the capacity of

Directors vide resolution passed in the Annual General Meeting held on August 31,2016. The Board of

Directors will ensure compliance in future with the same.

2. The Board of Directors will ensure compliance in future with the same.

3. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 contained in itself the

management comments to the observations/reservations made in that report. The Board of Directors

will ensure that the explanations to the observations/ reservation made In the Secretarial Audit Report
are made separately in the Directors' Report.

INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of sectionl38 of the Companies Act, 2013, company has appointed KPMG as

internal auditors of the company for the financial year 2017-18.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT-9 as a part of this
Annual Report is annexed as per Annexure-IV.
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to conservation.
of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo are set out in the Annexure-

V  ■

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
1

Your Cpmpany has no employee requiring disclosure pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule S of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has a Policy on Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of employees

at Workplace and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. The Policy covers all the aspects as
contained under the "The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and

Redressal) Act, 2013". Your Company has also constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) on
November 25, 2016. Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases

filed or complaints received pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION:

The annual performance evaluation of the directors as well as that of the committees has been carried

out. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and

the performance evaluation of the Chairman and Non-independent Directors was carried out by the

Independent Directors.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFEaiNG THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO

WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

There are no material changes which have occurred subsequent to the close of the financial year of the

Compa ny to which the balance sheet relates and the date of the report.

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there

were no transaction on these items during.the year under review:

1. No director of the Company received any remuneration or commission from any of its associate or

holding company.

2. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulator or Court or Tribunal which impacts

the going concern status and Company's Operations in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and

support extended by all regulatory and Governmental authorities, Bankers and the shareholders of the

Company. We look forward to their continuous support in the future.
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Your Directors also wish to express their deep appreciation for the valuable contribution made by the entire
management team and the employees of the Company. Your Directors look to the future with confidence
and optimism.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

Raman Tyagi

Director

DIN:07158674

Address: H No B-5/206,Krishna Apra Gardens,?,
Vaibhav Khand, Indirapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Ghaziabad -201014

Wres

JO,
Andrew Lewis

Director & CEO

DIN: 07420188

Address: Flat No. 413,1" Floor, Plot No. 15C

Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector - 22 New Delhi

110075

Place: Nolda

Date: June 10,2017



FORM NO. AOC. 2 Annexure-I

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) •

Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third
proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship-
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions-
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions-
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if-

e) Justification for entering Into such contracts or arrangements or transactions -
f) Date of approval by the Board-

g) Amount paid as advances. If any:-
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to

section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: Nil

a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship-
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions-
d) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions-
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if -
e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions -
f) Date of approval by the Board-

g) Amount paid as advances, if any:-
h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to

section 188

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

Raman Ty^gl

Director

DIN: 07158674

-Address: H No B-5/206,Krishna Apra

Gardens,?, Vaibhay Khand, Indirapuram,
Shipra Sun City, Ghaziabad -201014

Place: Noida -

Date: June 10, 2017

Andrew Lewis V

Director & CEO

DIN: 07420188

Address: Flat no.413, 1®' Floor, Plot No. 150

Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector - 22 New Delhi-

110075



Annexure-I]

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made

thereunder, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meetings held on April 14, 2016 & November

25,2016 have constituted & re-constituted respectively, the 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee"

("Committee") of Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited ("the Company").

1. OBJECTIVE

This Policy has been formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 read along

with the applicable rules thereto.

2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This policy is effective from the date of approval by the Board.
I

3. SCOPE

This policy is applicable to Directors and Senior Management of the Company including Key

Managerial Personnel.

4. DEFINITIONS

4.1 Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time.

4.2 Board means the Board of Directors of the Company

4.3 Directors mean Directors of the Company

4.4 Key Managerial Personnel means - ' .

■  Managing Director'/ Manager / Whole time Director

■  Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Company Secretary and

■  Chief Financial Officer

4.5 Senior Management means personnel of the company who are members of its core management

,  team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also include all members of management one level

below the Board of Directors. Senior Management in Company means and includes the following

positions: -

wfujn



1. Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

2. Chief Operating Officer and Such other officer as may be prescribed

5. ROLE OF COMMITTEE

a) To formulate criteria for identifying Directors and Senior Management employees of the Company

b) To recommend the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors and Senior

Management.

c) To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board

d) To carry out evaluation of the performance of the Directors on the Board

e) To formulate and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration payable to Directors,

Key managerial personnel and Senior Management employees covered under Clause 4.5

f) To ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain

and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the company successfully.

g) To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate

performance benchmarks; and

h) Also to ensure that remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management

involves a balance between fixed and variable Performance Linked Payout {PLP) reflecting short and

long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

6. POLICY FOR IDENTIFICATION, APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

6.1 Appointment criteria for Directors and Senior Management:

a) A person who is proposed to be appointed as a Director and/or in Senior Management as a KMP

should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he / she is considered

for appointment and has to be recommended by the Committee to the Board for appointment.

b) A person shall not be eligible for appointment as a Director of a Company if he stands disqualified

under the provisions mentioned in Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder,

or any other enactment for the time being in force.

c) The Director shall be appointed as per the procedure laid down under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013, rules made thereunder, or any other enactment for the time being in force.



d) Appointment of Independent Directors is subject to compliance of provisions of section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013, read with Schedule IV and Rules made thereunder the Act.

On appointment to the Board, Independent Directors shall have to be issued a formal letter of

appointment.

e). Appointment of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) is subject to compliance of provisions of section 203

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made thereunder the Act (as amended from time to time).

The appointment of Senior Management Personnel (excluding KMPs) and their terms of appointment

will be in accordance with the Company's rules and policy framework.

6.2 Term / Tenure of appointment for Directors and Senior Management:

a) Independent Director:

•  An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the

Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company

and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

•  No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent

director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an

Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three

years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity either directly or

indirectly.

•  At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on

which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent

director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a

Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

b) Senior Management

In case of KMPs, their term/tenure of appointrnent requires Board approval. In case of Senior

Management (excluding KMPs), term/tenure of appointment will be as per Company's rules and

policy framework.

6.3 Evaluation of performance of Directors

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Board members in the context of the

Company's performance from business and compliance perspective.



6.4 Retirement and Removal of Directors and Senior Management

a) The Director shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act.

b) Should the Board decide, it will have the discretion to retain the Director in the same position /

remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, in the interest of the Company

subject to necessary approvals under the applicable laws, if any.

c) Due to reasons for any disqualification rrientioned in the Act or the rules made thereunder or under

any other applicable Act, rules and regulations thereunder, a Director shall be removed from his

Directorship held with the Cornpany.

d) Extension of the term of appointment of a KMP shall require Board approval. For extension of term

of any Senior Management Personnel (excluding KMPs) beyond his/her retirement age, Committee

will decide the same.

e) The proposal for removal of any KMP shall be put forth by the Committee to the Board for approval.

Rempval'of Senior Management Personnel (excluding KMPs) will be in line with the provisions of the

terms of appointment and will be decided by the Committee.

7. POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMPs)

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

7.1 General

a) The Committee shall while formulating this policy, ensure that the level and composition of

remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate Directors of the quality

required to run the Company successfully.

b) Moreover, it shall also ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets

appropriate benchmarks.

c) Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management should involve

a balance between fixed and variable pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

d) The remuneration payable to the Directors of a Company including Managing Director / Whole-time

Directors shall be recommended by the Committee to the Board for approval. Such remuneration

payment Including Commission if any shall be in accordance with and subject to the provisions of the

Act and approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required,

as per the provisions of the Act.



e) In respect of Key Managerial Personnel, the remuneration as approved by the Board of Directors shall

be payable to such KMPs. The annual increment to the KMP and Senior Management shall be based

on the annual appraisal.

f) Professional indemnity and liability insurance for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior

Management not to be treated as remuneration. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty,

the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration.

7.2 Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole-tlme Directors;

The remuneration foV the Managing DIrector/Whole-time Directors will be governed as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder from time to time.

7.3 Remuneration to Non-Executive & Independent Directors;

a) The remuneration payable to Directors who are neither managing Director nor Whole-time Directors

•will be governed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder

from time to time. j

b) Sitting Fees;

These Directors may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or

Committee therepf. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rs. 50,000 (Fifty
Thousands) per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the
Central Government from time to time.

c) Remuneration:

Remuneration may be paid by way of commission within the monetary limit approved by

shareholders, subject to the limit as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options of the Company under the new

Companies act, 2013.

7.4 Remuneration to KMP and Senior Management employees;

As mentioned earlier, the remuneration as approved by the Board of Directors shall be payable to

KMPs. The annual increment to the KMP and Senior Management shall be based on the annual

appraisal.
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8. DISCLOSURE OF THE POLICY

The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board's Report forming a part of the Annual Report of the

Company. , . \

9. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meetings of the Committee could be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

10. QUORUM

Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting

11. CHAIRMAN

In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall choose

one amongst them to act as Chairman.

The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting shall attend the General

Meetings of the Company, to answer the shareholders queries. However, it would be upto the

Chairman to nominate some other member to answer the shareholder's queries.

12. SECRETARY

The,Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee,

13. MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE MEETING

.Proceedings of all meetings must be signed by the Chairman' of the Committee and tabled at the

subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

14. MISCELLANEOUS

In respect of any policy matters relating to Senior Management (excluding KMPs), the Committee may

delegate any of its powers to one or more company representatives occupying Senior Management

position. , . •





For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

\\rPKotf

V — V

u
WRaman Ty

Director

DIN: 07158674

Address: H No B-5/206,Krishna Apra

Gardens,7, Vaibhav Khand, Indirapuram,

Shipra Sun City, Ghaziabad -201014

Llm/,

■'eua
Andrew Lewis

Director & CEO

DIN: 07420188

Address: Flat no. 413, 1st Floor, Plot No. ISO,
Delhi Appt-. Dwarka, Sector-22, New Delhl-
110075"

Place: Nolda

Date: June 10, 2017



Annexure-IV

Form No.MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Ruies, 2014]

I.RFGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

I. CIN U45203TG2005PLC045689

11. Registration Date 23.03.2005

ill. Name of the Company Mahua Bharatpur Express\A/ays Limited

iv. Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by Shares

V. Address of the Registered office and

contact details

"1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar,

Hyderabad, Telangana 500029

vi. Whether listed company , No

vii. Name, Adcjress and Contact details of

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32,

Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda

Hyderabad, Telangana-500 032

II.PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Ali the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated:-

Sr.

No.

Name and Description of main products/

services

NIC Code of the

Product/ service

% to total turnover

of the company

1 Revenue from toll operations 42101 100%



I. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.

No.

Name of The Company CIN/GLN/

Reg. No.

Holding/

Subsidiary

/Associate

%of

shares

held

Applicable

Section

1. Cube Highways and

infrastructure Pte. Ltd.,

Singapore

201408750N Holding 99.97% 2(46)

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN fEquitv Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year

%

Change

during

The

year

Demat Physical Total %  of

Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total %  of

Total

Shares

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 600 Nil 600 0.00% 600 Nil 600 0.00% Nil

b) Central Govt. Nil. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) State Govt.(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d) Bodies Corp Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Banks/Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f) Any Other Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total(A)(l):- 600 Nil 600 0.00% 600 Nil 600 0.00% 00.00%

2JI Foreign .

g) NRIs-

individuals

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil ■Nil Nil Nil Nil

h) Other-
Individuals

Nil -  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i) Bodies Corp. 7,35,25,80

0

Nil 7,35,25,80

0

74% 9,93,33,400 Nil Nil 99.97

%

35.10

%

j) Banks / Fl . Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

k) Any Other.... Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

•y-"—Nf
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Sub-total(A)(2):- 7,35,25,80

0

Nil 7,35,25,80

0

74% 9,93,33,400 Nil Nil 99.97

%

35.10

%

B. Public

Shareholding
>

•\

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Banks / Fi Nil Nil Nil ■ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d) State Govt.(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Venture

Capital Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f) Insurance

Companies

Nil Nil Nil .  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

g) Flls Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h) Foreign

Venture

Capital Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i) Others

(specify)

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total(B)(l) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil . Nil

2. Non

Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian

(ii) Overseas

Nil 2,58,33,600 2,58,33,600 26% Nil 26000 26000 0.02 % 99.89%

b) Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(1) Individual

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital

upto Rs. 1 lakh

(ii) Individual

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital in

excess of Rs. 1

lakh

c) Others(Specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

U-

Um/f
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Sub-total(B){2) '  Nil 2,58,33,600 2,58,33,600. 26% Nil 26,000 26,000 .02%

99.89%

Total Public

Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)4-{B)(2)

Nil 2,58,33,600 2,58,33,600 26% Nil 26,000 26,000 .02%
99.89%

C. Shares held by

Custodian for

GDRs &ADRS

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Grand Total

(A+B+C)

7,35,26,4

00

2,58,33,600 99,360,000 100% 99334000 26000 99,360,000 100% Nil

ii. Shareholding of Promoters,'

Sr.

No

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of

the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

■

No. of

Shares

%of total.

Shares of

the '

company

%of

Shares

Pledged /

encumber

ed to total

shares

No. of Shares %i of

total

Shares

of the

compan

V

%of Shares

Pledged /

encumbere

d to total

shares

% change

In share

holding

during the

year

1. Cube Highways and

Infrastructure Pte.

Ltd.

7,35,25,80

0

74% Nil 9,93,33,400 99.97 51% %

2. Aparna Goel 100 0.00% Nil 100 ■ 0.00% Nil ■Nil

3. Ayant Gupta 100 0.00% Nil 100 0.00% Nil Nil

4. Sourabh Gupta 100 0.00% Nil Q 0.00% Nil Nil

5. Amit Bhushan 100 0.00% Nil 100 0.00% Nil Nil

6. Anuradha Diwan 100 0.00% Nil 100 0.00% '  Nil Nil

Umi*





7. Digvijay Singh 100 .  0.00% Nil 100 0.00% Nil Nil

8.

1

Jayant Goel 0 0 Nil 100 0.00% Nil 100%

*Please refer table III below specifying changes In Promoters shareholding

III. Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease in

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

r

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares' % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year

(01.04.2016) 7,35,26,400 74%

Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on

23.01.2017

2,58,07,600

9,93,33,400 99.97

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)
9,93,33,400

J

99.97

. Aparna Goel

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease in

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

^2^
-

Llm/ZN.
\





At the beginning of the year

(01.04.2016) 100 .  0.00%

•

■

Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

-

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)

100 0.00%

Ayant Gupta

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease In

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 100 0.00%

Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)
"

100 0.00%

Amit Bhushan

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease In

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

(

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 100 0.00%

L-
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Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

-

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)
•

100 0.00%

Digvijay Singh

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease in

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

•

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 100 b.00%

increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

-

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)

•

100 0.00%

Anuradha Diwan

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease In

no. of shares

Cumuiatiye Sharehoiding during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of totai shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 100 ' 0.00%

Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

-

•



At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)

- - •
100 0.00%

Jayant Goel

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease in

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 00 0.00%

increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toll

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017

■

100

100 0.00%

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)
"

100 0.00%

Sourabh Gupta

Particulars Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Increase/

Decrease in

no. of shares

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of

the

company

No. of shares % of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year
(01.04.2016) 100 0.00%

Increased after transfer of

shares from Madhucon Toil

Highways Limited on
23.01.2017 -

100

Nil . Nil

At the end of the Year

(31.03.2017)
"

Nil Nil



Iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDR's and ADR's)

Sr.

No

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total

shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year

1. Madhucon Projects limited

2. Madhucon Toll Highways Limited

3/ Madhucon Infra Limited

100000

2,57,07,600

26,000

.01%

25.87%

.02%

100000

2,57,07,600

26,000

.01%

25.87%

.02%

At the End of the year

1. Madhucon Infra Limited 26,000 0.02% 26,000 0.02%

V. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sr.

No

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total

shares of the

company

1. Nil

Nil Nil Nil

Nil

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment:

Secured Loans

excluding deposits

Unsecured

Loans

Deposits Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the

beginning of the financial

year

•

i) Principal Amount 1,93,04,18,871 52,85,87,299 Nil 245,90,06,170

««ays



11) Interest due but not

paid

7,18,216 Nil Nil 7,18,216

ill) Interest accrued but

not due

Nil ■ 20,77,993 Nil 20,77,993

Total {i+ii+ili) 193,11,37,087 53,06,65,292 Nil 246,18,02,379

Change in Indebtedness

during the financial year

- Addition 1,93,71,00,115 26,41,50,601 Nil 220,12,50,716

- Reduction 1,94,52,05,126 Nil . Nil (1,94,52,05,126

)

Net Change (81,05,011) 26,41,50,601 Nil 25,60,45,590

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1,92,23,13,860.00 79,27,37,900 Nil 245,90,06,170

ii) .Interest due but not

paid

83,05,693 Nil Nil 83,05,693

iii) Interest accrued but

not due

Nil 10,15,76,907 Nil 10,15,76,907

Total (i+ii+iii) 193,06,19,553 89,43,14,807 Nil 282,49,34,360

VI. REMUNERATION OFDIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

SI.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/

Manager

. Total

Amount

1. Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions contained in section

17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/sl7(2) of Income-tax

Act,1961

Nil Nil

'T^'v
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(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of

Income-tax Act,1961

2. Stock Option Nil Nil

3. Sweat Equity Nil Nil

4. Commission

- as% of profit

- others, please specify

Nil Nil

5. Others, please specify Nil Nil

6. Total(A) Nil Nil

Ceiling as per the Act NA ■

B, Remuneration to other directors:

51.

No.

Particulars of Remuneration
Name of Director

Total

Amount

Ashok

Gupta

Akhil Kumar

Jain

1 Independent Directors

•Fee for attending board committee

meetings

•Commission

■Others, please specify

2,00,000 1,57,192 3,57,192

Tota!(l) 2,00,000 1,57,192 3,57,192

Other Non-Executive Directors

-Fee for attending board'committee
meetings
•Commission

•Others, please specify

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total(B)=(l+2) 2,00,000 1,57,192 3,57,192

Total Managerial Remuneration 2,00,000 1,57.192 3,57,192

Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA

tv/ays

LJ
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manaeer/WTD

SI.

no.

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

(Mr. Andrew)

CEO

(Mr. Saurabh &

Mr. Jatin Makkar)

CS*

(Mr. Ravindranath)

CFO

Total

Gross salary

(a)Salary as per

provisions

contained In

sectionl7(l) of

the Income-tax

Act,1961

(b)Value of

perquisites

u/s 17(2) of

Income-tax

Act,1961

(c)Profits In lieu of

salary under section

17(3) of Income-tax

Act,1961

15,27,260 2,50,000 83,334 29,95,712 48,56,306

Stock Option Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil

Commission

• as% of profit

-others, specify.

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Others, please

specify

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total

15,27,260 3,33,334 29,95,712 48,56,306

*Mr. JatIn Makkar was appointed as a Company Secretary with effect from 23.01.2017.

u



Vll. PENALTIES/PUIMISHtVlENT/COMPOUNDlNG OF OFFENCES;

Type Section of

the

companies

Act

Brief

description

Details of Penalty/

Punishment/

Compounding fees

irnposed

Authority

[RD

/NCLT/Court]

Appeal

made. If

any (give

details)

A. Company

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding - Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

B. Directors

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. Other Officers In Default

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding .  Nil Nil •  ̂ Nil Nil Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahua Bharatpurg^Fessways Limited

✩ ^

Raman TyagI
Director

DIN:07158674

Address: H No B-5/206,Krishna Apra
Gardens,7, Vaibhav Khand, indirapuram,
Shipra Sun City, Ghaziabad -201014

Andrew Lewis

Director & CEO

DIN: 07420188

Address: Flatno.413, r' Floor. Plot No. 150
Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector - 22 New Delhi- .
110075

Place: Noida

Date: June 10,2017



Annexure-V

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY;

The Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle for design, construction, development, finance, operation and
maintenance of Bharatpur- Mahua Section (KM 63.000- KM 120.000) of NH -11 in the state of Rajasthan
with a Concession Period of 25 years awarded by NHAl. The Company has achieved Provisional COD on
08.05.2009 and Final COD on 13.09.2009, since then the company is collecting Toll and the energy
conservation measures are taken up wherever required. Company has taken initiatives in conservation of
energy like installation of LED lights and undertaken major plantation activities to develop green highways
and reduce the carbon footprint.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

The Company is constantly updating its technology in the areas wherever necessary for improving the
productivity, efficiency and quality of its performance.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
(Rs. in INR)

Foreign Exchange Earnings: NIL NIL

Foreign Exchange Outgo:

i. Towards traveling NIL NIL

U. Towards import of capital goods (CIF) Nil Nil

iii. Towards payment to equipment suppliers Nil Nil

iv. Towards payment of software license 38,036 Nil

iii. On account of others:

a) Investment Nil Nil

b) Interest Nil Nil

iv. Others ( Legal & Advisory Fees) 8,42,276 Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Mahua BharatQut;S$it6^swavs Limited

pojiuix

Raman Tyagi

Director

DiN:07158674

Address: H No B-5/206, Krishna Apra

Gardens,/, Vaibhav Khand, Indirapuram,

Shipra Sun City, Ghaziabad ̂ 201014

M
pOUOiN

Andrew Lewis

Director & CEO

DIN: 07420188

Address: Flat no.413,1®^ Floor, Plot No. 150
Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector - 22 New Delhl-
110075

Place: Noida

Date: June 10,2017



BajAJ & Assocuixs
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31=* MARCH 2017

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

GIN: U45203TG2005PLC045689

1st Floor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, HImayatnagar

Hyderabad, Telangana - 500029, India

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (herein called the
Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the compan/s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
' other records maintained by^the company and also the information provided by the Company, its

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report
that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31=*
March, 2017 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject
to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the rules made thereunder;
(li) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
, (iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the

extent of Foreign Direct investment. Overseas Direct investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
ia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Acf):-

^he Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
tions, 2011; NA

e Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of InsiderTrading) Regulations, 2015; NA

Contact Details;

15/209, Malviya Nagar, New Delhi-110017, India

GS(gbajajassoclates.GO.in, sonal.bajajassoGiates@gmall.Gom, +91 9910 160 102
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(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
' Regulations, 2009; NA

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; NA

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; NA

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; NA
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; NA and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; NA

(vi) The following Acts under Labour Law:-

(a)The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 (including The
Employees' Pension Scheme, 1995 and Employees' Deposit-linked Insurance Scheme, 1976
(b) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

(c) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947

(d)The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970
(e) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

(f) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

(g) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

(h) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; NA

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

1. Mr. Ravindranath Karati^and Mr. Andrew Lewis were appointment Executive Directors (i.e. a
Whole Time Director ("WTD") defined under clause 94 of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013) in
fy 2015-16 and their appointment was not ratified nor their remuneration was approved by the
Shareholders in General Meeting

2. As required by Rule 7 of The Companies (Registration Offices and Fees) Rules, 2014, Balance
Sheets, P & L A/c, and other similar documents signed by the Directors/ Company Secretary/ KMP
and filed with the Registrar of Companies, did not contain the addresses of the respective signatories
3. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2016 contained few observations
/ reservations by the Secretarial Auditor. However, the Company has not given any explanation in
the Directors' Report for the financial year ended 31.03.2016, in respect of such observations/
reservation made in the Secretarial Audit Report

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
J^n-Executive Directors and independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of

^ors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
H-/ prd^i^ns of the Act. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda

twDELHL



and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days In advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

The Company has been generally regular in following the provisions of Secretarial Standards 1 and II
(on Board Meeting and General Meeting) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with
minor deviations.

As per information given/ recorded in the minutes majorly of the decisions are taken at the meetings
of the Board of Directors by passing resolutions through unanimous consent. However, in few cases
the minutes do not specify whether a particular resolution is passed through unanimous consent or
through requisite majority. Also dissent, if any, by any of the director or his absence from voting as
the case may be is not recorded in the minutes. Therefore, I cannot comment whether these
resolutions were passed with requisite majority or not.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

I-further report that during the audit period the Company has:
(a) Recorded transfer of 25,807,600 no. of equity shares (constituting 25.97% of the total paid up

capital of the Company) from Madhucon Toll Highways Limited to Cube Highways &
Infrastructure Pte Ltd., a SEBI registered Foreign Venture Capital Fund. The total shareholding of
Cube Highways & Infrastructure Pte Ltd.in the Company post transfer is 9,93,33,400 no. of equity
shares constituting 99.97% of the total paid up capital.

(b) Issued and allotted 625627 (Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable) NCDs of Rs. 100/-each to ISQAsia
Infrastructure l-B Pte Ltd (now known as Cube Infrastructure Investment Co. Pte Ltd.), a Portfolio
Investor, on April 14,2016 on Private Placement basis

(c) Allotted 1508500 (Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable) NCDs of Rs. 100/- each to ISQ Asia
Infrastructure i-B Pte Ltd (now known as Cube Infrastructure Investment Co. Pte Ltd), a Portfolio
Investor, on April 29,2016 on Private Placement basis

(d) Issued and allotted of 507379 (Unsecured, Unlisted, Redeemable) NCDs of Rs. 100/- each to Cube
Infrastructure Investment Co. Pte Ltd on February 09,2017

(e) Changed its name from Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited to Mahua Bharatpur
Expressways Limited w.e.f. February 18, 2017

For and on behalf of

Bajaj & Associates
Place: Noida

Dote: June 10, 2017

Sonal Bajaj

Comi^V Secretary in Practice
Membership No. 49653

C.P. No. 18009



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRERSSWAYS LIMITED (Formerly known as
MADHUCON -AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of^ahua Bharatpur Expressways
Limited (Formerly known as Madhucon - Agra - Jaipur Expressways Limited) ("the Company"),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 'completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material mis-statement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included In the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
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view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit aiso

includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2017, and its loss and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatotv Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the
Centra! Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we enclosed in the annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3
and 4 of the said Order to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement

dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. There are no observations or comments on the financial transactions or matters

which have any adverse effect on the functioning of the company.
f. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st

March, 2017 taken on record, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure-A".

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
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opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given

to us:

i. The company has no pending litigation which would impact its financial

position;

The company did not have any long-term contract including derivative

contract for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required by the company to be

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements

as to holdings as well as dealings ln Specified Bank Notes during the period

from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. - Refer Note 2.35

11.

Mi.

tv.

For Gianender & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:004661N

Place: '

G.K Agrawal

Partner

M No. 081603
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Annexure to the Independent Auditor's Report of MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRERSSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly known as MADHUCON - AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED) for the Year ended as
on 31'* March 2017

Annexure referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report on even date:-

i. a) The company Is maintaining proper records showing full particulars. Including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets;

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management at regular
intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification

c) The title deeds of immoveable properties are held in the name of the company.
II. As the company is engaged in the business of Infrastructure development, operations and

its maintenance and there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence paragraph
3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.'

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited
liabilities partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under clause (a) to (c) of Para 3(iii) are not
applicable.

iv. The Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans, investments,
guarantee and securities, which attracts compliance to the provisions of the sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

V. The Company has not accepted deposits in terms of the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. Therefore the paragraph 3{v) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

vi. The Company is prima-facie maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 qf the Companies Act, 2013.

vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the books of accounts, the company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee state
insurance, income tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
during the year with the appropriate authorities. As on 31'* March 2017, there are
no undisputed statutory dues payables for period exceeding for a period more than
six month from the date they become payable,

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no statutory
dues pending in respect of income tax, sales tax, VAT, custom duty and cess etc. on
account of any dispute, except demands of Rs. 1,49,52,600/- and Rs. 4,48,19,060/-
raised by Income Tax department for the A.Y 2012-13 and A.V 2014-15 respectively
and for which company has filed appeal before C!T(A).

viii. The company has taken term loans from various banks and a financial institution, and issued
debentures during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, the
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company has not defaulted in repayment of principal amount and payment of interest on
term loans and to debenture holders.

ix. Money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which it was raised.
The Company has not raised money byway of initial public offer or further public offer.

X. According to the information and explanation given to us by the management which have
been relied by us, there were no frauds on or by the company noticed or reported during
the period under audit.

xi. The company has not paid any managerial remuneration, hence paragraph 3(xi) of the order

Is not applicable to the company.
xii. The company Is not a Nldhl Company, therefore para 3(xll) of the Order is not applicable to

the company.

xili. In our opinion and according to the information provided to us, the transaction entered
with the related partled are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act and are

disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
xiv. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review, therefore, para 3(xiv) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.

XV. According to the information provided to us, the company has not entered into any non-
cash transaction with directors or the persons connected with him covered under section

192 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order Is not applicable to
the company.

xvi. According to the information provided to us, the company is not required to be registered
under section 45IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, paragraph 3(xvi) of
the Order is not applicable to the company.

For Gianender & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN;004661N

c
Acco^

^  I G.KAgrawal
Place: Partner

M No. 081603
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Annexure-A

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report on even date:-
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financiai controls over financial reporting of MAHUA BHARATPUR
EXPRERSSWAYS LIMITED (Formerly known as MADHUCON - AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS
LIMITEDJC'the Company") as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financiai
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financiai controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of Its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financiai controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by iCAi and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financiai controis over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in ail material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of Internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my /our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

MBEL FY 2016-17
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gianender & Associates

Chartered Accountants

FRN:004661N

I  QslKAgrawal
Place: Partner

Date: M No. 081603

EWDE
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Mahue Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known a$ Madhucon Ajra-Jalpur Expressways Limited)

balance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

CIN - U45203TG2005PLC045689

Amount in Rupees

Particulars Note
As at As at

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

EllUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

Share capital 2.1 99,36,00,000 99,36,00,000

Reserves and surplus 2.2 (1,00,28,38,533) (70,96,10,526)

(92,38,533) 28,39,89,474

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings 2.3 2,69,18,49,548 2,29,95,87,299

Deferred Tax Liability 2.4 22,93,55,930 20,22,04,351

Long term provisions 2.5 31,42,85,214 20,83,25,569

3,23,54,90,692 2,71,01,17,219

Current liabilities

Trade payables 2.6 67,94,030 4,15,23,111

Other current liabilities 2.7 16,84,96,838 21,84,18,903

Short term provisions 2.8 2,22,564 22,98,85,537

17,55,13,432 48,98,27,551

TOTAL 3,40,17,65,591 3,48,39,34,244

ASSETS

Non current assets

Fixed assets

- Tangible assets 2.9.A 70,89,464 9,52,909

- Intangible assets 2.9.B 3,02,92,84,171 3,14,25,44,209

• Capital Work in Progress 2.9.C . 8,30,328

Non Current Investments 2.10 34,69,393 34,69,393

3,03,98,43,028 3,14,77,96,839

Lor-g term loans and advances 2.11 5,53,850 4,850

Current assets

Trade Receivables 2.12 6,19,65,009 18,51,75,000

Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.13 27,60,84,428 13,18,70,271

Short term Loans and Advances 2.14 1,22,65,287 73,41,598

Other Current Assets 2.15 1,10,53,991 1,17,45,666

36,13,68,713 33,61,32,555

TOTAL 3,40,17,65,591 3,48,39,34,244

Significant accounting policies 8 Notes to Accounts

As per our report of even dale attached

For GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no.

G.K. /^awal
Partner

Membership No. 081603 f'-edAcco
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For and on behalf of the Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

RamSn Twgi

Director

DIN: 07158674

Address:5/206,Krlshna Apra

Gardens,?, Vaibhav Khand,

Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,

lhaziabsd 201014

/

Andrew Lewis

Director 8 C.E.0

DIN: 07420188

Address:413, 1st Roor,

Plot no. 15C Delhi Appt,

Dwarka Sector - 22, New

Delhi 110075

Place: Noida

Date: 10th June 2017

Jatin Makkar

(Company Secretary)

AddressiWa 64 Shakarpur Delhi-

110092

oU' '

Narasinga Rao Challa

(Chief Financial Officer)

Address:8-16-17,

Nagavamsam Street,

Anakapalle,

Visakhapatnam • 531001



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited
(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2017

CIN - U45203TG2005PLC045689

Amount in Rupees

For the year ended For the year ended 31st

Particulars Note 31st March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Revenue from Operations 2.16 58,09,40,392 67,66,86,445

Other income 2.17 8,14,70,635 2,04,420

Total 66,24,11,027 67,68,90,865

Expenses

Operating & Maintenance expense 2.18 42,17,15,618 30,16,53,799

Employee benefits expense 2.19 1,56,80,093 88,50,485

Finance costs 2.20 36,49,70,715 29,94,25,241

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.21 11,52,88,411 13,79,47,699

Other expenses 2.22 1,08,32,618 76,51,792

Total 92,84,87,455 75,55,29,016

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (26,60,76,428) (7,86,38,151)

Profit/(loss) before prior period items and tax (26,60,76,428) (7,86,38,151)

Prior period expense

Profit/(loss) before tax (26,60,76,428) (7,86,38,151)

Tax expenses

- Deferred Tax 2,71,51,579 (1,16,29,178)

Profit / (loss) for the period (29,32,28,007) (6,70,08,973)

Earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted 2.24 (0.30) (0.67)

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no. 004661N

1 &2

For and on behalf of Board of

AAAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

G.K, y^grjawal
Partne

Membership No. 081603

NEW OELXI

edAcco

Raman Tjfegi

Director

DIN: 07158674

Address:5/206,Krishna Apra

Gardens,?, Vaibhav Khand,

Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Ghaziabad 201014

Andrew Lewis

Director & C.E.O

DIN: 07420188

Address:413, 1st Floor,

Plot no. 15C Delhi Appt,
Dwarka Sector - 22, New

Delhi 110075

Narasinga Rao Challa

(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: Noida

Date: 10th June 2017

Jatin Makkar

(Company Secretary)

Address:Wa 64 Shakarpur Delhi- Address:8-16-17,
110092 Nagavamsam Street,

Anakapalle,

Visakhapatnam - 531001



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Cash flow statement for the Period ended 31st March, 2017

GIN - U45203TG2005PLC045689

Amount in Rupees

Particulars
For the year ended 31st March For the year ended 31st

2017 March 2016

A.Cash flow from Ooeratinn Activities:

Net profit/(loss) for the period before tax (266,076,428) (78,638,151)

Adjustments

Exceptional Items -

Depreciation 115,288,411 137,947,699

Finance Cost 235,674,845 291,697,570

Total 84,886,828 351,007,118

Changes in other accounts affecting operations:

(Increasej/decrease in trade receivables 123,209.991

(Increasej/decrease in short term loans and advances (4,923,689) 24,798,310

(Increasej/decrease in other current assets 691,695 (3,614,786)

(]ncrease)/decrease in long term loans and advances (549,000)
-

lncrease/(decrease) in long term provisions 105,959,645 207,828,054

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables (34,729,081) (27,964,229)

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 80,785,112 9,265,095

Increase/(decrease) in short term provisions (229.662,973) (491,100,594)

Cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities 125,668.528 70,218,967

Less: taxes paid ■ •

Net cash generated/(used) from Operating Activities 125,668,528 .  70,218,967

B.Cash flow from Investino Activities:
>.

Purchase of Fixed Assets

- Tangible asset (6,639,053) (163,500)

• Intangible asset (695,547)

• Intangible assets under development (18,500)

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (7,334,600) (182,000)

C.Cash flow from Financino Activities:

f

Proceeds from Secured Loans 1,936,880,824

Proceeds from Unsecured Loans -
(15,000,000)

Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures for MMR Works 264,150,601 528,587,299

Repayment of Secured Loans (1,944,985,835) (144,331,129)

Interest paid (230,165,361) (315,718,444)

Net Cash from Financing Activities 25,880,229 53,537,726

lncrease/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivaIents(A+B+^C) 144,214,157 123,574,693

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 131,870,271 8,295,578

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 276,084.428 131,870,271

Notes:

1. Cash Row statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard 3;
' Cash Row Statement' as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassiffed wherever necessary.

3. Components of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31.03.2017 As at 31.03.2016

Cash on hand 2,710,406 2,388,201

Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 273,374,022 129,482,071

Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Year 276,084,428 131,870,271

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's jlt^js^atibn no. 004661N

G.K. Agr.

Partner

Membership No. 081603

wal

ft &

Place: Noida

Date: 10th June 2017

For and on behalf of Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Raman TyagT
Director

DIN: 07158674

Address:5/206,Krishna Apra

Gardens,7, Vaibhav Khand,

Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Ghaziabad 201014

L
fndrew Lewis

Director & C.E.0

DIN: 07420188

Address:413,1st Floor, Plot no.

15C Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector ■

22, New Delhi 110075

in MaRKar

(Company Secretary)

Address:Wa 64 Shakari

110092

KD

Sarasinga Rao Challa

'jCjiief Financial Officer)
:adress:8-16-17, Nagavamsam

Street, Anakapalle,
Visakhapatnam • 531001
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Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 (Continued)

2.1 Share Capital

Particulars
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Number Rs. Number Rs.

Authorised

Equity shares of Rs. 10 par value

Issued,Subscribed and fully Paid up

Equity shares of Rs. 10 par value

100,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000,000

100,000,000 100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000,000

99,360,000 993,600,000 99,360,000 993,600,000

99,360,000 993,600,000 99,360,000 993,600,000

The reconciliation of the number of equity shores outstanding is set out below;

Particulars
AsatBlstMarch 2017 As at 31st March 2016

Number Rs. Number Rs.

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Shares Issued during the period

Shares bought back during the period

99,360,000 993,600,000 99,360,000 993,600,000

Shares outstanding at the end of the period 99,360,000 993,600,000 99,360,000 993,600,000

The rights, pre/erences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of
capital;

The Company has only one class o/equity shores having a par value of Rs.10/-per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing onnuoi general meeting.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, no dividend Is declared by Board of Director's (Previous year ■ Nit)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of
preferential omounfs. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the Shareholders

Shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including shares held by or by subsidiaries
or associates of the holding company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate;

Name of Shareholder Relationship (2016-17)

As at31stMarch 2017 Asat31st March 2016

No. of Shares held
Rs.

No. of Shares held
Rs.

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd Holding Company 99,333,400 993,334,000 73,525,800 735,258,000

Madhucon Projects Limited Share Holder . . 100,000 1,000,000
Madhucon infra Limited Share Holder 26,000 260,000 • -

Srei Infrastructure Finance Ltd. Share Holder
- - 26,000 260,000

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited Share Holder • - 25,707,600 257,076,000
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The details of shareholders holdlns more than 5% equity shares is set below;

Name of Shareholder Relationship (2016-17)

As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding

Cube Highways and Infrastructure Pte. Ltd

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited

Holding Company

Share Holder

99,333,400 99.97X 73,525,800

25,707,600

74.00X

25.87%

2.2 Reserves and Surplus

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Capital Reserves

NHAI Grant

Balance as per last financial statement

Add: Amount received during the period

Closing Balance (A)

Surplus / ( Deficit) balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as per last financial statement

Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the period

Closing Balance (B)

384,000,000 384,000,000

384,000,000 384,000,000

(1,093,610,526)

(293,228,007)

(1,026,601,553)

(67,008,973)

(1,386,838,533) (1,093,610,526)

Grand Total (A-rB ) (1,002,838,533) (709,610,526)

3ELHNEW

edActO

latpu/-

po\\



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 (Continued)

2.3 Long term borrowings

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Secured Loans

Term loans from Banks

Term loans from Banks

Term loans from Financial Institutions

L&T Infrastructure Finance Co Ltd

Sub Total

Unsecured Loans:

Unsecured Reedeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

From related parties

Cube Infrastructure Investment Company Pte. Ltd

^  Sub Total

Grand Total

949,555,824

949,555,824

1,771,000,000

1

1,899,111,648 1,771,000,000

792,737,900 528,587,299

792,737,900 528,587,299

2,691,849,548 2,299,587,299

A) Secured Loans

Terms of Repayment

During the period, MBEL has repaid the loan of existing lenders led by State Bank of India by refinancing with L&T Infrastrcutrue Finance
Company Limited and HDFC Bank Limited. Hence the terms of repayments has been changed.The revised rate of interest is 10.15% uniformly for
all banks .The interest rates are fixed for all the 2 banks with interest reset happening on each reset date per annum. The loan is repayable in

150 Monthly unequal installments ranging from 0.20 Crores to 2.44 Crores starting from 01.11.2016 to 01.04.2029.

Terms of Security

Except Project Assets as specified in the Concession Agreement.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

A first mortgage/charge on all the Borrower's movable properties, both present and future.

A first charge on all intangible assets of the Company, including but not limited to goodwill, undertaking

and uncalled capital of the Borrower.

A first charge/assignment of all receivable/revenues of the Borrower

A first charge by way of assignment/security interest on all the rights, titles, benefits, interests, demand

and claims under the concession Agreement, Project Documents, Contracts insurance policies obtained/

procured by the Company, and /or/any of it's contractors favouring the Company and all licenses, permits,

approvals and consents in respect of the Project, present 6t future, in respect of the Project.

A first charge on all bank accounts of the borrower

B) Unsecured Reedeemable Non-Convertible Debentures

The NCD's are non-marketable i.e. they are not capable of being sold on a recognised stock exchange in or outside India. The Company
does not intend to, and shall not, list the NCD's on any recognised stock exchange in or outside India.

Interest on the NCD's subscribed by (i) Investor Affiliate at Completion Date, or (ii) to the Investor Affiliate to repay thye Remaining
Seller Subordinate Loan,will be chargeable at an annual Interest Rate of SBl Base + 500 bps, or lower as mutually agreed, (Payable
annually) from the date of issuance of such NCDs. Howerver, subscriber/ holder of the NCD's right to receive the interest will accrue
and the Company's obligation to make payment of interest as reckoned from the date of issuance of such NCD's will arise only after ther
remaining Seller Subordinate Loan has been discharged or paid off in full.

NCD's may be redeemed at face value any time at the option of the NCD after the Seller Subordinate Loans are fully repaid, subject to
any applicable minimum maturity period prescribed by applicable maturity period prescribed by Applicable Law.

Premature Redemption subject

Agreement or the Debenture Tj
along with any accrued but un

The Company shall redeem all'

April 2031 / /

eed

ebentur

Acco^

ing met all th

criber sh

NCD's

full by p the

cted Payment Conditions as defined under the Common Loan
ight to seek premature redemption of the NCD's at face value

k

tti/e Redemption Amounts on the final redemption date, i.e. 28th



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017(Continued)

2.4 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Deferred tax liabilities 22,93,55,930 20,22,04,351

22,93.55,930 20,22,04,351

2.5 Long term provisions

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Provision for Periodic Maintenance 31,29,53,632 20,81,63,000

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 11,70,851 1,55,745

Leave Encashment 1,60,731 6,824

31,42,85,214 20,83,25,569

2.6 Trade payables

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

-Due to micro and small enterprises

Due to Others

Madhucon Infra Limited - O&M - 11,41,643

Madhucon Projects Limited-MMR Works
. 3,95,81,188

Tata Projects Limited
- 8,00,280

Others 67,94,030 .

67,94,030 4,15,23,111

2.7 Other current liabilities

As at As at

Particulars 31st Atarch 2017 31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Madhucon infra Limited - 19,06,176

Madhucon Projects Limited 43,59,267 8,990

Madhucon Projects Limited (Retention Money) ■ 2,45,51,358

Current maturities of long-term debt 2,32,02,212 15,94,18,871

Interest accrued but not due 10,98,82,600 27,96,209

Utility Shifting Expanse payable 14,13,016 14,13,016

Salary payable 15,33,993 10,07,355

Audit Fee payable 2,34,878 2,26,541

Smart card Deposit 4,77,015 2,95,000

Statutory liabilities 44,67,985 1,10,97,601

Other Payable 2,29,25,872 1,56,97,786

16,84,96,838 21,84,18,903

2.8 Short term provisions

As at As at

Particulars 31st March 2017 31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Provision for periodic maintenance
- 22,98,34,067

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity 1,95,535 20,980

Leave Encashment 27,029 30,490

2,22,564 22,98,85,537

NEW



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Asra-Jalpur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017(Continued)

2.9- Fixed assets

2.9.A- Tangible Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization Net Carrying Value

Fixed Assets As at

1st April 2016
Additions

Disposals /

Adjustments

As at

31stMarch 2017

As at

1st April 2016
For the Year

Deductions /

Adjustments
As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2017

As at

1st April 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Furniture & Fixtures

Furniture & Fixtures (100X)

1,68,458

2,01,572

2,83,389 4,51,847

2,01,572

1,52,019

2,01,572

21,416 1,73,435

2,01,572

2,78,412 16,439

Office equipment

Office equipment (100%)

27,23,702

1,41,281

19,69,101 46,92,803

1,41,281

19,05,243

1,41,281

6,14,516 25,19,759

1,41,281

21,73,044 8,18,459

Computers

Computers (100%)

17,74,655

26,918

10,67,444 28,42,099

26,918

16,56,644

26,918

3,17,848 19,74,492

26,918

8,67,607 1,18,011

Plant and Machinery 36,62,328 36,62,328 3,38,746 3,38,746 33,23,582 ■

Net Work & Server 4,87,119 4,87,119 40,300 40,300 4,46,819
-

Total 50,36,586 74,69,381
• 1,25,05,967 40,83,677 13,32,826

- 54,16,503 70,89,464 9,52,909

Previous Year 48,73,086 1,63,500
- 50,36,586 32,89,774 7,93,903 - 40,83,677 9,52,909 15,83,311

2.9.B- Intangible Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization Net Carrying Value

Fixed Assets
As at

1st April 2016
Additions

Disposals /

Adjustments
As at

31st March 2017

As at

1st April 2016
For the Year

Deductions /

Adjustments

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2017

As at

1st April 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Intansible Assets

Toll Collection Rights-Carriageway 3,87,92,99,955 • ■ 3,87,92,99,955 73,68,73,807 11,38,34,182 - 85,07,07,989 3,02,85,91,966 3,14,24,26,148

Computer software 3,32,796 6,95,547
• 10,28,343 2,14.735 1,21,403

• 3,36,138 6,92,205 1,18,061

Total 3,87,96,32,751 6,95,547
-

3,88,03,28,298 73,70,88,542 11,39,55,585 - 85,10,44,127 3,02,92,84,171 3,14,25,44,209

Previous Year 3,87,96,32,751
- - 3,87,96,32,751 59,99,34,746 13,71,53,796

- 73,70,8{U|^325^^^44,209 3,27,96,98,005
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2.9.C - Capital Work fn Progress

Fixed Assets

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation/ Amortization Net Carrying Value

As at

1st April 2016
Additions

Disposals /

Adjustments
As at ^

31st March 2017

As at

1st April 2016
For the Year

Deductions /

Adjustments

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2017

As at

1st April 2016
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

200 KVA Transformers

Electrical Equipment

2,18,500

6,11,828

2,18,500

6,11,828

■ -

■ ■

- • 2,18,500

6,11,828

Total 8,30,328 - 8,30,328 - - ■ ■ - - 8,30,328

Previous Year 8,11,828 18,500 . 8,30,328 . . . . 8,30,328 8,11,828

Foot Notes:

Assets having carrying value as NIL have been shown for the presentation purpose only.



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Lfmited

(Formerly known as Madhucon /^ra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 (Continued)

2.10 Non Current Investments

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

3tst March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Investment Property • Land 34,69,393 34,69,393

34,69,393 34,69.393

2.11 Long term loans and advances

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Unsecured, considered good

Security Deposit 5,53,850 4,850

5,53,850 4,850

2.12: Trade Receivables

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

O&M Grant receivable - NHAI

Claim Receivable from NHAI • Demonetisation

Receivable from NHAI • Service Road Works (COS )
2,93,72,798

3,25,92,211

18,51,75,000

6,19,65,009 18,51,75,000

2.13: Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks

•on current account

Fixed Deposit

• Reserve for DSRA, MMR & OMR

• Others

Cash on hand

1,48,54,646
V

23,41,00,000

2,44.19,376

27,10,406

12,94,82,071

23,88,201

27,60,84,428 13,18,70,271

2.14: Short term loan and advances

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Advances to Others

Staff Advances

Advances to Vendors

TDS Receivable

Other Statutory Receivable
Prepaid expenses

13,136

2,02,816

1,02,63,110

9,81,279

8,04,946

22,947

1,31,225

65,61,105

1,34,423

4,91,898

1,22,65,287 73,41,598

r

2.15: Other Current Assets

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31stAAarch 2016

Rs. Rs.

Receipts From NHAI ^
• For Toll Equipment • ETC ffSf
• For Weigh in Motion (WIM) II NEWDELHl l^Jj
• For Other Receivables from NHAI

Other Receipts

• Other Receivables

40,28,220

10,00,000

60,25,771

77,17,466

40,28,220

1,10,53,991 1,17,45,686



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 (Continued)

2.16: Revenue From Operations i

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Toll Fee Collections 58,09,40,392 59,43,86,445
Other Operating Income

Revenue Grant from NHAI
- 8,23,00,000

58,09,40,392 67,66,86,445

2.17: Other income

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Claim from NHAI - Demonetisation 2,79,05,210

Income from Service Road Works - COS 3,25,92,211 .

Income from ETC Works - COS 30,43,778 .

Income from Other Works - COS 7,02,102 .

Interest on Fixed Deposits 68,11,701 -

Other Income 1,04,15,633 2,04,420

8,14,70,635 2,04,420

2.18: Operating & Maintenance expenses

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Carriageway Maintainence-Routine 4,04,45,673 4,70,40,497
Toll Plaza maintenance 2,35,65,885 1,29,96,172

Service Road Maintenance Works - COS 3,16,52,734 .

Toll Monitoring expenses 3,01,500 4,96,666
D.G Running & Maintenance 93,18,927 60,04,453

Carriageway Maintenance - Periodic 18,93,49,762 -

Carriageway Maintenance - Periodic ( Provision ) 10,47,90,632 20,81,63,000

Consultant Fees 41,69,432 1,28,93,043

Insurance 19,70,674 16,04,242

Electricity charges 22,05,559 6,10,036

Watch & Ward 62,29,306 64,55,661
Repairs & Maintenance 32,62,560 32,49,233

Communication 5,11,292 1,37,555

Vehicle Hire Charges 39,26,015 15,26,302

Traveling and conveyance 15,667 71,242
Printing & Stationery - 4,01,887

Miscellaneous expenses - 3,810

42,17,15,618 30,16,53,799

newoeuu
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Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon AgraOaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017(Continued)

2.19: Employee benefits expenses

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Salaries and wages 1,42,86,689 78,94,137

Contribution to provident and other funds 7,77,641 5,35,811

Workmen and staff welfare expenses 6,15,763 4,20,537

1,56,80,093 88,50,485

2.20: Finance Cost
'

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Interest on Term loans 23,56,74,845 28,95,00,786

Interest on NCD's 10,51,86,895 21,96,784

Other borrowing costs 2,38,11,714 75,68,544

Bank Charges 2,97,261 1,59,127

36,49,70,715 29,94,25,241

2.21: Depreciation and amortisation expenses

For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Depreciation 13,32,826 7,93,903

Amortisation 11,39,55,585 13,71,53,796

11,52,88,411 13,79,47,699

2.22: Other expenses

For the year ended '31st For the year ended 31st

Particulars March 2017 March 2016

Rs.

Rent 5,76,457 5,35,334

Rates and taxes 22,21,109 7,12,623

Repairs & Maintenance - 15,070

Electricity Charges 20,774 6,94,594

Advertisement and Business Promotion 3,10,637 4,10,575

Traveling and conveyance 13,80,622 6,07,777

Legal and professional fees 52,89,627 14,31,398

Interest on TDS 7,308 18,34,920

Payments to Auditors

- As Auditor 1,72,500 97,325

- For Other Services 1,22,825 90,373

Miscellaneous expenses 7,30,759 12,21,803

1,08,32,618 76,51,792



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 (Continued)

2.23 :Disclosures pursuant to Commitments and Accounting Standard 29 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"

a) Movement In provisions:

Particulars

As at

31st March 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Opening Balance

Additions during the year

Provision used/reversed during the year

Closing Balance

Represented as:

- Short Term Provision

- Long Term Provision

43,79,97,067

10,47,90,632

22,98,34,067

31,29,53,632

31,29,53,632

72,08,61,213

20,81,63,000

49,10,27,146

43,79,97,067

22,98,34,067

20,81,63,000

b) Nature of provisions:

Major Maintenance Provision: The company is required to operate and maintain the project highway during the entire concession period
and hand over the project back to the Authority(NHAI) as per the maintenance standards prescribed in Concession agreement.

For this purpose, besides a regular maintenance, periodic major maintenances is required to be performed. Normally periodic
maintenance includes resurface of pavements, repairs of structures, repairs and refurbishment of tolling system and other equipments
and maintenance of service roads.

As per industry practice, the periodic maintenance is expected to occur over a period 5-7 years. The maintenance cost / bituminous
overlay may vary based on the actual usage during maintenance period. Accordingly on the grounds of prudence, based on estimates, a
provision for major maintenance expenses is provided for in the books annually.

c) Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars

As at

31stAAarch 2017

As at

31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

A) Contingent Liabititv

i) Demand raised by IT Department for A. Y 2012-2013

ii) Demand raised by IT Department for A. Y 2014-2015

ill) Penalty imposed by NHAI for delay in Major Maintenance, disputed by the
company and the matter is under arbitration

1,49,52,600

4,48,19,060

Nil

1,49,52,600

26,18,48,055

iv) Demand raised by Asst. P.F Commisioner which is disputed by the company Nil
11,14,037

B) Caoital commitments Nil Nil

2.24: Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2017

For the year ended
31st March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity Shareholders
Shares

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year

Add: Equity shares issued during the period

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period

Basic Earnings per share

Diluted Earnings per share

(29,32,28,007)

99,36,00,000

99,36,00,000

(0.30)

(0.30)

(6,70,08,973)

9,93,60,000

9,93,60,000

(0.67)

(0.67)

i  /'JSSN f\ W ̂



MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly known as Madhucon Agra Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2017

1. Corporate information

Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (Formerly known as Madhucon Agra - Jaipur Expressways

Limited) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956, on 23rd March, 2005 as a Special Purpose
Vehicle for execution of four lanes Bharatpur - Mahua Section (KM 63.000 - KM 120.000) Road Project
on NH-11 in the state of Rajasthan on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOX) basis. This contract was
awarded by National Highways Authority of India.

The Concession period comprises of 25 years which includes construction period of 30 months. The
company achieved the COD on 8th May, 2009.

2. Significant Accounting Policies;

A. Basis of Preparation

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ["GAAP"] in compliance with the provisions of

theCompanies Act, 2013 and the Accounting Standards as specified in the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 read with Rule 7 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs in respect of section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Circular No.07/2014 dated April 1, 2014 of the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs. Further, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India (ICAI) are also considered, wherever applicable, except to the extent where compliance with other

statutory promulgations override the same requiring a different treatment.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that the management of the
Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of
the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. Examples of such estimates include the useful lives of

tangible and intangible fixed assets, allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect
of retirement benefit plans, etc. Difference, if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognized

in the period in which the results are known.

B. Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Cash Flow Statement has been

prepared and presented as per the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 3 "Cash Flow Statements".

The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss,

as prescribed in Schedule III to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of accounts along with
the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards.

Amounts in the financial statem^S^t^oresented in Indian Rupees rounded off to the nearest Rupee.
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C. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i. Revenue from Operations

a. Service income

i) Fee collections from the users of the infrastructure facility are accounted for as and when the amount is
due and the recovery is certain.

ii) Income from sale of smart cards is recognised as and when the amount is received from the users of the
cards.

b. Other Operating Income

Other operational revenue represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is
recognized when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

ii. Other Income

a. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the applicable rate.

b. Profit/loss on sale of investments is recognised at the time of actual sale/redemption.
c. Other items of income are accounted for as and when the right to receive arises.
d. Dividend Income is recognized when the right to receive is established.

D. Emnlovee Benefits

1. Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short term employee benefits. The benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated absences etc. and
the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

ii. Post-Employment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans: The Company's obligation to employee's provident fund is^ a defined
contribution plan. The contribution paid/payable is recognized in the period in which the employee renders
the related service.

b) Defined Benefit Plans: The Company's obligation towards gratuity is a defined benefit plan.

The present value of the obligation under such Defined Benefit Plans is determined based on actuarial

valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee be^^fcs^^tlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.
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The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at the Balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and loss,

ill. Long Term Employee Benefits

The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences is recognized in
the same manner as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (ii) (b) above.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the
terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss

E. Grant from NHAI

i.) NHAI grants available to the Company is considered:

(a) Where there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to
them; and

(b) Where such benefits have been earned by the Company and it is reasonably certain that the
ultimate collection will be made

ii.) Where the government grants are of the nature of promoters' contributions, i.e., they, are given
with reference to the total investment in an undertaking or by way of contribution towards its total
capital outlay (for example, central investment subsidy scheme) and no repayment is ordinarily
expected in respect thereof, the grants are treated as capital reserve which can be neither distributed as
dividend nor considered as deferred income.

iii.) Grant received from NHAI during the Operation and Maintenance Period are treated as Revenue
Grants as per AS-12 and accordingly credited to Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

F. Fixed Assets

Tangible

Fixed assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation
and cumulative impairment.

Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are specifically attrjbutable to the construction or
acquisition of fixed assets, for bringing the fixed asset to working condition are allocated and capitalised
as a part of cost of fixed asset
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Intangible

Intangible assets are recognized as per the criteria specified in Accounting Standard (AS) 26 "Intangible
Assets" as specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rule, 2006.

Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are directly attributable to development or
acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as

"intangible assets under development".

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, represent the right to
collect toll revenue during the concession period in respect of Build-Operate-Transfer (BOX) projects
undertaken by the Company. Toll collection rights are capitalised as intangible asset upon completion of
the project at the cumulative construction costs. Till completion of the project, the same is recognised as
intangible assets under development. Other incidental income earned during the construction period is
reduced from the cost of the intangible asset under development.

G. Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets have been provided on straight-line basis based on the life of asset as specified in
the Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions/ deductions is calculated pro-rata
from/ to the day of additions/ deductions. For assets that are transferred/sold within the group, depreciation
is calculated up to the month preceding the month of transfer/sale within the group.

The following asset categories have useful lives different from the life specified in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013, based on technical advice.

Category of Asset Useful life (years)

Office equipments-mobile phones 2

Computer Software 3

Amortisation

Toll collection rights in respect of road projects are amortised over the period of concession using the
revenue based amortisation method prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Under the
revenue based method, amortisation is provided based on proportion of actual revenue earned till the end
of the year to the total projected revenue from the intangible asset expected to be earned over the
concession period. Total projected revenue is reviewed at the end of each financial year and is adjusted to
reflect the changes in earlier estimate vis-a-vis the actual revenue earned till the end of the year so that the
whole of the cost of the intangible asset is amortised over the concession period.

EWOftX/
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H. Leases

Operating

Assets acquired on leases where a significant portion of risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss on

accrual basis. ^

Assets leased out under operating leases are capitalised. Rental income is recognized over the lease term.

Finance

Assets acquired under leases where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases. Such assets are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the
fair value or the present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent
amount '

I. Imnairment of Assets;

As at each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of assets is tested for impairment so as to determine:

i. The provision for impairment loss, if any required; or

ii. The reversal, if any, required of impairment loss recognized in previous period.
Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined:
I

i. In the case of an individual assets, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use;

il. In the cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the
higher of cash generating unit's net selling price and the value in use;

(Value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of
an asset arid from its disposal at the end of its useful life).

J. Investments

Investments which are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date
on which such investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are

classified as long term investments

On initial recognition, all investments are measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties. If an investment is acquired by
the issue of shares or other securities, the acquisition cost is the fair value of the securities issued. If an
investment is acquired in exchange for another asset, the acquisition is determined by reference to the fair
value of the asset given up or by reference to the fair value of the investment acquired, whichever is more
clearly evident.
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Currenl Investments are carried in the Financial Statements at lower of cost and fair value determined on an

individual investment basis. Long term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution
in value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the investments.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is
charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

K. Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with
banks and other bank balances which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments
being not free from more than insignificant risk of change are not included as part of cash and cash
equivalents.

L. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, commitment charges, amortization of ancillary costs, amortization of
discounts / premium related to borrowings, finance charges in respect of finance lease and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized / inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or
sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In compliance of AS-16 "Borrowing Cost", income earned on temporary investments, out of funds
borrowed which are intermittently surplus but inextricably linked with the project, is deducted from the
related borrowing costs incurred.

M. Taxes on Income

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits

computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and based on the expected
outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income accounted in financial
statements and the taxable income for the year and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax asset relating to unabsorbed depreciatioiVbusiness losses and losses under the head "capital
gains" are recognised and carried forward to the extent there is virtual certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

Other deferred tax asset are recognised and carried fonvard to the extent that there is a reasonable

certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can
be realised.

tR

HE

ccoO



N. Maior Maintenance;

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Toll Road in operational
condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provision for the
resurfacing is built up in accordance with the provisions of AS 29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

O. Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a substantial degree of
estimation, if

a) the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event
b) a probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
c) the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated.

Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is recognized only when it
is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of:

a) A present obligation arising from a past event, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation

b) a possible obligation when no reliable estimate is possible and
c) A possible obligation arising from a past event unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Contingent Assets are neither recognized, nor disclosed.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance sheet date.

P. Operating cycle

Operating cycle for the business activities of the company is taken as twelve months.

O. Current and Non Current Classification

i. Current Assets

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company's normal
operating cycle;

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.
c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or
d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other Assets shall be classified as Non-current



ii. Current Liabilities

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is expected to be settled in the company's normal operating cycle;
b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date : or
d) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not effect its classification

R. Cash flow Statement

Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under indirect method,
the net profit is adjusted for the effects of:

a) Transactions of non-cash nature.

b) Any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and
c) Items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in the Cash Flow
Statement. Those cash and cash equivalents which are not available for general use as on date of
balance sheet are also included under this category with a specific disclosure.

S. Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure. They are classified and disclosed as
follows:

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;
b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;
c) Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies; and
d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and

relevant in the opinion of the management.

Other commitments related to sales / procurements made in the normal course of business are not

disclosed to avoid excessive details.

T. Claims

a) Claims against the company are accounted for as and when accepted.
b) Claims by the company are recognised and accounted for as and when received

NEW DELHI



U. Earnings per share

The basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted average number of equity
shares which would have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date. The diluted potential equity shares have been adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at the average market value of the outstanding shares, in
computing dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces
earnings per share or increase loss per share included.

Acco'i



MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

(Formerly Known as Madhucon Agra Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31.03.2017

2.25 Fixed Assets:

The Company being the service concession operator, has received an intangible asset from the grantor.

National Highways Authority of India in consideration for the construction of the Carriageway, in the form

of the right to collect the toll from the users of Carriageway.

The construction costs including interest and preliminary expenses incurred during the implementation

phase have been recognized as an intangible asset, in accordance with the recognition criteria prescribed

by Accounting Standard 26 - Intangible Assets, issued under Companies Accounting Standard Rules 2006.

2.26 Grants:

The Grant received from NHAI during operations period is in the nature of O&M Support and hence

credited to Statement of Profit and Loss and treated as revenue.

2.27. Disclosure in accordance with Accounting Standard - AS 17, Segment Information:

Business Segment:

The Services rendered by the Company are in the nature of Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer of

4 laning of Bharatpur - Mahua Section of NH 11 from KM 63.000 to KM 120.000 in the state of Rajasthan

of Toll basis for a concession period of 25 years. Hence, business segment disclosure is not required.

Geographical Segment:

During the year under report, the company is engaged in business within the State of Rajasthan. The

conditions prevailing in Rajasthan being uniform, no separate geographical disclosure is considered

necessary.

2.28 Income Tax:

Deferred Tax Asset / Liabilities and Provision for Income Tax will be recognised at the end of financial year.

2.29 Impairement:

Based on a review of the future discounted cash flows, the recoverable amount of the project facility is more
than its carrying amount. Accordingly, no provision for impairment is made for in the accounts.

2.30 Major Maintenance Provision:

The company is required to carry out major maintenance of the

major maintenance period fell due in FY 2014-2015, sa:

maintenance of the road falls due in F.Y 2019-2020. Accordi

Rs. 312,953,632/-.

as en

years from COD. The first

pleted. The next Major

has made a provision of

ccou

2.31 The company does not have any transactions to which the provisions of AS-2 relating to Valuation of
Inventories apply.
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2.32 Micro. Small and medium Enterprises:

There has been no reported transaction during the year ended 31st March 2017 with Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act.
(MSMED Act, 2006).Hence, reporting details of principal and interest does not arise.

2.33 Disclosure In Accordance With Accounting Standard —18. Related Party Transactions.

A. List of Related Party >vith whom the company has transactions:

Name of The Related Party Relationship (2016 - 2017) Relationship (2015 - 2016)

Cube Highways And Infrastructure

Pte. Ltd.
Holding Company Holding Company

Madhucon Projects Limited Share Holder upto 29"" March 2016

Madhucon Infra Limited Share Holder -

V RTechniche Consultants Pvt Ltd Related Party
/

Bhari Infra Pvt Ltd Related Party -

B. Transaction with related parties with whom the company has transactions:
Amount in Rupees

Particulars

Transaction

during the
Period

Upto '
31.03.2017 Transaction

during the
year

Upto
31.03.2016

(Payable) /
Receivable

(Payable) /
Receivable

i. Cube Infrastructure Investment Company Pte. Ltd.

Interest on NCD's 10,51,86,895 (10,15,76,907) 21,96,784 20,77,993

Unsecured - NCD's 264,150,601 (792,737,900) 528,587,299 (528,587,299)

ii, V.R Techniche Consultants Pvt Ltd

Consultancy Charges 4,83,276 - - -

Hi. Bbari Infra Pvt Ltd
1

Purchase of Material 1,71,750 - - -

1

iv. Madhucon Projects Limited

Expenses paid on our Behalf -

-

9,59,736
(8,990)

Expenses paid on their Behalf - 2,98,639

Service Road Works 14,30,827 - -
-

O&M Expenses - - 46,256,550 (43,481,156)

Retention Money - - - (24,551,358)

Major Maintenance Wor^^l^^419,183J^gx (4,359,267) 491,027,146 (39,581,188)



V . Madhucon Infra Limited

Expenses paid on our Behalf
-

-

3,073,199
(1,906,176)Expenses paid on their Behalf - 51,406

0 & M Expenses
-

- 47,040,497 (1,141,643)

No amount pertaining to related parties have been written off/written back during the period (PY: Nil)

2.34 Employee Benefits

a) Provision for Gratuity is made on actuarial basis as summarized below:

AMOUNT TO BE RECOGNISED IN BALANCE SHEET

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
is as follows: 3r' March 2017 31"* March 2016

(Rs.) (Rs.)
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,76.725 5,19,282
Acquisition adiustment 715762

Interest cost 14.138 41,543
Current services cost 1.98,860 36,221
Benefits paid (6.29.640)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 8,90,541 (4,20,321)
Closing defined benefit obligation 13,66,386 1,76,725
Non Current Liability 11,70,851 1,55,745
Current Liability 1,95,535 20,980

EXPENSE TO BE RECOGNISED IN P & L ACCOUNT

Current Service Cost 1,98,860 36,221
Interest Cost on benefit obligation 14,138 41,543
Expected return on plan assets

Net Actuarial (gain) / Loss recognized in the year 8,90,541 (4,20.321)
Past services cost

Net Benefit expense 11,03,539 (3,42,557)
Actual return on plan assets

b) Provision for Leave Encashment is made on actuarial basis as summarized below:

TABLE 1 AMOUNT TO BE RECOGNISEI)IN BALANCE SHEET

Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
is as follows:

3r' March 2017

(Rs.)
31"* March 2016

(Rs.)

Opening defined benefit obligation 37,314 1,03,151
Acquisation Adiustment 1,63,954

Interest cost 2,985 8,252
Current services cost 80,036 19,619
Benefits paid (1,91,997)

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation 95,468 (93,708)

Closing defined benefit obligation ^ K j 1,87,760 37,314

Non Current Liability 1,60,731 6,824

Current Liability 27,029 30,490

\



TABLE 2 EXPENSE TO BE RECOGNISED IN P & L ACCOUNT

31'' March 2017

(Rs.)

3P' March 2016

(Rs.)

Current Service Cost 80,036 19,619

Interest Cost on benefit obligation 2.985 8,252

Net Actuarial (gain) / Loss recognized in the year 95,468 (93,708)

Net Benefit expense 1,78,489 (65,837)

Summary of Actuarial Assumptions

Principle rules to compute Benefit Obligations
A Salary reckoned for calculating Benefit Obligations Last Drawn Salary

B Vesting Period Nil

C Benefit

1 Yearly Accrual 30 Days

2 Maximum Accumulation 30 Days
3 Availment in Service (Compensated absence) Yes

4 Leave Encashment in Service No

5 Leave Encashment on exit Yes

6 Month to be treated as 30 Days
D Benefit on Normal retirement 30 Days or Max. or Actual Accumulation

E Benefit on early retirement / Withdrawal / Resignation /
Death

Same as normal retirement benefit

c) Contribution to Provident Fund is accounted on accrual basis.

2.35 Specified Bank Notes:

During the year , the Company had specified bank notes and other denomination notes as defined in the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification G.S.R. 308( E) dated 3 P'March 2017 on the details of Specified
Bank Notes held and transacted during the period from 8*'' November 2016 to 30''^ December 2016 the
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below.

Description
SBNs*

Other

denomination

notes

Total

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 17,12,000 9,75,939 26,87,939/-

(+) Permitted receipts 88,05,500 3,14,92,579 4,02,98,079/-

(-) Permitted payments - -

(-) Amount deposited in Banks 1,05,17,500 3,00,98,155 4,06,15,655/-

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016

"

23,70,363/-

* For the clause, the term "Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)" sh\
notification of the Government of India, Ministry of Finance,'
S.O.3407 (E), dated 8*''November 2016.

^e meaning provided in the
Economic Affairs number

•J . nO
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2.36 Auditors Remuneration:

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Statutory Audit Fee 1,72,500 97,325

Other Services 1,22,825 90,373
Total 2,95,325 1,87,698

2.37 Disclosure Pursuant to AS-7

S.No Particulars

For the year
ended March

31,2017

For the year
ended March

31,2016

Service Road Work - COS

(i) Contract revenue recognized for the year 32,592,211

(ii)
Aggregate amount of cost incurred and recognized profits (less
recognized losses) up to the balance sheet date for all contract in
progress as at that date.

31,652,734 -

(ill) Amount of customer advances outstanding for contracts in
progress as at balance sheet date.

- -

(iv)
Retention amount due from customers for contracts in progress.

- -

(v) Gross amount due from customers for contract work. 32,592,211 -

(vi) Gross amount due to customer for contract work 10,125,919 -

2.38 Director Sitting Fees:

S.NO. Particulars Designation 2016-17 2015-16

1 Akhil Kumar Jain Independent Director 1,57,192 Nil

2 Ashok Gupta '  Independent Director 2,00,000 Nil

3 Jayant Goal Independent Director (till 29*"*
July' 2016)

1,00,000 Nil

2.39 Foreign Currency Transactions:

S.NO. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

GIF Value of Imports Nil Nil

2 Expenditure in Foreign Currency 8,45,649 Nil

3 Earnings in Foreign Currencv Nil Nil

2.40

2.41

Particulars of Employees who were in receipt of remuneration of more than Rs.5,00,000/- or more per
month, If employed for a part of the year - Nil (Previous Period - Nil) or who were in receipt of
remuneration of more than Rs.60,00,000/- or more employed for whole of the year — Nil
(Previous Period-Nil).

Figures have been rounded off with the nearest rup
where ever necessary.

J'

es has been regrouped or rearranged



2.42 In the opinion of the board the Current Assets and Loans & Advances has realisable value in the ordinary
course of business as stated in financial statements.

for GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no. 00466 IN
5  5

^grawal

Partner

.Membership No. 081603

1^0

4ccout<^

Place: Noida

Date: 10»^ June 2017

For and on behalf of Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

gi

Jatin Makkar

(Company Secretary)
Address:Wa 64 Shakarpur
Delhi-110092

VP"'

Raman T

Director

DIN:07158674

Address:5/206,Krishna Apra
Gardens,7, Vaibhav Khand,
Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Ghaziabad 201014

Andrew Lewis

Director & C.E.O

DIN:07420188

Address:413,1st Floor, Plotno.ISC
Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector -22,
New Delhi 110075

Narasinga Rao Challa

(Chief Financial Officer)
Address:8-16-17, Nagavamsam
Street, Anakapalle,
Visakhapatnam - 531001



Madhucon Agra- Jaipur Expressways Limited

Qniance Sheet as at 31st March 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars Note
As at

31st March 2015

As at

31sl March ZOI'I

EQLilTY AND LIABILITIES

Sliarcholdcrs' funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus

Non-Current Liabilities

Lciig-lerm borrowings

Deferred Tax Liability

•"Long-term'provisions-^

Current liabititles

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Short term provisions

TOTAL

ASSETS

Non current assets

Fixed assets

-Tangible assets

- intangible assets

• Intangible assets under development

Long term loans and advances

Current assets

Trade Receivables

Casli and Bank Balances

Short term Loans and Advances

Other current assets

TOTAL

7.1

2.2

2.3

Z.-l

2.6

2.7

2.8

Rs.

993,600,000

(eiz.doi.sss)

350,998,dd?

1,905,600,000

213,833,529

^-■ ■-'■d97?515'
2,119,931,Odd

69,d87,3dO
257,905,811
720,986,131

1,048,379,282

3,519,308.773

2.9.A
2.9.B

2.9.C

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

5,052,704
3,279,698,005

8,942,728

3,293,693,438

4,850

185,175,000
8,295,578

32,139,908

225,610,486

3,519,308,773

Rs.

993,600,000
(163,717,448)
829.882,552

2,058,500,000

■7338;015
2,058,838,015

45,932,242
223,314,171
598,742,630

.867,989,043

3,756,709,610

6,149,766
3,618,841,063

3,624,990,829

2,306,388

102,875,000
18,968,807

7,276,831
291,755.

129,412,393

3,756,709,610

Significant accounting policies 6 Notes to Accounts

As per our report of even date attached

For GiANENDER & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration no. 004f

«o

1 &2

For and on behalf of the Board of
MAOHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRKSWAYS LIMITED

Puneet Kumar

Partner

Membership No. 531830

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2015

^0

Jitertd

K.Sr mvas i Rao
Director

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2015,

dhu

0 rector
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Madluicon Agra- Jaipur Expressways Limited

Statement of Profit and loss for tlie year ended 31st March, 2015

(Amount in Rupees)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars Note 31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Rs. Rs.

Revenue from Operations 2.15 640,738,770 563,804,464

Sub total 640,738,770 563,004,464

Other income 2.16 1,795,478 734,462

Total 642,534,248 564,538,926

Expenses

Operating & Maintenance expense 2.17 267,015,840 710,944,056

—2^18"
1-1 1 1 r r 1T■Eniployee'beneflls expense ■ ^ 14, Z'U, •'16/ IJJovJ,///

Finance costs 2.19 .281,247,938 293,857,384

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.20 126,995,184 (349,334,544)
Other expenses 2.21 4,781,960 8,572,699

Total 694,282,389 677,932,872

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (51,748,141) (113,393,946)

Less: Exceptional Items 213,282,673 -

Profit/floss) before prior period items and tax (265,030,814) (113,393,946)
Prior period expense 18,575.785

Profit/(loss) before tax (265,030,814) (131,969,731)

Tax expenses
- Current tax •

-

- Deferred Tax 213,833,529 (82,442,261)
Profit / (loss) for the period (478,864,343) (49,527,470)

Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted 2.23 (4.82) (0.50)

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration no. 004661N

1 az

For and on behalf of Board of
MADHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Puneet Kumar

Partner

Membership No. 531830

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2015

Ntwotufl

«co

hesi
K.Srlniv^

Director

sa Rao

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2015

n

Director

>/ \
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Madhucon Agra^ Jaipur Expressways Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2016

I''

Particulars Note
As at

31st March 2016

As at

31st March 2015

EQUITY AND UABILITIES

Shareholders' funds

Share capital

Reserves and surplus
2.1

2.2

Rs.

993,6Xr000
(709,610.526)

Rs.

993.600,000

(642,601,553)

Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings

Deferred Tax Liability
Long term provisions

2.3

2.4

2.5

.283,989,474

2,299.587,299

- 202.204.351

203,325.569

350,998,447

,  ,1,905.600,000

213,833,529

497,515

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Short term provisions

2.6

2.7.

2.8

2,710,117,219

41.523;i11

218,418,903

:229.885;537

2,119,931,044

69,487.340

257,905,811

720,986,131

489,e_27;551 1,048,379,282

TOTAL 3,483,934,244 3,519,308.773
ASSETS

Non current assets

Fixed assets

- Tangible assets

- intangible assets

• Capital Work in Progress
Non Current Investments

2.9.A

19.8 •

2.9.C

2.10

952,'909
3,142,5^1,"209

830,328

3,469,393

1,583,311

3,279,698,005

811,828.

3,469,393

Long term loans and advances 2.11

3,147,796,839

4,850

3,285,562,538

4.850

Current assets

Trade Receivables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Short term Loans and Advances

Other Current Assets

2.12

2.13

2.14

.2.15

185.175.000

131,870,271

7,341,598

11,745,686

185,175,000

8,295,578

32,139.908

8,130,900

336,132,555 233,741,366

TOTAL ; 3,483,934,244 3,519,306,773

Significant accounting policies & Notes to Accounts

As per our report of even date attached

For GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Fim's Registration no. 00
if

1 &2

/

^For and on behalf of the Board of

MADHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS UMUED

ShashankA^awal
Partner

Membership No. 536670

Place:

Date:

Ahdrew Lewis

Director &C.E.0

DIN: 07420188

V/

Saural)h

Compwy Secretary

M.NO.39629

Ravfndranath Karat!

Director &C.F.0

DIN:. 07419535

Place:

Date:

.  1



Madhucon Agra- Jaipur Expressways Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2016

For the year ended 31st For the year ended
Particulars Note March 2016 31st March 2015

Rs. Rs.
Revenue from Operations 2.16 676,686,445 640,738,770
Other income 2.17 204,420 1,795,478

Total 676,890,865 642,534,248

Expenses

Operating & Maintenance expense 2.18 301,653,799 267,015.840
Employee benefits expense 2.19 8,850,485 14,241,467
Finance costs 2.20 299,425,241 281,152,334
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.21 137,947,699 126,995,184
Other expenses 2.22 7,651,792 4,877,564

Total 755,529,016 694,282,389

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (78,638,151) (51,748,141)

Less: Exceptional Items
- 213,282,673

Profit/(ioss) before prior period items and tax (78,638,151) (265,030,814)
Prior period expense

■ -

Profit/(loss) before tax (78,638,151) (265,030,814)

Tax expenses

- Current tax • _

■ Deferred Tax (11,629,178) 213,833,529
Profit / (loss) for the period (67,008,973) (478,864,343)

Earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted 2.24 (0.67) (4.82)

Significant accounting policies & Notes to accounts

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER ft ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration ho. 004661N

1 &2

For and on behalf of Board of

MADHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

OilShashank Agra

Partner

Membership No. 536670''^«Sn?T^

Anarew Lewis

Director & C.E.O

DIN: 07420188

Place:

Date; 3^

Saurabh

Company Secretary

M.No.39629

Place:

Date:

Ravindranath Karati

Director & C.F.O

DIN: 07419535

I® !,



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Umited
(Formerly kr>ovrn ai KUdhucon Aera-Jslpur Dtpresrways Uml(ed)

:<alance Sheet as at 31st March 2017

CIN • U45203TG2005PLCCMS689

Amount (n Rupees

Particulars Note
As at As at

31st March 2017 31st March 2016

EQ,Umf AND LIABILmSS

Shareholders' funds

Stiacc capital 2.1 99,36,00,000 99,36,00,000
Reserves and surplus 2.2 (1.00,28,38,533) (70,96,10,526)

(92,38,533) 26,39,89,474
Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings 2.3 2,69,18,49,548 2,29,95,87,299
Deferred Tax Liability 2.4 22,93.55,930 20,22,04,351
Long term provisions 2.5 31,42.85,214 20,83,25,569

3,23,54,90,692 2,71,01,17,219
Current liabilities

Trade payables 2.6 67,94,030 4,15,23,111
Other current liabilities 2.7 16,84,96,838 21,84,18,903
Short term provisions 2.8 2,22,564 22,98,85,537

17,55,13,432 48,98,27,551

TOTAL 3,40,17,65,591 3.48,39,34.244
ASSETS

Hon current assets

Fixed assets

-Tangible assets 2.9.A 70,89,464 9,52,909
- Intangible assets 2.9.B 3,02,92,84,171 3,14,25,44,209
- Capital Work In Progress 2.9.C . 8,30,328

lion Current Investments 2.10 34,69,393 34.69,393
• 3,03,98,43,028 3,14,77,96,839

Lor-s term ioaru and advances , 2.11 5,53,850 4,850

Current assets

Trade Receivables 2.12 6,19,65,009 18,51,75,000
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.13 27,60,84,428 13,18,70,271
Short term Loans and Advances 2.14 1,22,65,287 73,41,598
Other Current Assets 2.15 1,10,53,991 1,17,45,686

36,13,65.713 33,61,32,555

TOTAL 3,40.17.65.591 3.48.39,34.244

Sfsnlflcant accounting policies 6 Motes to Accounts

As per our rcportof even dale attached

Far GIANENOER & ASSOCIATES

Chattered Accountants

Firm's Regislration nu. Op

182

G.K. i^wal
Partner

Membership No. 081603

MEWCtW

JytdActo

For and on behalf of the Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMrTED

RamM'mg! Andrew Lewis

Director • Director 8 C.E.0

DIN: 07158674 DIN: 07420188

Address:5/205,Krishn3 Apra Addre$s:413,1st Roor,
Gardens,?, Vafbhav Khand, Delhi Appt,
indrapuram, Shipra Sun City, Sector - 22, New
Shatiabad 201014 0elh}110075

Place: Holda

Date: 10th June 2017

JatlnMakkaf

(Company Secretary)

Address'.Wa 64 Shakarpur Delhh
110092

v-t

Naraslnga Rao Challa

(Chief Financial Officer)

Address:8-16-17,
Hagavamsam Street,
Anakapalle,
Visakhapalnam • 531001



Mahua Bharalpur Expressways Limited
(Fcrmerly known es Madhucon Asra-Jalpur Expreisways Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2017

CIN - U45203TG2005PLC0456B9

Amount in Rupees

For the year ended For the year ended 31st

Particulars Note 31st March 2017 March 2016

Rs. Rs.

Revenue from Operations 2.16 58,09,40,392 67,66.86,445

Other income 2.17 8,14,70,635 2,04,420

Total 66,24,11,027 67,68,90,865

Expenses

Operating El Maintenance expense 2.18 42,17,15,618 30,16.53,799

Employee benefits expense 2.19 1,56,80,093 88,50,485

Finance costs 2.20 36,49,70,715 29,94,25,241

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2.21 11,52,88,411 13,79,47,699

Other expenses 2,22 1,08,32,618 76,51,792

Total 92,84,87,455 75,55,29,016

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items actd tax (26,60,76,428) (7,86,38,151)

Proflt7(loss) before prior period items and tax (26,60,76,428) (7.86.38,151)

Prior period expense

Profft/(loss) before tax (26,60,76,428) (7,86,38,151)

Tax expenses

• Deferred Tax 2,71,51,579 (1,16,29.178)

Profit / (loss) for the period (29,32,28,007) (6,70.08,973)

Earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted 2.24 (0.30) (0.67)

Sisniflcant accounting policies & Notes to accounts

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration no. OOASdlN

G.K..

Panned

Membership No. 081603'

wal

1 &2

NEWOEUil

CtfAtCO

Place: Noida

Date: 10th June 2017

For and on behalf of Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Raman Tj&igi
Director

DIN: 07158674

Address:5/206,Krlshna Apra
Gardens,?, Vaibhav Khand,

Indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Ghaziabad 201014

Andrew Lewis

Director B C.E.O

DIN: 07420IB8

Addre5s:413, IstRoor,

Plot no. 15C Delhi Appt,
Dwartca Sector • 22, New

Delhi 110075

Narasinga Rao Chalia

(Chief Financial Officer)

Jatin Makkar

(Company Secretary)

Address:Wa 64 Shakarpur Delhi- Address:fi-16-17,
110092 Nagavamsam Street,

Anakapalle,

Visakhapatnam • 531001

\sf



Macihucon Agra- Jaipiir Expressways Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2015

Psrtlciilars

A.Cash flow from Operatin? ActMlles;

Net profit/(loss) for the period before tax

Adjustments

Exceptional Items

Depreciation

Kinance Cost

Total

Changes in other accounts affecting operations:
(lncrease)/decrease In trade receivables

(lncreaso)/decrease In short term loans and advances

(lncreaso)/(iecrease in other current assets

(lncrease)/decrease in long term loans and advances

fncrea.so/(decrease) in long term provisions
.  Increase/ldecrease) in.tradn payabio<;

Increase/fdecrease) in other current liabilities

Increaso/fdecrease) in short term provisions
Cash generated/(u5Cd) from Operating Activities
Less: taxes paid

Net cash generated/(uscd) from Operating Activities

fl. Cash flow from Investing Activities!

Purchase of Fixed Assets

• Tangible asset

• Intangible asset

- Intangible assets under development
Net Cash used in Investing Activities

C.Casli flow from Financing Activities;

Proceeds from Unsecured Loans

Repayment of Secured loans

Interest paid

Not Cash from Financing Activities

lncrease/(Dccrease) In cash and cash equIvalents(A+B*C)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended 31sl

March 2015

(265,030,Bid)

213,282,673

126,995,18-1

280,566,651

355,813,69-1

(82,300,000)

(2-1,863,077)

291,755

2,301.538

159,500

—23,555,090

-161.276

122,2-13,501

397.666,285

397,666,285

(57,500)

(8,942,728)

(9,000,228)

15,000,000

(118,875,000)

(295,464,286)

(399,339,286)

(10,673,229)

18.968.807

(Amount in Rupees)

For the year ended

31 March 2014

(131,969,731)

(349,334,544)

291,920,195

(189,384,080)

123,774,521

34,150,431

(518,475

(303,777,003)

—45,889^815-

3,008,203

600,776,507

313,919,919

313,919,919

(1,434,576)

(93,270)

(1,527,846)

(69,000,000)

(289,686.193)

(358.686.193)

(46,294,120)

65,262,927

8,295,578 18.968,807

Notes;

1. Cash Flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard 3;
" Cash Ftov/ Statement* as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassifled wherever necessary.
3. Components of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31.03.2015 As at 31,03,2014
Casli on hand 2,109,444 1,828,589
Balances with Banks In Current Accounts 6,186,134 17,140,219
Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Year 8,295,578 18,968,807

As per our report of even date attached

for GIANENDER a ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration no. 00466^

Puneet Kumar

Partner

Membership No. 531630

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 22.05.2015

hVM OtlH*

%A-d&t

For and on behalf of Board of

MADHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

K.SrInlva a Rao

Director

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 22.05.2015

dhu

or



Madhucon Agra- Jaipur Expressways Limited

Cash flow statement for the Period ended 31st March, 2016

Particulars '
For the year ended 31st

AUrch 2016

For the year ended 31st

March 2015

A.Cosh flow from Ooerofinc Activfties:

(70,638.151)

137,947,699

291,697,570

(265,030,814)

213,282,673

125,995,184

280,566,651

Net profit/|lo$s) for the period before tax

Adjustments

Exceptional Items

Depreciation

Finance Cost

Total

Changes in other accounts affecting operations:

(IncreaseJ/decrease In trade receivables

(Increasej/decrease In short term loans and advances

(Increasejfdecrease in other current assets

(lncrease)/decrease in long term loans and advances
Increase/fdecrease) In long term provisions

Incrcasc/fdccreaseJ in trade payablcs

Increase/idecrease) in other current liabilities

Increase/fdecrease) in short term provisions

Cash gcnorated/(used) from Operating Activities
Less: taxes paid

Net cash generated/fused) from Operating Activities

B.Cash flow from Investing Arfivirfps:

351,007,116

24,798,310

(3,614.785)

207,826,054

(27,954,229)

9,265,095

(491.100.5941

355,813,694

(82,300,000)

(24,863,077)

(7,839,145)

2,301,538

159,500

23,555,098

454,276

122.243.501

70,218,967 389,535,385

70,216,967 389,535,385

(163,500)

(18,500)

(57,500)

(811,828)

Purchase of Fixed Assets

- Tangible asset

• intangible assets under deveiopmcnt

Net Cash used In Investing Activities

C-Cosh flow from Finaiwfnp Acfivitiesr

(182,000) (869,328)

(15,000,000)

528,587,299

(144,331,129)

(315,718,444)

15,000,000

(118,875,000)
a9S,464,286)

Proceeds from Unsecured L^ans

Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures for MMR V/orks

Repayment of Secured Loans

interest paid
Net Cash from FirtancfngAalvities

increase/fDecrease) In cash and cash equivalents(A«B*C)

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

53.537.726 (399,339,286)

123,574,693

6,295,578

(10,673,229)

18,968,807

131,870,271 8,295,578

Notes:

1. Cash Row statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the Accounting Standard 3;
" Cash Flow Statement" as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclasslfied wherever necessary.

3. Components of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year'

Partleulafj Asat31.03.Z016 As at 31.03.2015

Cash on hand 2,388,201 2,109,444
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts 129,482,071 6,186,134
Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Year 131,870,271 8,295,578

As per our report of even date attached

for GIAN£NOER & A5S0CIATCS

Chartered Accountants

Finn's Registration j
AJj

Shashank Agraw.
Partner

Membership No. 536570

tS

For and on behatf of Board of

AtADHUCON AGRA JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Brew Lewis

Director a CiE.O

DM: 07420163

Ravlndranath Karati

Director a C.F.O

DIN: 07419535

Saurabh

Comply Secretary



Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited

(Formerly known as Modhucon Ajra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Cash flow statement for the Period ended 31st March, 2017

CIN - L)4S203TG2005PLC(M56S9

Amount In Rupees

Partfeulars
Fortheyearended 31stMarch Fortheyearended 31sl

2017 March 2016

a rnth flnwfmm Oonror/n»aefivi(/es: "

Net prori[/(loss) for the period before tax (266,076,423) (78,638,151)

Adjustments

Exceptional Items •.

Depreciation 115,288,411 137,947,699

Finance Cost 235,674.845 291.697,570

Total 34,886,828 3S1,007,11S

Changes In other accounts affecting operations;

(lncrease)/decrease In trade receivables 123,209,991

(tncreasej/decrease in short term loans and advances (4,923,639) 24,798,310

(Increasel/dceicase In other current assets 691,695 (3,614,786)

(Increa5e}/decrease In long term loans and advances (549,000)
-

lncrcasc/(decrease) in long term provisions 105,959,645 207,828,054

lnciease/(decrease) In trade payabtes (34,729,081) (27,964.229)

Increase/(decrease) In other current liabilities 80,785,112 9,265,095

Increase/(decrease) in short tern provisions (229,662,973) (491,100,594)

Cash generated/(uscd) from Operating Activities 125,668,528 70,218,967

Less; taxes paid - -

Net cash gencrated/(uscd) from Operating Activlttcs 125.668,528 . 70,218,967

B.Cosh flow from Investino Aetivltles: -

Purchase of Ffxed Assets

- Tangible asset (6,639,053) (163,500)

• Intangible asset * (695.547)

- Intangible assets under development (18,500)

Net Cash used In Investing Activities (7,334,600) (182,000)

C.Cflsh flow from Ftnanrino ActMlieS!

f  ̂

Proceeds from Secured Loans 1,936,880,824

Proceeds from Unsecured Loaiu •
(15,000,000)

Proceeds from Non Convertible Debentures for MUR Works 264,150,601 528,587,299

Repayment of Secured Loans (1,944,985,835) (144,331,129)

Interest paid (230,165,361) (315,718,444)

Net Cash from Financing Activities 2S.BB0.229 53,537,726

lncrcasc/(Dccrease) in cash and cash cquivaIent5{A«B*C) 144.214,157 123,574,693

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 131,870,271 8,295,578

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 276,084,428 131,870,271

Motes:

1. Cash Flow statement has been prepared under the IndlrecCMethodasset out In the Accounting Standard 3;
'Cash Flow Statement* as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

2. Previous year's figures have been regrooped/reclasslfied wherever necessary.
3. Components of Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31.03.2017 Asat31.O3.2016

Cash on hand 2,710,406 2,388,201

Balances with Banks inCunenl Accounts 273,374.022 129.432.071

Cash and Cash Eaulvatenu of the Year 276,084,428 131,870,271

As per our report of even date attached

for G1AHEHDER h ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm's frsSitSii^n no. 0(K661M

C.K. Xsr^wal
Partner

Membership No. D81603

^•5
^'ed At'S

Place: Nolda

Date: 10th June 2017

For and on behalf of Board of

MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

Raman TyagT
Director

DIN: 071S8674

Address:S/20&,Krishna Apra

Gardens,7, Vaibhsv Khand,

indrapuram, Shipra Sun City,
Gbadabad 2D1014

Andrew Lewis

Director 8 C.E.0

DIN: 074701SB

Address:413,1$t Floor, Plot no.
ISC Delhi Appt, Dwarka Sector •
22, New Delhi 110075

iilnMalBrar

(Company Secretary)
Addrcf$:Wa 64 Shakar

110392

-asinga Rao Challa

lief Financial O(licer)

(ildress:8'16-17, Nagavamsam
Street, Anakapalte,
Vlsakhapatnam • 531001



MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS UMiTBD

fForwerly known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Limited)

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY CIRCULATION BY BOARD OF

DIRECTORS OF MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS

MADHUCON AGRA-JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED) ON MONDAY. OCTOBER 16. 2017

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 42, 71 and all other applicable provisions, if any,

of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 18 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014

read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), in

accordance with the provisions of SEBI (Issue & Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, 5EBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] Regulations, 2015 or any amendments thereto

and any circulars, notifications, clarifications, rules passed thereunder from time to time and any

other applicable regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") , relevant

provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the
Listing Agreement and such other statutes, notifications, circulars, rules and regulations as may be
applicable, the consent of Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby accorded for, subject

to receipt of the subscription money, (t) the allotment of the Series A Debentures being 1842 (One

Thousand Eight Hundred and Forty Two Only) Redeemable, Listed, Rated, Secured Non-Convertible

Debentures of the face value of INR 10,00,000 each at par aggregating to INR 184,20,00,000

(Rupees One Hundred Eighty Four Crores and Twenty Lakhs Only) to following investors:

No. Series Name of Investors No. of

Debentures

Date of

Redemption

1. A1 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 20 3-Apr-

18

3-Oct-

18

2. A2 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 26 3-Apr-

19

3-Oct-

19

3. A3 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 46 3-Apr-

20

5-Oct-

20

4. A4 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 100 5-Apr-

21

4-Oct-

21

5. A5 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 110 4-Apr-

22

3-Oct-

22

6. A6 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 140 3-Apr-

23

3-Oct-

23

7. A7 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 150 3-Apr-

24

3-Oct-

24

8. AS J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 200 3-Apr-

25

3-Oct-

25

9. A9 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 210 5-Apr-

26

5-Oct-

26

10. AlO J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 220 5-Apr- 4-Oct- t)

Rogistcrcd Office; 1st Tloor, Domatguda, HimayalM^t Hyderabad, Tciangaiia S(X)029

Site Qffico: Amoli Toll PUu, NH-2](Earlier NH-I I), Village.Amoli, tchsil- Weir, Dislric1-Bharatpur(Raiasrlii>^—^
Corporate ofnce: B-806, 807, Advam Navi. Business Park, Plot No, 7, Sector- 142, Naida 20H05 (Ul'//

CIN No: U4S20i f G200SPLC(H568'>: Phone; Q/20-rmii2.Fax No t)<20-./f68JJD Email: compliance(tii»bllUa.in



MAHUA SHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

^ForMerlu known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur Expressways Linxi'teel)

27 27

11. All J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 250 4-Apr-

28

3-Oct-

28

12. A12 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 250 3-Apr-

29

3-Oct-

29

13. A13 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 120 29-Mar-30

and (ii) the allotment of allotment of the Series B Debentures being 78 (Seventy Eight Only)
Redeemable, Listed, Rated, Secured Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value of INR 10,00,000

each at par aggregating to INR 7,80,00,000 (Rupees Seven Crores and Eighty Lakhs Only) to
following investors:

No. Series Name of Investors No. of

Debentures

Date

Redempt

of

on

1. 81 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 20 3-Apr-
18

30ct-18

2. B2 J.P.Morgan Securities India Private Limited. 24 3-Apr-

19

3-Oct-

19

3. 83 J.P.Mofgan Securities India Private Limited. 34 3-Apr-

20

5-Oct-

20

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and is

hereby severally authorized to issue and deliver the letters of allotment to the investors, file the

return of allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures with the Registrar of Companies and to do all

such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary and take all steps which are incidental and

ancillary in this connection."

Certified True Copy

For Mahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (Earlier known as Madhucon Agra-

Jaipur Expressways Limited)

Jarm maRar

Company Secretary, Membership No. A37307

WA 64, Shakarpur, New Delhi-110092

Registered OITice: Isl I'loor, 1-2-6. IJomaleuda, Hinuyatnagar, Hyderabad, Tclaiigana 50002')
Site OfTicc: Amoli Toll Piaza, NH-2((Earlier NH-11), Village-Amoli. ichsii- Weir. District-Rharalpur (Rajasthan)
Corporate ofTlcc; B-806. 807. Advint Navis Business Park, Plot No. 7. Sector - 142, Noida 201305 (UP)
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MAHUA SHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

CFon-neirtu known as Madhucon Aara~Jaiour Enpresiwaui LiMtt&d)

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE SHAREHOLDERS AT EXTRA

ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING OF MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED

fFQRMELRY ICNOWN AS MADHUCON AGRA-JAIPUR EXPRESSWAYS LIIVIITED) HELP ON

TUESDAY. 26*'' DAY OF SEPTEMBER. 2017 COMMENCED FROM 11:30 A.M.. AT B-BOE. 807.

ADVANT NAVIS BUSINESS PARK. SECTOR -142. NOIDA 201305

1  ,

Approval for Issuance of offer letter for Redeemable. Listed. Rated. Secured Non

Convertible Debentures through Private Placement to certain Identified eligible investors

for, f'nter alia, refinancing and prepayment of the outstanding Existing Facilitv and general

corporate purposes

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, 71 and 179 of the Companies Act,

2013, Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and all

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and.the Rules made thereunder,

as amended from time to time, and in accordance with the provlsions'of SEBI (Issue & Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 and any other applicable regulations issued by Securities and Exchange Board

of India or any amendments thereto, and any circulars, notifications, clarifications, rules passed

thereunder from time to time the relevant provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of

Association of the Company and subject to the Listing Agreement to be entered into by the

Company with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE")/ Bombay Stock Exchange

Limited ("BSE") and subject to consent of the Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"),

NSE/ BSE and ail other concerned statutory authorities' required if any, and to the extent

necessary, and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary and

subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed in granting such approvals,

permissions and sanctions by any of the aforesaid authorities, which may be agreed upon by the

Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby

accorded to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the "Board",, which term shall be

deemed to include person{s) authorized and/ or any committee of the board constituted to

exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by the resolution) for making private

placement offer(s) or invitations for issuance of Redeemable, Listed, Rated, Secured Non-

Convertible Debentures aggregating upto an amount of Rs. 300,00,00,000/- (Rupees Three

Hundred Crores Only) (hereinafter referred to as "Debentures") in one or more series and/or

one or more tranches on private placement basis on such terms and conditions as the Company

may deem fit, to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, financial Institutions an^
any other categories of eligible investors ("Eligible investors") permitted to Invest ir

Registered Office; 1st Roor, 1-2-6, Domalguda, Himayatnagar, Hyderabad, T
Corporate office; 6-806,807, Advant Navls Business Park, Plot No. 7, Sector - 142, No!?a 20130S
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'MAHUA BHARATPUR EXPRESSWAYS LlMfTED

fFortvi&Hu l(:KOWf\ as Madhucon Anm-Jaipur Eifaresswaus LiMitAcCi

Debentures under applicable laws, m one or more tranches, during a period of one year from

the date of passing of this Resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board, any

member of the Board, or any person authorized by the Board be^and is hereby authorized to do

ail such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary,

proper, or desirable and to settle any question, doubt that may arise In the respect of the

aforesaid issue of Debentures and further to do ail such acts, deeds and things and to finalise,

settle and execute all documents, deeds, papers, agreements and writing as may be necessary,

proper, desirable or expedient."

Certified True Copy

For [Vlahua Bharatpur Expressways Limited (Earlier known as Madhucon Agra-Jaipur

Expressways Limited]

t*Pre

Jatin Makar

Company Secretary, Membership No. A37307

WA 64, Shakarpur, New Delhi-llOOSZ
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